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Dear Shareholders, Customers and Employees:

1 Strong financial performance
2 Global leadership

3 Balanced business mix

4 Value-creating processes

5 [nnovative solutions

These are the hallmarks of today’s
Goodrich — characteristics that position
us more solidly than ever to deliver
consistent value to our customers and
shareholders; reasons to think more
about Goodrich.
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A new Goodrich 2001 will be remembered as one of the most
challenging years in the history of commercial aviation. Under
extraordinary circumstances, Goodrich had strong financial per-
formance because of our business mix and the underlying
strengths that have made us a global industry leader. 2001 was
also a defining year for the company as we completed the sale of
our Performance Materials segment and announced the spin-off
of our Engineered Industrial Products segment to continue our
transition into a top-tier aerospace supplier. To cap more than a
decade of successful transformation, we also launched our new
corporate identity as Goodrich Corporation.

This thoughtful and deliberate transition created a new
Goodrich distinguished by key characteristics that you will read
about throughout this report — strong financial performance,
global leadership, a balanced business mix, value-creating
processes and innovative solutions for aerospace and beyond.
These are the hallmarks of today's Goodrich — a company posi-
tioned more solidly than ever to deliver consistent value to our
customers and shareholders.

Strong financial performance Our ability to deliver value starts
with our financial results. In 2001, our aerospace businesses

delivered record revenues and double-digit earnings per share
growth, before special items. These accomplishments are all
the more remarkable in light of the sluggishness in commercial
aviation that was developing even before the deep and immediate
impact of the tragic events of September 11. Before special
items and on a continuing operations basis, which excludes the
Engineered Industrial Products (EIP) segment, income was $306
million compared to $266 million last year, and earnings per
share rose 18 percent to $2.87 compared to $2.43 in 2000. Sales
rose substantially to $4.2 billion for the year - a 13 percent
increase due to greater demand for core products and services as
well as contributions from recent acquisitions.

Decisive actions Achieving these results required a swift assess-
ment and decisive action after the tragic events of September 11.
For the first time in the history of our aerospace business, we
faced very difficult but necessary decisions to restructure our
operations in the face of reduced market demand for our
products. At the same time, we announced a $300 million share
repurchase program to demonstrate our confidence in the funda-
mental attractiveness and value of our businesses. We believe
that our proactive approach - coupled with a balanced business
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Letter to shareholders

2001: A year of change for Goodrich

| Completed i Awarded Awarded A380 " Announced spin- Awarded
| sale of 1 A380 landing i evacuation systems . off of Engineered | Rolls-Royce Trent®
Performance gear contract contract Industrial Products | goo fan casing
Materials 1 ‘ and sensors suite
: CFebrvary |[Maveh  |[ApA My [ljwme |y Augest | |September| Caeley || November | Bazumber |
Acquired New name and ‘ Acquired Hella Selected to supply
Humphrey identity rolled out ! Aerospace landing gear, lead
inertial Sensors . Lighting business landing systems
Business o integration for the
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mix that moderates the impact of any downturns in the commer-
cial transport market — will enable us to emerge even stronger
when the economy and commercial air travel rebound.

Major contract wins Tried and true strategies continued to pro-
pel the company’s transformation during the year: targeted
acquisitions to strengthen global platforms and enhance our
business mix; innovative new product and technology develop-
ments; and significant wins on new aircraft programs, most
notably the Airbus A380 and the Joint Strike Fighter.

Our recognized technological expertise and extensive expe-
rience as the leading landing gear provider for U.S. military
aircraft led to a major role on the joint Strike Fighter. We're
proud to have been selected as the landing gear supplier and
landing systems integrator and proud to continue to play a key
part in our nation’s defense.

Our series of product wins for the A380, the world's largest
commercial passenger aircraft, began with the body and wing
landing gear, marking our first contract to supply landing gear to
Airbus. We were also selected to supply the next generation of
evacuation systems for the aircraft, as well as the fuel delivery sys-
tems, engine components and sensors suite for its Trent® goo
engine. With expected revenues of $3 to $4 billion over the next
20 years, these awards establish Goodrich as a strong partner for
the Airbus A380 and Rolls-Royce Trent goo teams and position us
as one of Airbus’ largest suppliers. While forging this expanded
relationship with Airbus, we also enhanced our position with
Boeing in an agreement that confirmed Goodrich as its exclusive
supplier of landing gear for nearly all commercial aircraft through
2006, including both original equipment and spares.

Building global leadership The leadership position we enjoy today
in landing systems — as well as aerostructures, sensor systems,
safety systems and more ~ is being replicated in new areas using
our proven “roadmap" formula. This formula targets complemen-
tary acquisitions and drives internal growth to build strong global

platforms. Over the past 24 months, we continued on this course
with nine acquisitions, including Raytheon’s optical systems busi-
ness to enhance our growing space and surveillance platforms
and last year’s Hella Aerospace GmbH, which positions us as a
global supplier in interior and exterior aerospace lighting. These
businesses expand our product offerings and strengthen our posi-
tions in important markets.

Enhancing our business mix We further enhanced our business
mix in 2001 with growth in the regional, business and general
aviation markets. We won three sole-source wheel and brake posi-
tions with Learjet and Embraer and are supplying air data and ice
detection sensing systems for Dassault. Our new SkyWatch® HP
surveillance traffic advisory system received certification, and
deliveries began immediately. SmartDeck™, our fully integrated
primary flight display and control system, features new advanced
Synthetic Vision and “Highway In The Sky” technologies for
general aviation and entry-level jet aircraft.

Leveraging innovative solutions Innovative new technologies
like this are our lifeblood, and we lock for ways to leverage them
in aerospace and beyond. Our MEMS (Micro-ElectroMechanical
Systems) technology is just one example. Our long-term agree-
ment with Movaz Networks to use MEMS for optical switching
opens a substantial new market opportunity. We expect applica-
tions for this technology to grow significantly over the next several
years in both aerospace and non-aerospace markets.

Value-creating processes Operational excellence and other
value-creating processes are also synonymous with the new
Goodrich. Ongoing productivity and Lean manufacturing initia-
tives once again contributed to operating margins at levels
consistent with top-performing aerospace companies. We are
particularly pleased that our aircraft evacuation systems plant in
Phoenix, Arizona, was recoghized by IndustryWeek as one of the
top 10 plants in America for its excellence in manufacturing and
process improvement.




Looking ahead, we have businesses that are performing well, and
our fundamental strategies are intact: build on our aerospace
base, target and create new global platforms, deliver on the prom-
ise of new products and technologies, and enter adjacent mar-
kets. We have executed these strategies well in the past, and you
can expect to see more in the future.

At the same time, managing the enterprise through this
uncertain period will be our top priority. We must be even more
alert and responsive to changing business conditions and chal-
lenging issues. We must execute our consolidation plans on time
and within budget. We will continue to enhance efficiency by
expanding our success in productivity and quality improvements.
Improving cash flow remains a high priority and has been inte-
grated into our incentive plans. Our management strength and
teamwork is more important than ever.

We will continue to add value by supplementing our core
aerospace business by acquiring and commercializing additional
products and technologies. We will do this through our ongoing,
successful innovation processes and acquisitions focused on
adding strategic value and maintaining the quality of our earnings
and our businesses.

Making people a priority To achieve all these objectives, we must
attract and retain the right people. That's why our efforts to cre-
ate a high-performance organization are ongoing, with training,
performance review and career development processes to devel-
op our people for sustained success. Our succession planning
processes also ensure we have the talent to meet our needs now
and in the future.

We are pleased that Marshall Larsen has assumed the duties
of our top operating post as President and COQ of the company.
As a proven member of our experienced management team with
a reputation for delivering results, Marshall has made significant
contributions to the growth of our aerospace business and to the
aerospace industry in general. His leadership has been a critical

We have a powerful combination of
people, products and capabilities to
continue to expand and deliver value
to customers and shareholders.

factor in creating today’s Goodrich and will continue to benefit
the company in the future.

Committed to delivering value Above all, we must deliver value
to our shareholders. Management is committed to meeting or
exceeding expectations for earnings performance and cash flow.
Today's Goodrich is well-positioned to achieve these goals as our
industry recovers.

While we expect 2002 to be another challenging year, we
believe our balanced business mix and rich technology base
strengthen our ability to perform well. We expect to again deliver
financial results that are among the best in our industry, and we
are confident that Goodrich is positioned for long-term success.
We have a powerful combination of people, products and capabil-
ities to continue to expand and deliver value to customers and
shareholders.

We are proud to be part of an industry whose impact over the
past century has made our world a better place to live, and we are
committed to its recovery and sustained growth. We are also
proud of our contributions to the industry as a top-tier systems
supplier distinguished by strong financial performance, global
leadership, a balanced business mix, value-creating processes
and innovative solutions for aerospace and beyond. These are the
cornerstones of our success and our roadmap to greater growth
and opportunity in the years ahead.

We sincerely appreciate our customers, our shareholders and
our team of outstanding employees who are helping us achieve
our goals. As always, thank you for your continued support.

David L. Burner

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 22, 2002

Goodrich
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Industry outlook

As the Chair of the Board of Governors of the Aerospace
Industries Association (AlA), | look forward to the mis-
sion of renewal that will characterize our work in 2002.
In the aftermath of September 11, we must lead our
global industry in economic recovery and a return to
sustained growth.

| am buoyed in this challenge by evidence over
the past six months that the aerospace industry is
standing strong in the face of terrorist acts and a
soft economy. No other industry faced an impact so
extreme. No other industry has responded so well. And
no other industry has been proven to be more important
to the free world. Once again, we have seen U.S. air
power at work over hostile skies. We understand that
global defense objectives and industry objectives are
intertwined, and we will continue to respond to our
fullest to any threat to peace and stability.

A resilient industry Our results in 2001 and our outlook
for the future reflect the industry’s resilience. Aerospace
sales were $i51 billion - the second-highest year on
record — and would have eclipsed that record if not for

Marshall O. Larsen
President and Chief Operating Officer,
Goodrich Corporation

2002 Chair of AlA’s Board of Governors

the terrorist attacks. We expect that these events will
cause total sales to decline to $144.4 billion in 2002.
Increases in the military and space sectors will partially
offset expected declines for new civil transport aircraft
due to the near-term impact of September 11 on passen-
ger traffic.

While recent events have affected air passenger
travel, this is not forever. Through improvements in
safety and security, we are regaining the public’s confi-
dence, and more and more people are returning to air
travel every day. The AlA is playing a significant role in
stimufating this recovery. For instance, we encouraged
formation of the Aviation and Space Stakeholders
coalition where manufacturers, airlines, labor and gov-
ernment can work together to influence a healthy future
for aerospace. We will continue to champion such unity.

A major focus for our industry this year is sup-
port for the Commission on the Future of the U.S.
Aerospace Industry. This is an important opportunity to
examine the political, economic and technical environ-
ment the aerospace industry will face in the coming




Our industry connects, protects and helps people.

We contribute to a free world by making air transport
affordable and available, a more peaceful world by
bringing people closer together and a more exciting
world by reaching out to the frontiers of space.

decades, and to provide recommendations and advice
on government policies necessary to maintain a robust
and prosperous industry.

Other important industry issues this year include a
renewed push for export control reform. Such reform is
imperative if we are to continue to be commercially com-
petitive while protecting our national security interests.
We also support the Defense Department’s acquisition
excellence program and the reduction of aerospace trade
tensions with our European partners and competitors.

Building a stronger future The AIA will do everything
it can to help the U.S. aviation system recover from the
events of 2001, as well as to plan for future growth.
Developing and implementing advanced technology
into the U.S. aviation system will accelerate future civil
aviation growth. We are also determined that aviation
environmental issues must be addressed globally
through the International Civil Aviation Organization.

| am optimistic that we can create a better future
for aerospace, and we must. Air transport today is the
lifeblood of our global economy - from travel and

tourism to the delivery of products and services around
the world. But our impact goes far beyond economics.
Our industry connects, protects and helps people. We
contribute to a free world by making air transport afford-
able and available, a more peaceful world by bringing
people closer together and a more exciting world by
reaching out to the frontiers of space.

| am confident that we will overcome our current
challenges with the same boldness, determination and
courage that the aerospace industry has demonstrated
throughout history. As we work together to prepare for
the approaching centennial anniversary of our industry,
we must pledge to recapture the excitement of our her-
itage and keep our performance strong.

0 ot _

Marshall O. Larsen
President and Chief Operating Officer
February 22, 2002
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Our long-term value creation roadmap
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Top-tier financial results. For the last five years, Goodrich has delivered:
- record earnings per share* every year averaging 26 percent growth
- 8 percent average annual sales growth

- 19 percent average annual operating income™* growth

+ 20 percent average annual return on equity*

*continuing operations, excluding special items

Financial performance drivers Our goal is superior returns through
consistent, predictable revenue and income growth. Our proven track
record is driven by key company strengths. As an early and aggressive
participant in aerospace industry consolidation, we have established
market leadership positions with proprietary technology and prod-
ucts that drive a strong, profitable aftermarket. Our evolution from a
collection of small, component businesses to a portfolio of advanced
systems, products and services has made Goodrich a high value-
added supplier, enjoying tier-one status with global customers. Our
experienced management team has demonstrated performance in
our core competencies, including excellence in product development,
Lean manufacturing to improve productivity, and numerous initia-
tives to reduce costs. Our diverse and balanced business portfolio
helps smooth industry cycles. And our management compensation
program is directly linked to gains in creating shareholder value.

These factors contribute to financial performance that ranks among
the best in our industry, with a solid record of sustained sales and
profit growth.

A key value driver at Goodrich is our ability to successfully iden-
tify and integrate complementary acquisitions to increase sales and
earnings. Acquisitions completed since 2000 added approximately
$200 million to sales in 2001. We will continue to pursue strategic
acquisitions to supplement our top-line growth and broaden our
leadership positions.

Goodrich’s long-term value-creation roadmap combines organic
growth, complementary acquisitions, productivity improvements and
investments in innovation to achieve a goal of delivering consistent
earnings growth.

Free cash flow Free cash flow is the lifeblood of our financial per-
formance, providing the resources to support our internal growth
and acquisition strategies as well as dividend payments to share-
holders. That's why we've placed increased emphasis on cash flow,
and our operations are focused on furthering the progress we made
in 2001. Our goal is to significantly increase our free cash flow during
2002, and to upgrade internal processes to sustain cash conversion
at greater than 8o percent of net income over the long term.




Rick Schmidt

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Velue management: geiting results

“At Goodrich, we do more than talk about creating
shareholder value. We take direct actions to make it
happen,” says Rick Schmidt, Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer. “Closely aligning the interests of
our shareholders and managers is an essential element
of our strategy. Goodrich’s Value Management program
provides direct linkage between incentive compensa-
tion for our approximately 335 top managers and gains
in shareholder value as measured by total shareholder
returns and total business return.”

The foundation of the value management culture
is a set of principles, tools and measures that integrate
value creation into every element of our decision-
making processes. Since implementing the program
in 1999, Goodrich has integrated value management

into strategic and operational planning processes at

al! levels of the organization to drive both revenue and
income growth.

An ongoing emphasis on free cash flow generation
is also an integral part of value-based management.
“Strong and consistent cash flow provides the financial
capacity to fund our growth objectives,” Rick explains.
“The more cash we can generate internally, the more
resources we have to increase shareholder value
through reinvestment in our port-
folio or through dividends. We've
committed ourselves to improving
cash flow performance throughout
the organization. And once we

commit to a goal, it gets done.”

“Cleadly aligning Whe interess of our
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We're om it

Commercial Aircraft

Landing Gear

Wheels & Brakes

Evacuation Systems

Crew & Attendant Seats

Nacelles, Pylons, Thrust Reversers

Fuel Systems

Aircraft Lighting

Sensors

De-lcing Systems

Engine Hot Section Components
If it flies, we're on it. Aviation Services
These are just a few
examples of our

leadership positions. Sensors

Satellites
Optical Sensing & Detection

Telemetry
Command & Control
Power Regulation
Attitude Control
Health Monitoring

Military Aircraft
Landing Gear

Ejection Seats

Helicopter Engine Controls

Fuel Systems

Helicopter Health & Usage Monitoring Systems

Electro-Optical Reconnaissance Systems

Landing systems. Aerostructures. Evacuation systems. Aerospace
sensors. Aircraft lighting systems. Ejection seats. Goodrich is a global
leader in all of these and more.

At Goodrich, leadership means achieving a #1 or #2 position in
each major market we serve. More than 35 successful acquisitions over
the past 15 years, coupled with internal growth, have created a portfo-
lio of key systems platforms to serve aerospace customers worldwide.

A top-tier company As Goodrich grew and the aerospace industry
consolidated, we joined the ranks of the top tier of global aerospace
suppliers. Our strength comes from an extensive range of integrated
proprietary products, systems and services for aircraft and engine
manufacturers, airlines and other aircraft operators. We are a leader
in the development of fully integrated systems and subsystems for
Boeing, Airbus and other airframe makers. We are the world's largest
manufacturer of landing gear and one of North America’s largest
independent third-party providers of aircraft maintenance, repair and
overhaul services. Our leading position in almost every product and
service we provide makes us a sought-after strategic supplier and a
valued partner for alliances and joint ventures with other leading

aerospace companies.

Industry leadership means thinking and acting globally to help
customers adapt to a rapidly changing world. To stay close to cus-
tomers, our 19,000 aerospace employees conduct business worldwide,
with manufacturing, service and sales in some 133 locations in 20
countries. For example, to support landing gear production for the new
A380 aircraft, we committed global capabilities in Cleveland, Ohio;
Qakville, Ontario; Tullahoma, Tennessee; and Krosno, Poland. Final
assembly will be completed at our Toulouse, France, facility right next
to the Airbus A380 assembly line.

Creating global platforms We recently further expanded our global
presence with the acquisition of Hella Aerospace, a leading European
lighting business. Combined with our own operations, this creates a
new global platform in lighting systems. We will continue to add to
our capabilities through aggressive internal development, strategic
expansion and participation in the industry's consolidation to achieve
the critical mass of talent and capabilities necessary to succeed in
today's competitive marketplace.

At Goodrich, we know how to grow globally. We're good at it.
Expect to see more.




Goodrich is the single-
source landing gear

supplier for nearly all

Boeing commercial aircraft.
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Brian Gora
President, Landing Gear

Landing gear strength pays off

When Coodrich merged with Coltec Industries in 1999,

the company created a full-service landing gear powerhouse
with enhanced capabilities and opportunities as a total sys-
tems integrator. This move paid off in 2001 with $10 billion
in contract wins, including significant commercial and mili-
tary landing gear awards for the Airbus A380 and and the
Lockheed F-35 Joint Strike Fighter.

“Our combined experience and expanded engineering
and systems integration capabilities are without question
the reasons we won these two contracts,” commented
Brian Gora, President of Goodrich’s Landing Gear Division.
“Goodrich is the strongest systems supplier for the global
landing gear business, supporting any aircraft manufacturer
anywhere in the world.”

The Landing Gear Division operates manufacturing
facilities in Canada, Poland and the U.S. and produces land-
ing gear equipment for aircraft manufacturers around the
world. The division frequently locates engineers and techni-
cians at the manufacturer’s site to ensure quality production

and service. Goodrich provides a worldwide network of
landing system service centers (wheels, brakes and landing
gear) including locations in the U.S., U.K., Canada, Hong
Kong and Australia. These sites are key to assuring total
maintenance and logistics solutions to global customers.

Global customers. Global leadership. A global work-
force. World-class manufacturing capabilities. Goodrich's
landing gear business is best in class.




Goodrich’s diversified
market mix helps
counterbalance cycles
in aircraft production
to assure stronger,

more consistent

financial performance.

Diversified market mix

| 18% 25% 20%
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Original Equipment Aviation Original Equipment
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Keeping aerospace revenues on an even keel
Aerospace original equipment revenues are traditionally
cyclical as the manufacturers' production schedules
change in response to new aircraft orders. However,
about 43 percent of Goodrich sales are from the “after-
market,” which includes spare parts and services to
commercial airlines, military and other aircraft owners.
This business is driven by factors that are different
from those that affect the aircraft manufacturing cycle,
most notably fleet sizes, aircraft utilization rates and
equipment aging characteristics. As a result, the after-
market helps Goodrich keep revenues on an even keel
despite normal cycles.

“As an airplane ages, it requires more services
and parts,” says Bob Gustafson, Vice President and
General Manager, Aftermarket Services of Goodrich’s

Aerostructures business. “This means revenues from
the sale of parts and services are stable and predictable
over a long period of time.”

Bob estimates that his division alone supports
nearly 6,000 aircraft currently in use in the world market,
and that the average age of those aircraft is only six
years, “Goodrich made a deliberate decision to invest in
the infrastructure required to support the aftermarket
early in the life cycle of our commercial programs.
Conseguently, we've been experiencing excellent growth.”

For similar reasons, Goodrich’s Aerostructures
repair and overhaul service businesses demonstrate
double-digit annual growth rates. The company contin-
ues to invest in its service facilities in the U.S., Asia

and Europe to meet growing global demand.

Bob Gustafson

Vice President and General Manager,
Aftermarket Services, Aerostructures

“Y ewre iy (e o you gus.”

Growing through industry downturns is often a challenge for
commercial aviation suppliers. To assure more consistent financial
performance, Goodrich has purposefully diversified its product, mar-
ket and customer mix to counterbalance cycles in aircraft production.

Diversification strategy works The wisdom of this strategy was tested
and proven in the early 1990s during the previous commercial aircraft
cycle, when Goodrich grew through the downcycle. In 2001 Goodrich
once again delivered record revenues despite a soft economy and the
effects of September 11 on the commercial aircraft industry — which
accounts for 56 percent of sales. While Goodrich was affected, the
impact was reduced because the balance of our revenues comes from
a diverse range of aerospace and non-aerospace products and markets.

Goodrich’s portfolio includes nose-to-tail participation in major
components, systems and services — from landing gear to evacuation
systems and avionics to satellite systems. This diverse product line is
organized into four very profitable groups: Aerostructures & Aviation
Technical Services, Landing Systems, Electronic Systems and Engine
& Safety Systems, each of which contributes 20 percent or more of
our aerospace operating income, excluding special items.

An important part of our business is commercial transport,
where there are only two major manufacturers of large aircraft —
America’s Boeing and Europe’s Airbus. Fortunately, Goodrich is one
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of the largest suppliers to both of these leaders. Boeing accounts
for 18 percent of our sales, and Airbus accounts for 13 percent - a
position that will grow with last year's A380 product wins. To further
insulate the company from inevitable swings in production rates,
Goodrich has built a strong commercial aircraft aftermarket, now
making up 25 percent of sales. The two market segments provide
important balance because they run on different cycles.

Varied market channels cushion revenues To further balance our
business mix, approximately 44 percent of revenues are from non-
commercial transport sectors, each of which reacts to unique growth
factors, including the expanding regional, business and general
aviation market, heavy airframe maintenance, and military, space,
industrial gas turbines and other markets — businesses that are
expected to have continued growth through 2002 and beyond.

By building a balanced, strategic business portfolio, Goodrich
has become one of the most admired, diverse and best-performing
aerospace companies in the world. Underscoring our ability to grow
profitably on a sustained basis are our mix of products, markets and
customers, the balance we have achieved between original
equipment and aftermarket, and the exciting opportunities we have
in business and regional aircraft, safety systems and subsystems for
spacecraft and satellites.




Our roadmap strategy works
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team of Goodrich
employees from the
Aircraft Wheels and
Brakes Division in .
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Event — an event that
uses Lean continuous
improvement tools to
focus on elimination
of waste and creation

of value for the

customer.
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Processes that create value are deeply embedded within the Goodrich
culture. Strategic planning, value-based management, operational
excellence, innovation and business platform “roadmaps” are among
the carefully defined, cultivated and executed processes that deliver
value for customers and shareholders alike.

Moving from acquisition to platform When it comes to building global
platforms, for example, we have a proven record of transforming acqui-
sitions into sophisticated systems platforms with market leadership.

Our sensor systems platform is a prime example. Our 1990 acqui-
sition of Simmonds Precision provided an entry into this market, which
we quickly built upon by acquiring and developing other sensor tech-
nologies and companies, including Rosemount Aerospace, a leader in
sensing measurement technology for the aerospace industry. With
the addition of MEMS technology from Advanced MicroMachines in
1999, we created the ability to form very sophisticated micro-products,
including “smart” sensors for a wide variety of applications. Last
year we enhanced our capabilities with Humphrey, which expanded the
breadth of our product offerings and strengthened our positions in
military markets, such as unmanned aerial vehicles. By following our
“roadmap” process, we have become the global leader in aerospace
sensors and other important product platforms. The same process
enhances our offerings in new markets, such as satellite systems. Just

a few years ago, we had $5 million in space revenues. Today our space
revenues are $250 million and growing with products and technologies
ranging from earth, sun and star sensors that orient satellites to
optical payloads such as the Hubble Space Telescope.

Our businesses are a reflection of our strategic orientation
coupled with the strength of excellent execution on the part of our
operating units. Strategic planning is a core competency at Goodrich,
an ongoing, living process infused into how we do business. Our
culture of responsibility and accountability to execute strategy and
deliver results is embedded within each of our businesses, and in
each of our employees.

Planning and processes ensure success Processes in quality and inno-
vation are in place and generating significant results throughout the
enterprise. Lean manufacturing techniques and safety, health and envi-
ronmental initiatives are helping the bottom line, improving customer
responsiveness and safeguarding our employees and communities.
Innovation workshops that blend the best of Goodrich experience with
the expertise of outside resources reach deep into our organization.

Effective strategic processes are the core competencies of
Goodrich. We organize around them, and they are integral to our cul-
ture. They are the keys to ongoing value creation.
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Christine Probett
President, Aircraft Interior Products

Leibert Danielson
Vice President, New Products

Computer-aided modeling revolutionized the design process
and significantly reduced development costs for the A380
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evacuation slide.

Smart solutions for Airous
If the world's largest aircraft needs to be evacuated in
an emergency, critical systems must work without fail.
No wonder Airbus turned to Goodrich, the leading global
supplier of aircraft evacuation systems, to meet the design
demands for its new superjumbo jet, the A380. The task
was daunting: 18 slides for each 8o-foot-high twin-deck
plane — more in number and size than ever before. Six sec-
onds for the slides to inflate. Ninety seconds for up to 650
passengers to evacuate. Fortunately, by having the right
concepts, processes and technologies, Goodrich was up
to the challenge.

What started as a Goodrich BRITE innovation pro-
gram became a technological differentiation that drove
the A380 win. “Our unique inflation device resulted in a

system 10 percent lighter than existing slides — a critical
factor for such a large aircraft,” explains Christine Probett,
President of Aircraft Interior Products. “A passion for Lean
processes also drove operational excellence, slashing
design time, improving quality and lowering costs.”

This Lean manufacturing showcase has garnered
national attention, recently named for the second year
as one of IndustryWeek's “Best Plants in America.”

Adds Christine: “With the Airbus order, Goodrich is
launching the next generation of evacuation systems. This
is a major strategic win for us based on our innovative
technologies and our demonstrated manufacturing and

service process excellence.”

Goodrich
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Innovations with far-reaching solutions

i O
We're innevators

When temperatures drop, Goodrich goes to work. In fact, we've been
pioneering de-icing technologies since Charles Lindbergh was setting
world records. Today, our next generation IceHawk™ Ice Detection
System is raising the bar with a revolutionary approach to meeting
customer needs for faster, safer, more reliable wing ice detection.
Applications for this infrared detection technology are being exported
to markets outside aerospace, including potential products to make
roads and bridges safer.

Innovation a way of life At Goodrich, breakthrough innovations like
this are part of our culture. We systematically look for ways to lever-
age our technological strengths throughout aerospace — and beyond.
From inflatable passenger restraints to “smart” systems for fuel
measurement, to advanced avionics, we know a lot about innovation.
And we know it must be nurtured in numerous ways.

Building innovation excellence is a way of life at Goodrich — an
attitude and bias for action that drives everything we do. The heart of
our effort is a requirement that innovation be a central part of each
business unit's strategic plan, placing the responsibility for product
and technological development in the hands of those closest to cus-
tomers. Over the years, we have deployed a highly effective process,
based on best practices and internal development, to encourage

exploration beyond normal R&D efforts. All businesses follow the
same innovation process in developing new technologies, new and
improved processes, and advanced products. The Goodrich BRITE
(Breakthrough Innovation Thrust for Excellence) Program, a com-
petitive program for funding and managing high-risk proposals,
encourages new developments — often by multi-business collabora-
tive teams plus Goodrich Technical Centers.

Goodrich teaches innovation as a core management and cultural
change process. More than 300 senior managers from all business
functions are graduates of the company’s Management of Innovation
course. We launched a new course in mid-2001 to teach creative
problem-solving techniques, and it is a sellout.

Driving our growth As a result of these efforts, Goodrich thinks and
acts differently, redefining our efforts around what products do, not
what they are. Technological developments drive major product wins
— like the landing gear and next-generation evacuation systems for
the A380, new technologies for satellite systems, ejection seats, noise
suppression, fire suppression, materials processing, and reconnais-
sance and surveillance systems, and new market applications for
sensors and leading-edge technologies like MEMS. The net result? Our
new product and technology pipeline is the fullest it has ever been.




3R1TZ program sparks innovation

“Our goal is to develop a continuing stream of advanced
products and processes,” says Dr. Jerry Lee, Goodrich’s
Senior Vice President of Technology and Innovation,
“This requires not only incremental but also distinctive,
game-changing technologies, and a culture that encour-

ages new ideas. Our innovation initiative is the catalyst

that helps us take giant leaps in that direction.”
A cornerstone of Goodrich’s innovation initiative

is its BRITE program, which provides mitlions of dollars

annually to business units who compete successfully for
these resources based on the breakthrough potential and
| commercial promise of their ideas.

“Our ability to innovate and create new technologies

and products is at the center of our success,” Jerry

explains. “The BRITE program ensures that our best ideas
are funded and managed to reach the market profitably.
it has won broad acceptance throughout the company
because it produces concrete results. | am constantly
amazed at the number of great ideas we see each year.”

An increasing number of successful BRITE projects ‘
are collaborative efforts among different Goodrich busi- ‘
nesses. These frequently leverage multiple Goodrich
technologies and competencies, leading to systems \
rather than components.

“Not all BRITE programs will succeed, and we accept
that," Jerry says. “Breakthrough projects are by definition !
high risk. They are intended to reshape our business in :
ways that can't even be fully imagined today.” |

Jerry Lee
Senior Vice President,
Technology & Innovation
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Chairman and CEQ
Dave Burner (center)
and the Goodrich sen-
ior management team
are focused on creat-

ing shareholder value.
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L. Burner, Stephen

RN

N

'
e

.
NN
R

\\\\
O\
NS,

\,

R. Huggins

AR

GO,

Standing (left to right):
Marshall O. Larsen,
Ernest F. Schaub,

Ulrich R. Schmidt

Strong financial performance. Global leadership. Balanced business
mix. Value-creating processes. Innovation for aerospace and beyond.
What does it all add up to?

The new Goodrich. A transformed and dynamic company with
seasoned and experienced management. An aerospace systems com-
pany with tier-one status, great products and solid competencies. A
company with deep roots in technology and innovation, whose prod-
ucts make the world of aviation safer and more efficient. A company
whose people tackle the most difficult engineering challenges imag-
inable, producing systems that must perform flawlessly in extremely
demanding environments where failure is never an option. A company
focused on delivering consistent, superior shareholder value.

Think more about Goodrich. We have a strong record of financial
performance, delivering record results year after year, and a spirit of
achievement, confidence and aspiration to continue that success.

Think more about our global leadership. Our world-class products
can be found on virtually every flying machine in the world, and those
in space. From jumbo jets to stealth bombers. From helicopters to

Joint Strike Fighter

the Space Shuttle. Commercial. Military. Regional and Business.
Ceneral Aviation. If it flies, it's likely a piece of us flies with it.

Think more about our balanced business mix. We have diversified
products, customers and markets: landing systems, electronic sys-
tems, engine and safety systems, aerostructures, technical services
and more for Boeing, Airbus, Bombardier, Embraer, Cessna, GE,
Rolls-Royce and others. Our attractive balance between original
equipment and aftermarket products and services allows us to con-
tinue to grow through cycles of commercial aircraft deliveries.

Think more about our value-creating processes. From “roadmap-
ping,” strategic planning, Lean manufacturing, value management
and innovation, we have processes that have created one of the most
admired, diverse and best-performing aerospace companies in the
world. One with deep expertise in aerospace markets, processes
and relationships.

Think more about our innovations. We solve customer problems
and make amazing things happen. Brakes that can stop almost soo
tons of metal, quickly and safely. Steerable landing gear that makes it




Engineered indusirial Producis snin-off under way

Goodrich expects to complete the previously announced date for the distribution. EnPro’s Form 10 Registration !

spin-off to shareholders of its Engineered Industrial Statement relating to the spin-off was filed with the SEC 1

| Products business in the second quarter of 2002. This on January 29, 2002. EnPro intends to apply to list its {

} transaction is intended to enhance shareholder value common stock on The New York Stock Exchange. EnPro ‘

by creating two strong publicly traded companies, each will include substantially all the assets and liabilities of the !

3‘ focused on its own customers, products and markets. Engineered Industrial Products business, including the |
| i Shareholders will receive one share in the new industrial associated asbestos liabilities and related insurance.
| : company, which has been named EnPro Industries, Inc., The experienced EnPro management team will be led

for every five Goodrich shares they own as of the record by Ernie Schaub as President and CEO. 3
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possible for mammoth jets to turn on a dime. Innovations that save
lives, like nexti-generation ejection seats and evacuation slides, and
that give pilots the big picture — such as scanning the skies for
approaching storms or onrushing traffic and reading the terrain for
possible hazards.

Think more about our prospects. We have performance and poten-
tial that put Goodrich in the top tier of the aerospace industry. With
our track record of financial performance, balanced portfolic, global
business franchises, product innovation, experienced management i
team and focus on creating shareholder value, the prospects for con- ;

tinued profitable growth are compelling.

Think more about Goodrich. We're a company committed to being
the best and to delivering value to our shareholders, customers and i

employees. We've charted our future, and we know how to get there. r r
We've taken the necessary actions to position our company to win.
We have confidence in our abilities and in the future of aerospace. It's
an industry we love and a future we're committed to. We're positioned

{ “The Goodrich Health and Usage

|
' Monitoring System will improve the

) ) ) performance of military helicopters

better than ever to build on our success — and to deliver superior .
‘ | and save millions of dollars for tax-

shareholder value. ‘ i

payers.”

Goodrich. Think more about us.

— Senator Patrick Leahy (D-VT)
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Administration, General Counsel

Ulrich R. Schmidt
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Financial summary"

For the Year {in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 % Change
Sales $ 418y $ 370 131 %
Segment operating income® $ 644 $ 504 8.5%
Segment operating margins® 15.4% 16.0% —
Net income® $ 306 $ 266 15.0%
Cash flow from operations $ 383 $ 168 127.5 %
Free cash flow™t $ 223 $ 230 (3.0)%
Return on average shareholders’ equity® 23.7% 21.0% -—
Net Income per Share®

Basic $ 297 $ 213 17.4%

Diluted $ 287 $ 243 181 %
Dividends per share $ 110 $ 10 —
Shares outstanding 101.7 102.3 nj/a
(1) Engineered industrial Products and Performance Materials treated as discontinued operations.

(2) Excludes special items (see additional discussion of special items on page 25 of the accompanying annual report to shareholders).
(3) See footnote (3) on page 21 of the accompanying annual report to shareholders for the Company's definition of free cash flow.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Goodrich Corporation included elsewhere in
this document.

This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations contains forward-looking statements. See “forward-looking state-
ments” for a discussion of the uncertainties, risks and assumptions associated
with these statements.

As discussed below, the company’s Engineered Industrial Products and Perfor-
mance Materiofs segments have been accounted for as discontinued operations.
Unless otherwise noted herein, disclosures pertain only to the Company’s
continuing operations.

Overview

Goodrich Corporation (the “Company” or “Goodrich”) is a leading
worldwide supplier of aerospace components, systems and services
serving the commercial, military, regional, business, general avia-
tion and space markets. The Company’s business is conducted on a
global basis with manufacturing, service and sales undertaken in
various locations throughout the world.

Due to the sale of the Performance Materials (“PM”) segment in
2001, as well as the intended spin-off of the Engineered Industrial
Products (“EIP”) segment in 2002, the Company has redefined
its segments. Its operations are now classified into four report-
able business segments: Aerostructures and Aviation Technical
Services, Landing Systems, Engine and Safety Systems, and
Electronic Systems.

Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services Aerostructures is a lead-
ing supplier of nacelles, pylons, thrust reversers and related aircraft
engine housing components. The Aviation Technical Services Division
performs comprehensive total aircraft maintenance, repair, overhaul
and modification services for many commercial airlines, independent
operators, aircraft leasing companies and airfreight carriers.

Landing Systems Landing Systems provides systems and compo-
nents pertaining to aircraft taxi, take-off, landing and stopping.
Several divisions within the group are linked by their ability to con-
tribute to the integration, design, manufacture and service of entire
aircraft undercarriage systems, including sensors, landing gear,
certain brake controls and wheels and brakes.

Engine and Safety Systems Engine and Safety Systems produces
engine and fuel controls, pumps, fuel delivery systems, as well as
structural and rotating components such as disks, blisks, shafts
and airfoils for both aerospace and industrial gas turbine applica-
tions. This group also produces aircraft evacuation, de-icing and
passenger restraint systems, as well as ejection seats and crew and
attendant seating.

Electronic Systems Electronic Systems produces a wide array
of products that provide flight performance measurements, flight
management, and control and safety data. included are a variety
of sensors systems that measure and manage aircraft fuel and
monitor oil debris; engine, transmission and structural health;
and aircraft motion control systems. The group’s products also
include instruments and avionics, warning and detection systems,
ice detection systems, test equipment, aircraft lighting sys-
tems, landing gear cables and harnesses, satellite control, data
management and payload systems, launch and missile telemetry

systems, airborne surveillance and reconnaissance systems and
laser warning systems.

2001 Results
The following table summarizes the Company’s results of opera-
tions for 2001 and 2000.

Year-Ended December 31,

2001" 2000%
(in millions) 2001  Adjusted 2000  Adjusted
Sales $ 41845 $ 41845 |$3,7005 $3,7005
Segment Operating
Ihcome $ 4448 $ 6441 |$ 35625 $ 5936
Income from
Continuing
Operations $ 1769 $ 3063 [$ 2352 $§ 265§
income from
Discontinued
Operations 12.3 — 90.7 —
Net ncome $ 2892 § 3063 |$ 3259 $ 26535
Diluted EPS $ 276 $ 287 |% 304 $ 243
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities | $ 3826 "% 1682
Free Cash Flow® $ 2225 $ 2295

(1) Results exclude the effect of a $107.3 million charge ($71.3 million after-
tax), or $0.67 a diluted share for merger-related and consolidation costs,

a $94.5 million charge ($62.8 million after-tax), or $0.59 a diluted share
recorded in cost of sales for inventory adjustments and a $7.2 million gain
($4.7 million after-tax), or $0.04 a diluted share from the sale of a portion
of the Company'’s interest in a business. Results also exclude the after-tax
effect of income from discontinued operations ($112.3 million, or $1.11 a
diluted share).

(2) Results exclude the effect of a $44.2 million charge ($28.6 million after-
tax), or $0.26 a diluted share for merger-related and consolidation costs
and a $2.5 million charge ($1.7 million after-tax), or $0.01 a diluted share
related to an impairment loss on businesses held for disposal. Results also
exclude the after-tax effect of income from discontinued operations ($g0.7
million, or $0.88 a diluted share).

(3) Free cash flow is defined as operating cash flow adjusted for cash pay-
ments related to special items less capital expenditures. Free cash flow
in 2000 also excludes a $113.7 million payment to the IRS related to an
income tax assessmment and the associated accrued interest. The Company
believes free cash flow provides meaningful additional information on our
operating results and on our ability to service our long-term debt and other
fixed obligations and to fund our continued growth. Free cash flow should
not be construed as an alternative to operating income(loss) as deter-
mined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States (“GAAP”), as an alternative to cash flow from operating
activities (as determined in accordance with GAAP), or as a measure of
liquidity. Because free cash flow is not calculated in the same manner by
alt companies, our presentation may not be comparable to other similarly
titled measures reported by other companies.

Special items, as used throughout this document, include merger-
related and consolidation costs, gains or losses on the sale of
businesses, results of discontinued operations, asset impairment
charges and other restructuring costs.

Sales Sales increased $484.0 million, or 13.1 percent, from $3,700.5
million in 2000 to $4,184.5 million in 2001. The increase was prima-
rily attributable to increased volumes in almost all of the Company'’s
businesses as well as from acquisitions (approximately $1go million).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

These increases were partially offset by lower sales in the Company’s
landing gear overhaul and aircraft maintenance businesses.

The increase in sales at the Company's core businesses was due
primarily to higher sales to the commercial transport OE; regional,
business and general aviation OE and aftermarket; and industrial
gas turbine markets in 2001. The decrease in sales at the
Company's legacy landing gear and aircraft maintenance busi-
nesses was due mostly to reduced work as airlines sought to defer
or reduce discretionary maintenance and overhaul work and as the
Company decided not to accept certain work due to pricing and
profitability concerns.

Segment Operating Income See discussion within the Business
Segment Performance section below.

income from Continuing Operations, Excluding Special ltems Income
from continuing operations, excluding special items, increased
$40.8 million, from $265.5 million in 2000 to $306.3 million in
2001. The increase was due primarily to the increased sales noted
above and an increase in interest income attributable to the
payment-in-kind (“PIK”) note ($17.6 million — see Note F to the
Consolidated Financial Statements), partially offset by increased
sales incentives and additional income tax expense due to higher
pre-tax earnings and a higher effective tax rate in 2001.

These results exclude the effect of a $107.3 million charge for
merger-related and consolidation costs, a $94.5 million charge
related primarily to reducing the Company’s investment in the B717
program and in its Super 27 re-engining program, and a $7.2 mil-
lion gain from the sale of a portion of the Company's interest in a
business. See additional discussion below under Restructuring and
Consolidation Activities.

Income from Discontinued Operations The increase between periods
was mostly due to the gain on sale of the PM segment recognized
in 2001 of $93.5 million, partially offset by reduced earnings at both
the PM (approximately $42 million) and EIP (approximately $30 mil-
lion) segments. The decrease in earnings, period over period,
attributable to PM was primarily due to the sale of the business in
February 2001 (two months of earnings in 2001 versus 12 months in
2000). The decrease in earnings attributable to EIP was mostly due
to the factors noted below.

EIP sales decreased $21.4 million, or 3.2 percent, from $663.3 mil-
lion in 2000 to $641.9 million in 2001. Excluding the September
2001 acquisition of Glacier Bearings, sales declined by approxi-
mately 7 percent with only Fairbanks Morse Engine showing an
increase in sales. The increase in sales at Fairbanks Morse related
primarily to higher shipments to the commercial power generation
market that generally carry lower margins than sales to its other
markets. Weakness in the chemical, petroleum, pulp and paper,
heavy-duty vehicle and general industrial markets was the primary
factor behind the decrease in sales at the segment’s other busi-
nesses. Average capacity utilization in U.S. factories fell to 20-year
lows in 2001 while domestic industrial production has fallen
each month since mid-2000. These factors have contributed to a
cutback in capital spending and delays in scheduled maintenance
programs throughout the process industries. In addition to the

lower volumes noted above, profitability was also negatively
impacted by the segment’s inability in the short-term to reduce
fixed costs at the same rate as sales declined, increased foreigh
competition due to the strong U.S. dollar, which drove average
pricing levels down in certain product lines, and an unfavorable
mix of products sold. Restructuring charges (before tax) amounted
to $4.6 million and $1.4 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities Operating cash flow
increased by $214.4 million, from $168.2 million in 2000 to $382.6
million in 2001. The increase was primarily due to a $113.7 million
payment to the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS") in 2000, increased
cash earnings from continuing operations, lower merger-related
and consolidation cost payments and lower tax payments, partially
offset by a deterioration in working capital during 2001.

Free Cash Flow Free cash flow decreased by $7.0 million, from $229.5
million in 2000 to $222.5 million in 2001. The decrease was prima-
rily due to increased capital expenditures and an increase in working
capital, mostly offset by increased earnings and lower tax payments.

Qutlook

The Company expects 2002 to be a challenging year for the
commercial aerospace industry. Boeing and Airbus have both
announced that new commercial aircraft delivery estimates for
2002 will be lower than 2001, and most airlines have announced
reductions in their aircraft fleet sizes, as compared to 2001. To
develop its outlook, the Company assumed new aircraft production
rates based upon the announced plans of Boeing, Airbus and the
regional jet manufacturers. The Company also has assumed that
airline capacity reductions will result in more than a 10 percent
decline in 2002 aftermarket sales versus 2001.

Using these assumptions, the Company expects that its diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations in 2002, excluding
special items, will be in the range of $2.45 to $2.55. This range com-
pares to the $2.87 per diluted share, excluding special items, the
Company achieved in 2001. The 2002 estimate includes the net
benefit from eliminating goodwill amortization under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 142 and expected
higher levels of pension expense and savings from the restructuring
initiatives discussed below. Revenue is expected to be approx-
imately 5 to 10 percent lower than the $4.2 billion of revenue
recorded in 2001. The Company also anticipates generating
between $275 and $300 million of free cash flow. The Company
expects earnings per diluted share from continuing operations,
excluding special items, for the first quarter of 2002 to be between
$0.50 and $0.55 per diluted share. The Company expects the first
quarter of 2002 to be the weakest quarter of the year and believes
that each subsequent quarter in 2002 will show sequential
improvement. The Company also believes that the domestic econ-
omy and airline travel will recover during 2002.

Restructuring and Consolidation Activities

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the company incurred various
consolidation and restructuring-related charges of $191 million
($127 million after-tax), including $187 million from continuing
operations and $4 million from discontinued operations. For the




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

full year 2001, such charges approximated $207 million ($137
million after-tax), including $202 million from continuing opera-
tions and $5 million from discontinued operations. These charges
were largely related to the anticipated decline in sales to the
commercial air transport market resulting from the terrorist attacks
of Septemnber 11th. As previously announced, these charges were
primarily related to aerospace facility consolidations, a significant
workforce reduction (approximately 2,400 positions), asset impair-
ment charges and costs associated with reducing the company’s
investment in the Boeing 717 program and in the Super 727
re-engining program. The non-cash component of these charges is
expected to be about 70 percent of the pre-tax amount. These activ-
ities are expected to be largely completed by the end of 2002.
After completion, it is expected that the Company’s aerospace busi-
nesses will realize annual pre-tax savings in excess of $125 million
as a result of these actions.

The Company expects to incur additional restructuring and consol-
idation charges during 2002 of approximately $20 million to $25
million based on actions of which it is currently aware.

Spin-Off of Engineered Industrial Products Segment

[n September 2001, the Company announced that its Board of
Directors had approved in principle the tax-free spin-off of its EIP
segment to shareholders. The spin-off will be effected through a
tax-free distribution to the Company's shareholders of all of the
capital stock of EnPro Industries, Inc. (“EnPro”), a newly formed
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The EIP segment is currently owned by Coltec Industries Inc
(“Coltec”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Goodrich. Prior to the
Distribution, Coltec’s aerospace business will assume all intercom-
pany balances outstanding between Coltec and Goodrich and
Coltec will then transfer to Goodrich by way of a dividend all of the
assets, liabilities and operations of Coltec’s aerospace business,
including the assumed intercompany balances. Following the spin-
off, Coltec will be a wholly owned subsidiary of EnPro and Coltec’s
aerospace businesses will be owned by Goodrich.

It is anticipated that the $150 million of outstanding Coltec Capital
Trust convertible trust preferred securities will remain outstanding
as a part of the EnPro capital structure. Certain payments with
respect to these securities are guaranteed by Coltec and the
Company, and are expected to be guaranteed by EnPro. Following
the spin-off, these securities will be convertible into a combination
of Goodrich and EnPro common stock. Separately, the Company
expects that it will offer to exchange the $300 million of Coltec’s 7.5
percent Senjor Notes due 2008 for similar Company debt securities
prior to the spin-off. Assuming this exchange offer is fully sub-
scribed, EnPro will have total debt and convertible trust preferred
securities of approximately $165 million at the time of the spin-off.
The Company also contemplates that a new EnPro senior secured
revolving credit facility will be in place after the spin-off.

Although the spin-off is subject to certain conditions, no consents
are required from the Company’s security holders or the holders of
Coltec’s outstanding debt or convertible trust preferred securities
to complete the spin-off. The Company expects to complete the
spin-off in the.second quarter of 2002.

The spin-off of the EIP segment represents the disposal of a
segment under APB Opinion No. 30 (“APB 30”). Accordingly, EIP is
being accounted for as a discontinued operation and the revenues,
costs and expenses, assets and liabilities, and cash flows of EIP
have been segregated in the Company's Consolidated Statement of
Income, Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows.

Divestiture of Performance Materials Segment

On February 28, 2001, the Company completed the sale of its PM
segment to an investor group led by AEA I[nvestors, Inc. (the
“Buyer”) for approximately $1.4 billion. Total net proceeds, after
anticipated tax payments and transaction costs, included approxi-
mately $1 billion in cash and $172 million in debt securities issued
by the Buyer (see additional discussion regarding the debt securi-
ties received in Note F of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements). The transaction resulted in an after-tax gain of $93.5
million and is subject to certain post-closing adjustments (e.g.,
working capital adjustments).

The Company has calculated a $25 million working capital adjust-
ment in its favor, which has been considered in the after-tax gain
noted above. The Buyer is disputing the Company’s working capital
adjustment and has asserted that the Company owes the Buyer
approximately $10 million under the purchase and sale agreement.
Should the parties not be able to settle their differences, the dis-
puted matters will be forwarded to an independent third party for
resolution. Such resolution will be final and binding on all parties.
The Company expects to finalize the working capital adjustment
during 2002.

Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, the Company has retained
certain assets and liabilities (primarily pension, postretirement
and environmental liabilities) of the PM segment. The Company
has also agreed to indemnify the buyer for liabilities arising from
certain events as defined in the agreement. Such indemnification
is not expected to be material to the Company’s financial condi-
tion, but could be material to the Company’s results of operations
in a given period.

The disposition of the PM segment also represented the disposal
of a segment under APB 30. Accordingly, PM is being accounted for
as a discontinued operation and the revenues, costs and expenses,
assets and liabilities, and cash flows have been segregated in the
Company's Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated
Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Share Repurchase Program
On September 17, 2001, the Company announced a program to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock and has pur-
chased 2.5 million shares through December 31, 2001. The total
cost of these shares was approximately $50 million with an average
price of $20.29 per share.

Dividend

The Company’s current dividend level is expected to be reviewed in
early 2002 by the Company’s Board of Directors in connection with
the EIP spin-off with the intent of adjusting it to a level consistent
with that of a post-spin peer group.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Results of Operations
Total Company

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Sales:
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 1,544 | $ 14555 $ 14769
Landing Systems 1,149.1 1,057.7 1,060.6
Engine and Safety Systems 762.6 644.4 594.4
Electronic Systems 758.4 542.9 514.3

Total sales $ 4,845 | $ 37005 $ 3,646.2
Operating and Net Income:
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 2237 |$ 2000 $ 2168
Landing Systems 153.1 149.0 1471
Engine and Safety Systems 131.9 117.5 102.2
Electronic Systems 135.4 118.1 g5.6
Segment operating income 644 593.6 561.7
Merger-related and

consolidation costs (107.3) (44.2) (228.3)
Unusual inventory adjustments (94.5) — —
Corporate General and

Administrative Costs (57.7) (59.7) (59.3)

Total operating income 384.6 489.7 274.
Net interest expense 83.7) (102.1) (84.3)
Other income (expense) — net (19.2) (20.6) (4.8)
Income tax expense (94-3) (121.3) (88.6)
Distribution on trust

preferred securities (10.5) (10.5) (10.5)
Income from continuing operations 176.9 235.2 85.9
Income from discontinued

Operations — net of taxes 123 90.7 83.7

Net income $ 2892 |$ 3259 $ 169.6

Fluctuations in sales and segment operating income are discussed
within the Business Segment Performance section below.

Merger-Related and Consolidation Costs: The Company has recorded
merger-related and consolidation costs in each of the last three
years. These costs are discussed in detail above and in Note C of
the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Unusual Inventory Adjustments: These costs are classified within cost
of sales and relate primarily to inventory adjustments associated
with reducing the Company's investment in the Boeing 717 program
and in its Super 27 re-engining program due to reduced expectations
for these programs. The reduced expectations for the Boeing 717
program relate directly to Boeing’s announced production schedule
reductions for this program during the fourth quarter of 2001, while
the Super 27 reduction in expectations is primarily due to deterio-
rating economic conditions and the September 11th terrorist attacks.

Corporate General and Administrative Costs: Corporate general and
administrative costs, as a percent of sales, slightly decreased in
2001. Such costs, as a percent of sales, were 1.4 percent, 1.6 per-
cent and 1.6 percent in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The
reduction in costs in 2001 was primarily due to lower incentive
compensation costs due to the Company’s depressed stock price at
the end of the year, partially offset by rebranding costs incurred dur-
ing 20071 associated with the Goodrich name change.

Net Interest Expense: Net interest expense decreased $18.4 million
from $102.1 million in 2000 to $83.7 million in 2001. The significant
decrease between periods was due to the sale of PM during the
first quarter of 2001. The Company was able to significantly reduce
its short-term indebtedness with the proceeds from the sale
and will record interest income going forward on the PIK debt
securities issued by the buyer. The Company recorded $17.6 million
of PIK interest income during 2001. See additional discussion of
the PIK securities in Note F of the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Net interest expense increased by $17.8 million from $84.3 mil-
lion in 1999 to $102.1 million in 2000. The increase is primarily
attributable to increased borrowings in 2000 as a result of share
repurchases, primarily in the fourth quarter, and acquisitions.

Other Income (Expense) — Net: The table below allows other income
expense) — net to be evaluated on a comparable basis.

{in millions) 2001 2000 1999
As reported $ (92)!{3% (206) $ (4.8)
Gains/(losses) on sale of

businesses and demutualization

of insurance companies 7.2 (o.5) 15.2
Adjusted Other income

(expense) — net $ (264)|% (201) $ (20.0)

Included within other income (expense) — net are gains and losses
from the sale of businesses, as well as gains in 1999 from the demu-
tualization of certain insurance carriers. Excluding these items, other
income (expense) ~ net was expense of $26.4 million, $20.1 million
and $20.0 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase
in costs in 2001 was primarily due to increased retiree healthcare
benefit costs associated with previously disposed of businesses —
mostly related to the PM disposition during the first quarter of 2001
(approximately $7 million), and increased earnings attributable to
minority interests {approximately $5 million), partially offset by higher
income from subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method
{approximately $2 million} and lower costs associated with executive
life insurance programs (approximately $3 million).

The increase in costs between 1999 and 2000 was primarily attrib-
utable to lower income from subsidiaries accounted for under
the equity method of accounting and increased retiree health care
benefit costs associated with previously disposed of businesses,
mostly offset by lower earnings attributable to minority interests.

Income Tax Expense: The Company’s effective tax rate from contin-
uing operations was 33.5 percent, 33.1 percent and 47.9 percent
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in the 2001
effective tax rate was primarily attributable to earnings of foreign
operations that were subject to taxation at higher rates than U.S.
earnings. The decreased rate in 2000 was primarily attributable
to significant non-deductible merger-related costs incurred in 1999
that significantly increased the effective tax rate in that year, lower
state and local taxes and increased benefits from R&D and foreign
sales credits.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income from Continuing Operations: Income from continuing
operations included various charges or gains (referred to as spe-
cial items) which affected reported earnings. Excluding the effects
of special items, income from continuing operations in 2001 was
$306.3 million, or $2.87 per diluted share, compared with $265.5
million, or $2.43 per diluted share in 2000 and $253.9 million, or
$2.23 per diluted share in 1999. The following table presents the
impact of special items on earnings per diluted share. Additional
information regarding merger-related and consolidation costs can
be found above and in Note C of the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Earnings Per Diluted Share 2001 2000 1999
Income from continuing

operations $§ 165 1% 216 $ o076
Net (gain) loss on sold

businesses (0.04) 0.0} (0.02)

Restructuring and consolidation
costs 1.26 0.26 1.49

Income from continuing
operations, excluding
special items $ 287 |5 243 § 223

Income from continuing operations for the year ended December
31, 2001 included a $107.3 million charge ($71.3 million after-tax),
or $0.67 a diluted share for merger-related and consolidation costs,
a $94.5 million charge ($62.8 million after-tax), or $0.59 a diluted
share, related primarily to reducing the Company’s investment in
the B717 program and in its Super 27 re-engining program and a
$7.2 million gain ($4.7 million after-tax), or $0.04 a diluted share,
from the sale of a portion of the Company’s interest in a business.

Income from continuing operations for the year ended December
31, 2000 included $28.6 million ($0.26 per share) of merger-related
and consolidation costs and a $1.7 million ($0.01 per share) impair-
ment loss on a business held for sale.

Income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31,
1959 includes (i} $162.2 million ($1.42 per share) for costs associated
with the Coltec merger; (ii) a net gain on the sale of businesses
of $2.4 million ($.02 per share); and (iii) a charge of $8.2 million
(3.07 per share) related to segment restructuring activities.

(in millions)
Income from
Discontinued Operations 2001 2000 1999
PM $ 914 1% 396 3 309
Special items — PM (93.5) (o) 24.9
(21) 395 55-8
EIP 20.9 51.1 52.8
Special items — EIP 2.9 0.9 (0.8)
23.8 52.0 52.0
Total income from
discontinued operations $ m23 |$ 907 $ 837
Total income from discontinued
operations — excluding
special items $ 217 /% 915 $ 1078

Income from Discontinued Operations: Income from discontinued
operations increased $21.6 million from $90.7 million in 2000 to
$112.3 million in 2001. Income from discontinued operations,
excluding special items, decreased $69.8 million, from $g1.5 mil-
lion in 2000 to $21.7 million in 2001. The decrease in earnings,
period over period, attributable to PM was primarily due to the sale
of the business in February 2001 (two months of earnings in 2001
versus 12 months in 2000). The decrease in earnings attributable
to EIP was mostly due to the factors noted below.

EIP sales decreased $21.4 million, or 3.2 percent, from $663.3 mil-
lion in 2000 to $641.9 million in 2001. Excluding the September
2001 acquisition of Glacier Bearings, sales declined by approxi-
mately 7 percent with only Fairbanks Morse Engine showing an
increase in sales. The increase in sales at Fairbanks Morse related
primarily to higher shipments to the commercial power generation
market that generally carry lower margins than sales to its other
markets. Weakness in the chemical, petroleum, pulp and paper,
heavy-duty vehicle and general industrial markets was the primary
factor behind the decrease in sales at the segment’s other busi-
nesses. Average capacity utilization in U.S. factories fell to 20-year
lows in 2001 while domestic industrial production has fallen each
month since mid-2000. These factors have contributed to a cut-
back in capital spending and delays in scheduled maintenance
programs throughout the process industries. In addition to the
lower volumes noted above, profitability was also negatively
impacted by the segment’s inability to reduce fixed costs at the
same rate as sales declined, increased foreign competition due to
the strong U.S. dollar, which drove average pricing levels down in
certain product lines, and an unfavorable mix of products sold.
Restructuring charges (before tax) amounted to $4.6 million and
$1.4 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Income from discontinued operations increased $7.0 million from
$83.7 million in 1999 to $g90.7 million in 2000. Income from
discontinued operations, excluding special items, decreased $16.3
million, from $167.8 million in 1999 to $91.5 million in 2000. The
decrease was primarily due to lower net income from the Company's
former chemicals business due primarily to significantly higher raw
material and energy costs (primarily toluene, PVC and natural gas),
lower sales due to reduced volumes and prices and increased
interest expense. These decreases were only partially offset by vol-
ume strength in certain other product lines (primarily Carbopol,
thermoplastic polyurethane and rubber chemicals), reductions in
manufacturing/overhead costs and a favorable sales mix.

Special items related to discontinued operations of PM, net of
tax, included $93.5 million related to the gain on sale of PM in 2001;
$0.1 million of income related to a net adjustment of amounts
previously recorded for consolidation activities in 2000; and $24.9
million of costs related to restructuring activities in 1999.

Special items related to discontinued operations of EIP, net of tax,
included $2.9 million and $0.9 million of costs in 2001 and 2000,
respectively, related to restructuring and consolidation activities
and $0.8 million in 1999 related to a gain on the sale of a business
($3.2 million) net of additional restructuring and consolidation
activities ($2.4 million).

Goodrich 2001 Annual Report

[
[¢7]



MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Acquisitions

Pooling-of-interests

On July 12, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Coltec
Industries Inc (“Coltec”) by exchanging 35.5 million shares of
Goodrich common stock for all of the common stock of Coltec.
Each share of Coltec common stock was exchanged for .56 of one
share of Goodrich common stock. The merger was accounted for
as a pooling-of-interests, and all prior period financial statements
were restated to include the financial information of Coltec as
though Coltec had always been a part of Goodrich.

Purchases

The following acquisitions were recorded using the purchase
method of accounting. Their results of operations have been
included in the Company’s results since their respective dates of
acquisition. Acquisitions made by businesses included within the
PM and EIP segments are not discussed below.

During 2001, the Company acquired a manufacturer of aerospace
lighting systems and related electronics, as well as the assets
of a designer and manufacturer of inertial sensors used for guid-
ance and control of unmanned vehicles and precision-guided
systems. Total consideration aggregated $114.4 million, of which
$101.6 million represented goodwill and other intangible assets.
The purchase price allocation for these acquisitions has been based
on preliminary estimates.

During 2000, the Company acquired a manufacturer of earth and
sun sensors for attitude determination and control ejection seat
technology; a manufacturer of fuel nozzles; a developer of avionics
and displays; the assets of a developer of precision electro-optical
instrumentation serving the space and military markets; an equity
interest in a joint venture focused on developing and operating
a comprehensive open electronic marketplace for aerospace after-
market products and services; a manufacturer of precision and
large optical systems, laser encoding systems and visual surveil-
lance systems for day and night use and a supplier of pyrotechnic
devices for space, missile, and aircraft systems. Total consideration
aggregated $242.6 million, of which $105.4 million represented
goodwill and other intangible assets.

During 1999, the Company acquired a manufacturer of spacecraft
attitude determination and control systems and sensor and imaging
instruments; the remaining 5o percent interest in a joint venture,
located in Singapore, that overhauls and repairs thrust reversers,
nacelles and nacelle components; an ejection seat business; and a
manufacturer and developer of micro-electromechanical systems,
which integrate electrical and mechanical components to form
“stmart” sensing and control devices. Total consideration aggre-
gated $56.5 million, of which $55.0 million represented goodwill.

The purchase agreements for the manufacturer and developer of
micro-electromechanical systems provides for additional consider-
ation to be paid over six years based on a percentage of net sales.
The additional consideration for the first five years, however, is
guaranteed not to be less than $3.5 million. As the $3.5 million
of additional consideration is not contingent on future events, it
has been included in the purchase price and allocated to the net
assets acquired. All additional contingent amounts payable under
the purchase agreement will be recorded as additional purchase
price/goodwill when earned.

The impact of these acquisitions was not material in relation to
the Company's results of operations. Consequently, pro forma
information is not presented.

Dispositions

During 2001, the Company sold a minority interest in one of
its businesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $7.2 million, which has
been reported in other income (expense), net.

During 2000, the Company sold a product line of one of its busi-
nesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $2.0 million, which has been
reported in other income (expense), net.

During 1999, the Company sold all or a portion of its interest in two
businesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $6.8 million, which has
been reported in other income (expense), net.

Business Segment Performance

Segment Analysis

Due to the sale of the Company's PM segment, as well as
the intended spin-off of the Company’s E{P segment, the Com-
pany has redefined its segments in accordance with SFAS 131.
The Company's operations are now classified into four report-
able business segments: Aerostructures and Aviation Technical
Services, Landing Systems, Engine and Safety Systems and
Electronic Systems.

An expanded analysis of sales and operating income by business
segment follows.

Segment operating income, as recorded, is total segment revenue
reduced by operating expenses directly identifiable with that busi-
ness segment. Segment operating income, as adjusted, is total
segment revenue reduced by operating expenses directly iden-
tifiable with that business segment, except for merger-related
and consolidation costs and unusual inventory adjustments which
are presented separately (see further discussion of merger-related
and consolidation costs and unusual inventory adjustments in
Note C and Note L, respectively, to the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements).
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2001 Compared with 2000

% of Sales
(in millions) 2001 2000 % Change 2001 2000
Sales:
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 15144 $ 1,455.5 4.0
Landing Systems 1,149.1 1,057.7 8.6
Engine and Safety Systems 762.6 644.4 18.3
Electronic Systems 758.4 542.9 39.7
Total Sales $ 41845 $ 3,7005 13.1
Segment Operating Income, as recorded:
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 94.1 $ 2053 (54.2) 6.2 14.1
Landing Systems 108.4 123.7 (12.4) 9.4 1.7
Engine and Safety Systems 114.2 115.8 (1.4) 15.0 18.0
Electronic Systems 128.1 17.7 8.8 16.9 21.7
Segment Operating Income $ 44438 $ 5625 (20.9) 10.6 15.2
Segment Operating Income, as adjusted:
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 2237 $ 209.0 7.0 14.8 14.4
Landing Systems 153.1 149.0 2.8 13.3 141
Engine and Safety Systems 131.9 117.5 12.3 17.3 18.2
Electronic Systems 135.4 181 14.6 17.9 21.8
Segment Operating Income $ 644 $ 5936 8.5 15.4 16.0

Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services sales increased $58.9
million, or 4.0 percent, from $1,455.5 million during 2000 to
$1,514.4 million in 2001. The increase was due to a significant
increase in aerostructures-related sales (approximately $92 mil-
lion), offset by lower sales at the segment’s aviation technical
services businesses (approximately $33 million). The segment’s
aviation technical services business performs comprehensive total
aircraft maintenance, repair, modification and overhaul work. Most
of the decrease in sales in this business unit was attributable to
lower aircraft maintenance work, period over period.

The increase in aerostructures-related sales (nacelles, pylons,
thrust reversers and related engine housing components and serv-
ices) was primarily due to rate increases on the CFM 56 (A319, A320
and A321 programs), PW4000, B717-200, and V2500 programs,
higher aftermarket spares sales, increased aftermarket services and
spares sales and several new programs (C-5 Pylon, F-15). Partially
offsetting these increases was a decrease in aftermarket sales on
the Super 27 program, as well as rate decreases on the CFM56-5
(A340) and RRs35-E4 programs.

Operating income, as adjusted, increased $14.7 million, or 7.0 per-
cent, from $20g9.0 million in 2000 to $223.7 million in 2001. The
increase was driven by the increase in sales noted above, produc-
tivity improvements on several aerostructures programs and
reduced non-recurring engineering costs associated with the ter-
minated X-33 program. Partially offsetting these increases were
additional costs associated with the implementation of an ERP sys-
tem at the segment’s aerostructures businesses, increased losses
of approximately $1 million associated with the segment’s aviation
technical services business and the closeout of the MD-11 and
MD-g90 contracts in 2000.

Landing Systems sales increased $91.4 million, or 8.6 percent, from
$1,057.7 million during 2000 to $1,149.1 million during 2001. The
increase in sales was primarily attributable to higher sales of land-
ing gear and wheels and brakes. Landing gear sales increased

across all major markets primarily due to increased sales of origi-
nal equipment to Boeing, Bombardier, and the U.S. government,
partially offset by reduced pricing on several Boeing programs as
a result of contract extensions (through 2006) approved during
mid-2001. Major programs contributing to the increased sales of
landing gear included the B757, B777, C-17, F18 and R)601 programs.
The increased sales of wheels and brakes related primarily to
increased aftermarket sales in the commercial, regional, business
and military markets primarily on the A319/320, B747-400, B777,
Embraer 145, DeHavilland Dash 8, F16, and Cessna programs,
partially offset by decreased sales on the B727 out-of-production
program. This increase in sales was partially offset by a significant
decrease in sales of landing gear overhaul services ($20.5 million),
primarily due to fewer customer removals as a result of airlines
deferring or reducing discretionary expenditures.

Operating income, as adjusted, increased $4.1 million, or 2.8 per-
cent, from $149.0 million during 2000 to $153.1 million during
2001. The increase was primarily due to the increase in volume
noted above as well as a favorable sales mix, partially offset by
increased sales incentives, reduced pricing as noted above, addi-
tional costs related to expedited shipments of certain landing gear
to Boeing and an increased loss associated with providing landing
gear overhaul services primarily due to the decrease in volume
noted above (this business recorded a slight loss in 2000).

Engine and Safety Systems sales increased $118.2 million, or 18.3
percent, from $644.4 million during 2000 to $762.6 million during
2001. While all of the segment’s product lines experienced an
increase in sales over the prior year, the increase was primarily
attributable to a significant increase in aftermarket sales of evacua-
tion products, particularly on the By47 program; increased sales of
ejection seats; increased demand for the segment’s gas turbine
products that serve both the aerospace and industrial engine mar-
kets; as well as acquisitions (approximately $30 million).
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Operating income, as adjusted, increased $14.4 million, or 123
percent, from $117.5 million during 2000 to $131.9 million during
2001. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in sales noted above, partially offset by increased R&D expenses
(primarily related to continuing development of passenger restraint
systems) and inefficiencies at one of its locations that produces
gas turbine products.

Electronic Systems Segment sales increased $215.5 million, or
39.7 percent, from $542.9 million during 2000 to $758.4 million
during 2001. The increase was driven primarily by space-based
acquisitions (approximately $160 million) and increased sales by
the segment’s core businesses (approximately $55 million}. The
increase in sales at the segment’s core businesses was primarily
attributable to increased sales of sensors, fuel and utility systems
as well as lightning detection and collision avoidance units, par-
tially offset by lower sales in the segment’s legacy space-based
businesses. The increase in sensor sales was driven by increased
regional and business OE demand, airline retrofits and the resump-
tion of thermocouple shipments to the USAF. The fuel and utility

2000 Compared with 1999

sales increases were due mostly to aftermarket sales of spares and
retrofit products, particularly on the B747 and B737 programs. The
decrease in sales in the segment’s legacy space-based businesses
was due primarily to program delays and cancellations.

Operating income, as adjusted, increased $17.3 million, or 14.6 per-
cent, from $118.1 million during 2000 to $135.4 million during 2001.
The increase was primarily due to the factors noted above, partially
offset by increased investments in MEMS (micro-electromechanical
systems) technologies and products, increased R&D expenses on
the Smart Deck Integrated Flight Controls & Display System and on
the HUMS system (helicopter health and usage management
system), as well as higher costs related to the consolidation and
integration of acquisitions.

The significant reduction in operating margins, period over period
{21.7 percent in 2000 to 16.9 percent in 2001) was primarily
attributable to program delays and cancellations impacting the seg-
ment's space-based businesses, as well as lower margins on sales
from acquired companies. The Company expects these margins to
increase next year as a result of current and planned consolidation
and integration activities.

% of Sales
(in millions) 2000 1999 % Change 2000 1999
Sales
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 71,4555 $ 1,476.9 (v.4)
Landing Systems 1,057.7 1,060.6 (0.3)
Engine and Safety Systems 644.4 594.4 8.4
Electronic Systems 542.9 514.3 5.6
Total Sales $ 3,700.5 $ 3,646.2 15
Segment Operating Income, as recorded
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 2053 $ 2106 (2.5) 144 14.3
Landing Systems 123.7 130.1 (4.9) 1.7 12.3
Engine and Safety Systems 115.8 102.2 13.3 18.0 17.2
Electronic Systems 1n7.7 86.6 35.9 21.7 16.8
Segment Operating Income $ 5625 $ 5205 6.2 15.2 14.5
Segment Operating Income, as adjusted
Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services $ 2090 $ 2168 (3.6) 14.4 14.7
Landing Systems 149.0 147.1 1.3 14.1 13.9
Engine and Safety Systems 17.5 102.2 15.0 18.2 17.2
Electronic Systems 181 95.6 23.5 21.8 18.6
Segment Operating Income $  593.6 $ 5617 5.7 16.0 15.4
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Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services Segment sales
decreased $21.4 million, or 1.4 percent, from $1,476.9 million in
1999 to $1,455.5 million in 2000. The decrease was primarily attrib-
utable to the favorable settlement of a contract claim that resulted
in approximately $60 million in sales during 1999, lower sales on
the B7s7, PW4000, MD-11 and MD-8o programs (the MD-11 and
MD-80 programs are no longer in production) and lower sales of
aftermarket aviation services. These decreases were partially offset
by increased sales on the B717-200, A340, V2500 and Super 27 pro-
grams, as well as additional aftermarket aerostructures services.
Aviation services sales were lower primarily due to lower component
volume. Aerostructures aftermarket services posted higher sales
than a year ago due to increased volume from its Asian facility.

Operating income, as adjusted, decreased $7.8 million, or 3.6 per-
cent, from $216.8 million in 1999 to $209.0 million in 2000. The
decrease was primarily attributable to lower results at aviation tech-
nical services, partially offset by increased operating income from
aerostructures. The increase in aerostructures operating income,
despite the decrease in sales, was attributable to higher margins on
certain contracts due to productivity improvements and cost con-
trols and significantly lower costs on the site consolidation project
that began last year. The decrease in operating income at aviation
services was primarily attributable to lower volume, increased over-
head costs, most of which related to retaining and training the
current work force, inventory adjustments and the write-off of
receivables due to the bankruptcy of National Airlines.

Landing Systems Segment szles decreased $2.9 million from
$1,060.6 million in 1999 to $1,057.7 million in 2000. The decrease
was primarily attributable to lower sales of landing gear and of land-
ing gear services, partially offset by increased sales of wheels and
brakes and the favorable settlement of claims for increased work
scope on engineering changes related to existing landing gear
products. Landing gear sales decreased as a result of reduced
Boeing OE deliveries on the B777 and B757 aircraft and the discon-
tinuation of new aircraft production on the MD11 and B737 classic
aircraft. Sales for landing gear overhaul services decreased due to
fewer customer removals as a result of airline operating cost con-
straints caused by higher fuel costs. Sales of wheels and brakes
increased significantly year over year due to growth in the commer-
cial aftermarket, regional, business and military markets. Programs
most responsible for these increased sales included the A319/320,
B737 next generation, Embraer 145 and F16 aircraft.

Operating income, as adjusted, increased $1.9 million, or 1.3 per-
cent, from $147.1 million in 1999 to $149.0 million in 2000. The
increase resulted primarily from increased sales of wheels and
brakes as noted above and the favorable settlement of claims for
increased work scope on engineering changes related to existing
landing gear products. These increases in operating income were
mostly offset by the impact of lower landing gear sales, increased
sales incentives and inefficiencies associated with the shutdown and
transfer of production out of the Euless, Texas landing gear facility.

Engine and Safety Systems Segment sales increased $50.0 million, or
8.4 percent, from $594.4 million in 1999 to $644.4 million in 2000.
The increase was primarily attributable to continued strong

demand for aerospace OE and industrial gas turbine products.
Engine-related products that experienced an increase in volume
included coated blades and vanes, fuel injection nozzles, discs and
airfoils. The increase in sales was also a result of increased demand
for aircraft evacuation products.

Operating income, as adjusted, for 2000 increased $15.3 million, or
15 percent, from $102.2 million in 1999 to $117.5 million in 2000.
Operating income results followed the increases in sales described
above. In addition to overall stronger volume, Engine Systems
recorded a small gain on the sale of land, and Safety Systems
recovered previously expensed non-recurring engineering costs off-
setting some of the higher R&D expenses related to continuing
development of its automotive passenger restraint systems.

Electronic Systems Segment sales increased $28.6 million, or 5.6 per-
cent, from $514.3 million in 1999 to $542.9 million in 2000. The
increase was primarily attributable to acquisitions in space flight
systems and increased OE and aftermarket demand for the seg-
ment’s avionics products. These increases were partially offset by
the impact of a product line divestiture in 2000 and lower engine
sensor sales.

Operating income, as adjusted, increased $22.5 million, or 23.5
percent, from $95.6 million in 1999 to $118.1 million in 2000.
Higher volume in space/satellite products, primarily from acquisi-
tions, increased demand for general aviation products, a favorable
sales mix, productivity improvements and lower new product
development costs on the helicopter health and usage manage-
ment system accounted for the increase in operating income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company currently expects to fund expenditures for capi-
tal requirements as well as liquidity needs from a combination
of internally generated funds and financing arrangements. The
Company believes that its internally generated liquidity, together
with access to external capital resources, will be sufficient to sat-
isfy existing commitments and plans, and also to provide adequate
financial flexibility to take advantage of potential strategic business
opportunities should they arise within 2002.

Credit Facilities

In December 2001 the Company executed $750 million in new com-
mitted global syndicated revolving credit agreements. These credit
agreements replaced the $6oo million of committed domestic
revolving credit agreements and the $8o million committed multi-
currency revolving credit facility. The international bank group
providing credit under the new agreements is substantially the
same group that provided credit under the previous agreements.
The new credit facilities consist of a $425 million three-year agree-
ment expiring in December 2004 and a $325 million 364-day
agreement expiring in December 2002. Management intends to
renew the $325 million credit facility at its annual renewal and
does not anticipate any problems therein. At December 31, 2001,
$670 million was unused and available under these committed
revolving credit facilities.

The Company had committed foreign lines of credit and overdraft
facilities at December 31, 2001 of $20 million, all of which was avail-
able at that date.
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The Company also maintains $111 million of uncommitted domestic
money market facilities with various banks to meet short-term bor-
rowing requirements. As of December 31, 2001, $75 million of these
facilities was unused and available. These uncommitted credit facil-
ities are provided by a small number of commercial banks that also
provide the Company with committed credit through the syndicated
revolving credit facilities and with various cash management, trust
and other services. As a result of these established relationships, the
Company believes that its uncommitted facilities are a highly reliable
and cost-effective source of liquidity.

Continued borrowing under the Company’s credit facilities is condi-
tioned upon compliance with financial and other covenants set forth
in the related agreements. The Company is currently in compliance
with all such covenants. The Company's credit facilities do not
contain any rating downgrade triggers that would accelerate the
maturity of the Company’s indebtedness thereunder. However, a rat-
ings downgrade would result in an increase in the interest rate and
fees payable under the Company’s syndicated revolving credit facili-
ties. Such a downgrade also could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to renew existing, or obtain access to new, credit facilities in
the future and could increase the cost of such new facilities.

Long-Term Financing

At December 31, 2001, the Company had long-term debt of $1,304.0
million, with maturities ranging from 2003 to 2046. Reflected as
current maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2001 was
$4.3 million of miscellaneous debt maturing throughout 2002. The
Company also retired $175 million of long-term debt when it came
due in July 2001,

The Company had the authority to issue up to $500 million of
debt securities, series preferred stock and common stock under its
existing shelf registration statement at December 31, 2001. Any
issuance of securities pursuant to the shelf registration statement
is expected to be used for general corporate purposes.

In connection with the spin-off of the EIP segment, the Company
expects to offer to exchange new Company debt securities for the
outstanding $300 million of Coltec’s 7.5 percent Senior Notes due
2008, which are classified within continuing operations within the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The interest rate,
term, payment dates and redemption provisions of the new
Company debt securities are expected to be substantially identical
to those of the Coltec Senior Notes.

QUIPS At December 31, 2001 and 2000 there were outstanding
$126.5 million of 8.30 percent Cumulative Quarterly Income
Preferred Securities, Series A (“QUIPS") issued by BFGoodrich
Capital, a Delaware business trust all of the common equity of
which is owned by the Company (the “Trust”). The QUIPS are sup-
ported by 8.30 percent Junior Subordinated Debentures, Series A,
due 2025 (“QUIPS Debentures”) issued by the Company. The
Company has unconditionally guaranteed all distributions required
to be made by the Trust, but only to the extent the Trust has funds
legally available for such distributions.

TIDES At December 31, 2000 and 2001 there were outstanding
$150 million of 51/ percent Convertible Preferred Securities — Term
Income Deferred Equity Securities (“TIDES”) issued by Coltec

Capital Trust, a Delaware business trust, all of the common equity
of which is owned by Coltec (the “Coltec Trust”). The TIDES are
supported by an equivalent aggregate principal amount of 5/
percent Convertible junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest
Debentures due April 15, 2028 (“TIDES Debentures”) issued by
Coltec to Coltec Capital Trust. The Company has unconditionally
guaranteed all distributions required to be made by the Coltec
Trust, but only to the extent the Coltec Trust has funds legally avail-
able for such distributions. The Company has also unconditionally
guaranteed Coltec’s obligations under the TIDES Debentures.

The TIDES are convertible at the option of the holders at any time
into the common stock of the Company at an effective conversion
price of $52.33 per share and are redeemable at the Company's
option after April 20, 2001 at 102.63 percent of the liquidation
amount declining ratably to 100 percent after April 20, 2004.
Following the spin-off, the TIDES will be convertible into a combi-
nation of Goodrich and EnPro common stock. As the TIDES will
remain as part of the EnPro capital structure following the spin-off,
amounts associated with the TIDES have been segregated and
reported as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statement
of Income and Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company utilizes several forms of off-balance sheet financing
arrangements. At December 31, 2001, these included:

Undiscounted

Minimum Future Receivables

(in millions) Lease Payments Sold
Tax Advantaged Operating Leases $ 79 —
Standard Operating Leases 81 —
$ 160 —
Short-term Receivables — $ g7
Long-term Receivables — 20
— $ 1y

Lease Agreements The Company financed its use of certain equip-
ment, including corporate aircraft, under committed lease arrange-
ments provided by financial institutions, These arrangements allow
the Company to claim a deduction for the tax depreciation on the
assets, rather than the lessor, and allowed the Company to lease up
to a maximum of $g5 million at December 31, 2001. Since the terms
of these arrangements meet the accounting definition of operat-
ing lease arrangements, the aggregate sum of future minimum
lease payments is not reflected on the Company's consolidated bal-
ance sheet. At December 31, 2001, approximately $79 million of
future minimum lease payments were outstanding under these
arrangements, The Company also has various other operating lease
agreements whose future minimum lease payments approximated
$81 million at December 31, 2001. See Note | of the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional disclosure.

Sale of Receivables At December 31, 2000, the Company had in place
a trade receivables securitization program pursuant to which it
could sell receivables up to a maximum of $95 million. Accounts
receivable sold under this program were $81.5 million at December
31, 2000 ($30.5 million of which related to the EIP segment and,
accordingly, is classified within discontinued operations). in
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December 2001, this program was terminated and replaced with a
new program pursuant to which the Company may sell trade receiv-
ables up to a maximum of $110 million. Accounts receivable sold
under the new program were $97.3 mitlion at December 31, 2001.

Continued availability of the securitization program is conditioned
upon compliance with financial and other covenants set forth in the
related agreements. The Company is currently in compliance with
all such covenants. The securitization agreement also includes a
rating downgrade trigger pursuant to which the agreement may be
terminated upon a rating downgrade of the Company. If such an
event were to occur, the Company expects that it would have
sufficient capital resources through its existing revolving credit
facilities to meet its needs.

During 2000, the Company entered into an agreement to sell cer-
tain long-term receivables. At December 31, 2000, $47.7 million of
the Company’s long-term receivables were sold to a financial insti-
tution under this agreement. This agreement contains recourse
provisions under which the Company may be required to repur-
chase receivables. In the fourth quarter of 2001, approximately $20
million of these long-term receivables were repurchased by the
Company at the request of the financial institution. At December 31,
2001, $20.3 million of the Company’s long-term receivables were
owned by the financial institution and subject to the recourse pro-
visions of this Agreement.

Cash Flow
The following table summarizes our cash flow activity for zo01,
2000 and 1999:

(in millions)

Cash Flows From: 2001 2000 1999
Operating activities $ 3826 |3 1682 $§ 21058
Investing activities § (2888)|$ (349.4) $ (166.5)
Financing activities $ {9363)1% 806 $ (72.2)
Discontinued operations $ 8507 {$ 1146 § 428

Operating Cash Flows Operating cash flow increased by $214.4
million, from $168.2 million in 2000 to $382.6 million in 2001. The
increase was primarily due to a $113.7 million payment to the IRS
in 2000, increased cash earnings from continuing operations,
lower merger-related and consolidation cost payments and lower
tax payments, partially offset by a deterioration in working capital
during 2001.

Operating cash flows decreased $42.3 million from $210.5 million
in 1999 to $168.2 million in 2000. The decrease was primarily
attributable to a $113.7 million payment to the IRS and an increase
in long-term receivables associated with certain leasing activities
(Super 27 program), partially offset by lower merger-related and
consolidation cost payments and increased proceeds from the sale
of receivables.

The payment to the IRS was for an income tax assessment and the
related accrued interest. The Company intends to pursue its admin-
istrative and judicial remedies for a refund of this payment. A
reasonable estimation of the Company’s potential refund cannot
be made at this time; accordingly, no receivable has been recorded.

Investing Cash Flows The Company used $288.8 million in investing
activities in 2001 versus $349.4 million in 2000. The decrease was
due primarily to lower spending on acguisitions (approximately
$128 million), partially offset by increased spending on capital
expenditures (approximately $57 million).

The Company used $349.4 million in investing activities in 2000
versus $166.5 million in 1999. The increase was primarily attributa-
ble to additional amounts spent on acquisitions, partially offset by
reduced capital expenditures.

Financing Cash Flows Financing activities consumed $936.3 million
and $72.2 million of cash in 2001 and 1999, respectively, and pro-
vided $80.6 million in cash in 2000. The primary reason for the
increased use of cash in 2001 was the repayment of short-term
indebtedness with the proceeds from the PM sale (see discontin-
ued operations cash flow discussion below). The Company
increased its borrowings in 2000 to finance acquisitions as well as
the Company’s share repurchase program.

Discontinued Operations Cash Flow Cash flow from discontinued
operations increased $736.1 million, from $114.6 million in 2000
to $850.7 million in 2001. PM accounted for approximately $g60
million of this increase, partially offset by a decrease of $224 mil-
lion in cash flow attributable to the EIP segment. The PM increase
was primarily attributable to the sale of the business during the first
quarter of 2001, while the decrease in cash flow attributable to the
EIP segment was primarily attributable to the Glacier Bearings
acquisition during 2001 {(approximately $150 million) and increased
payments related to the defense and disposition of asbestos-
related claims.

Cash flow from discontinued operations increased $71.8 million
from $42.8 million in 1999 to $114.6 million in 2000. Approximately
$29 million of the increase was attributable to the PM segment and
approximately $42 million of the increase was attributable to the
EIP segment. The increase in cash flows attributable to PM was pri-
marily due to lower merger-related and consolidation payments in
2000, better utilization of working capital and reduced capital
expenditures and acquisition related payments. The increase in
cash flows attributable to the EIP segment was primarily attrib-
utable to better utilization of working capital and lower capital
expenditures, partially offset by increased payments related to the
defense and disposition of asbestos-related claims.

Commercial Airline Customers

The downturn in the commercial air transport market, exacerbated
by the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001, has adversely
affected the financial condition of many of the Company’s commer-
cial airline customers. Many of these customers have requested
extended payment terms for future shipments and/or reduced
pricing. The Company has been reviewing and evaluating these
requests on a case-by-case basis. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations on the financial condition of all of its customers
and maintain reserves for uncollectible accounts receivable based
upon expected collectibility. Although the Company believes its
reserves are adequate, it is not able to predict with certainty the
changes in the financial stability of these customers. Any material
change in the financial status of any one or group of customers
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could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows. To the extent
extended payment terms are granted to customers, it may nega-
tively affect future cash flow.

Insurance Costs and Availability

As a result of the terrorist attacks on September 11 and general mar-
ket conditions, the Company expects its insurance costs to increase
and certain types of coverage to be available only with significantly
reduced limits and/or less favorable terms and conditions. In par-
ticular, the Company’s property and casualty policies expire in July
and August 2002, respectively, and we expect premiums to increase
significantly. We do not expect the cost increase to be material to
the Company’s results of operations and we expect to maintain cov-
erage limits that are generally consistent with current levels. The
Company does, however, expect that coverage for terrorist acts,
including indirect business interruption, will deteriorate or be elim-
inated entirely at policy renewal.

The Company’s aircraft products liability and executive risk pro-
grams expire in 2003 and 2004, respectively, and we do not expect
to experience any increase in costs or disruption in policy terms for
these programs until that time.

In late September 2001, hangarkeeper’s liability insurance coverage
related to war and terrorist acts was cancelled industry-wide. This
insurance provides protection against damage to a customer’s
property while such property is in the Company's care, custody
and control and applies most directly to the Company's aircraft
maintenance operations. In October 2001, the Company obtained
approximately $50 million of hangarkeeper's liability coverage
related to war and terrorist acts. In addition, the Company obtained
indemnification from most of its airline customers, who are insured
commercially and under a new FAA program, for losses above the
policy limit of $50 million.

Contingencies

General

There are pending or threatened against Goodrich or its subsidi-
aries various claims, lawsuits and administrative proceedings, all
arising from the ordinary course of business with respect to com-
mercial, product liability, asbestos and environmental matters,
which seek remedies or damages. Goodrich believes that any lia-
bility that may finally be determined with respect to such claims,
lawsuits and proceedings should not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of oper-
ations. From time to time, the Company is also involved in legal
proceedings as a plaintiff involving contract, patent protection,
environmental and other matters. Gain contingencies, if any, are
recognized when they are realized.

Environmental

Environmental liabilities are recorded when the Company’s liability
is probable and the costs are reasonably estimable, which generally
is not later than at completion of a feasibility study or when the
Company has recommended a remedy or has committed to an
appropriate plan of action. The accruals are reviewed periodically

and, as investigations and remediations proceed, adjustments are
made as necessary. Accruals for losses from environmental reme-
diation obligations do not consider the effects of inflation, and
anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their present value.
The accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries frem insurance
carriers or other third parties, but do reflect anticipated allocations
among potentially responsible parties at federal Superfund sites or
similar state-managed sites and an assessment of the likelihood
that such parties will fulfill their obligations at such sites. The meas-
urement of environmental liabilities by the Company is based on
currently available facts, present laws and regulations, and current
technology. Such estimates take into consideration the Company’s
prior experience in site investigation and remediation, the data
concerning cleanup costs available from other companies and
regulatory authorities, and the professional judgment of the
Company’s environmental experts in consultation with outside
environmental specialists, when necessary.

The Company is subject to various domestic and international
environmental laws and regulations which may require that it inves-
tigate and remediate the effects of the release or disposal of
materials at sites associated with past and present operations,
including sites at which the Company has been identified as a
potentially responsible party under the federal Superfund laws and
comparable state laws. The Company is currently involved in the
investigation and remediation of a number of sites under these
laws. Estimates of the Company’s liability are further subject to
uncertainties regarding the nature and extent of site contamination,
the range of remediation alternatives available, evolving remedia-
tion standards, imprecise engineering evaluations and estimates of
appropriate cleanup technology, methodology and cost, the extent
of corrective actions that may be required, and the number and
financial condition of other potentially responsible parties, as well
as the extent of their responsibility for the remediation. Accordingly,
as investigation and remediation of these sites proceed, it is likely
that adjustments in the Company's accruals will be necessary to
reflect new information. The amounts of any such adjustments
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations in a given period, but the amounts, and the possible
range of loss in excess of the amounts accrued, are not reasonably
estimable. Based on currently available information, however, man-
agement does not believe that future environmental costs in excess
of those accrued with respect to sites with which the Company has
been identified are likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial condition. There can be no assurance, how-
ever, that additional future developments, administrative actions
or liabilities relating to environmental matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations in a
given period.

At December 31, 2001, the Company's reserves for environmental
remediation obligations totaled $84.9 million, of which $11.0 million
was included in accrued liabilities ($1.5 million of which is classified
within merger-related and consolidation costs). Of the $84.9 million,
$12.8 million is associated with ongoing operations and $72.1 million
is associated with businesses previously disposed of or discontinued.
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The timing of expenditures depends on a number of factors that
vary by site, including the nature and extent of contamination, the
number of potentially responsible parties, the timing of regulatory
approvals, the complexity of the investigation and remediation,
and the standards for remediation. The Company expects that it
will expend present accruals over many years, and will complete
remediation of all sites with which it has been identified in up to 30
years. This period includes operation and monitoring costs which
are generally incurred over 15 years.

Tolo Litigation

In May 2000, the Company and its subsidiary Rohr, Inc. (“Rohr”),
were served with complaints in a lawsuit filed in the Superior Court
of Orange County, California, by former shareholders and certain
former employees of Tolo, Inc. Tolo, Inc. is a subsidiary of Rohr that
was acquired in 1997. The former shareholders alleged that the
Company and Rohr breached the stock purchase agreement by fail-
ing to pay $2.4 million under the terms of the agreement. In
September 2001, a jury found that the Company was liable to the
shareholders for the $2.4 million retained by Rohr under the stock
purchase agreement and was also assessed punitive damages of
$48 million. The court subsequently reduced the punitive damage
award to $24 million.

At the time of the purchase the Company established a reserve of
$2.4 million relating to the amount withheld by Rohr pursuant to
the stock purchase agreement. The Company has not established
an accrual for the punitive damages award of $24 million, which
was based on the plaintiffs’ fraudulent concealment claim, for the
reasons set forth below.

The Company and its legal counsel believe that there were numer-
ous points of reversible error in the trial that make it more likely
than not that the judgment will be reversed or vacated on appeal.
First, the Company believes the plaintiffs’ fraud claim is legally defi-
cient under California law and should be reversed. If the fraud claim
is not reversed, defendants should, at a minimum, be granted a
new trial on the fraudulent concealment claim because the trial
court permitted plaintiffs to add this claim late in the trial but did
not allow the Company to introduce evidence to defend against
it. The Company also believes that the trial court made numer-
ous prejudicial errors regarding the admission and exclusion of
evidence relating to the fraud claims, which further supports the
grant of a new trial. And finally, the Company believes that the
trial court’s directed verdict on plaintiffs’ breach of contract claim
should be set aside and a new trial granted because, among other
things, there was sufficient evidence for the jury to find for the
defendants on this claim.

Discontinued Operations

Contingencies associated with Coltec and its subsidiaries, includ-
ing asbestos-related liabilities, are discussed in Note S to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. After the spin-off is completed,
it is possible that asbestos-related claims might be asserted against
the Company on the theory that it has some responsibility for
the asbestos-related liabilities of Coltec or its subsidiaries, even
though the activities that led to those claims occurred prior to the

Company's ownership of Coltec. Also, it is possible that a claim
could be asserted against the Company that Coltec’s dividend of its
aerospace business to the Company prior to the spin-off was made
at a time when Coltec was insolvent or caused Coltec to become
insolvent. Such a claim could seek recovery from the Company on
behalf of Coltec of the fair market value of the dividend.

No such claims have been asserted against the Company to date.
The Company believes that it would have substantial legal defenses
against any such claims. Any such claims would require, as a
practical matter, that Coltec’s subsidiaries were unable to satisfy
their asbestos-related liabilities and that Coltec was found to be
responsible for these liabilities and is unable to meet its financial
obligations. The Company believes any such claims would be with-
out merit and that Coltec will be solvent both before and after the
dividend. If the Company is ultimately found to be responsible
for the asbestos-related liabilities of Coltec’s subsidiaries, the
Company believes it would not have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition, but could have a material adverse effect on
its results of operations and cash flows in a particular period.
However, because of the uncertainty as to the number, timing and
payments related to future asbestos-related claims, there can be no
assurance that any such claims would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows. If a claim related to the dividend of Coltec’s aero-
space business were successful, it could have a material adverse
impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed certain payments with respect to the
$150 million of TIDES. Following the spin-off of the EIP segment,
the TIDES will remain outstanding as an obligation of Coltec
Capital Trust and the Company's guarantee of certain payments
with respect to the TIDES will remain an obligation of the Company.

In addition to its guarantee of the TIDES, the Company has an
outstanding contingent liability for guaranteed debt and lease
payments of $5.5 million and for letters of credit of $37.8 million at
December 31, 2001.

Certain Aerospace Contracts

As discussed above, the Company's aerostructures business has a
contract with Boeing on the B717-200 program that is subject to
certain risks and uncertainties. Based on revisions to Boeing's pro-
duction rate and delivery schedule for the B717-200 program,
announced by Boeing at the end of 2001, the Company reevaluated
its estimated costs to complete the contract, its learning curve
assumptions as well as the number of aircraft expected to be deliv-
ered. As a result of this analysis, the Company recorded a charge of
$76.5 million during the fourth quarter of 2001. This charge elimi-
nated the remaining balance of excess-over-average inventory costs
yet to be recognized and reduced pre-production inventory bal-
ances down to $35.2 million as of December 31, 2001. The Company
will continue to record no margin on this contract based on its
revised assumptions.
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The Company's aerostructures business also re-engines 727 aircraft.
The re-engining enables operators of these aircraft meet sound
attenuation requirements as well as improve their fuel efficiency. The
aerostructures business has entered into several collateralized
financing arrangements to assist its customers and has also
entered into certain off-balance sheet financing arrangements
(primarily the sale of receivables with recourse) related to this
program. As a result of the dramatic downturn in the commercial
aviation market resulting primarily from the September 11th terror-
ist attacks, the Company re-evaluated the recoverability of its
investment in the 727 program and recorded a charge of approxi-
mately $19 million in the fourth quarter of 2001 as a result of this
analysis. At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately
$43 million of remaining inventory on its balance sheet, as well as
accounts and notes receivable of approximately $73 million
(approximately $20 million of which is off-balance sheet and is sub-
ject to recourse provisions). Collection of these receivables, as well
as the recovery of some portion of the Company's investment in
existing inventory balances, may be negatively affected should the
overall deterioration in the commercial aerospace market continue
through 2002 or if the market for re-engined Super 27 aircraft does
not strengthen.

Euro Conversion

The Company successfully addressed the many areas involved with
the introduction of the Euro on January 1, 200z, including informa-
tion technology, business and finance systems, as well as the
impact on the pricing and distribution of the Company's products.

The effect of the introduction of the Euro, as well as any related
costs of conversion, did not have a material impact on the
Company’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows,

New Accounting Standards

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—an interpretation of
APB Opinion No. 25" (“FIN 44"). FIN 44 clarifies the application of
APB Opinion No. 25 and among other issues clarifies the following:
the definition of an employee for purposes of applying APB Opinion
No. 25, the criteria for determining whether a plan qualifies as a
noncompensatory plan, the accounting consequence of various
modifications to the terms of previously fixed stock options or
awards, and the accounting for an exchange of stock compensation
awards in a business combination. FIN 44 is effective July 1, 2000,
but certain conclusions in FIN 44 cover specific events that
occurred after either December 15,1998 or January 12, 2000. FIN 44
did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial condi-
tion or results of operations.

In September 2000, the FASB issued Statement No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities” (“SFAS 140"). This statement
replaces FASB Statement No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”
(“SFAS 125"). It revises the standards for accounting for securitiza-
tions and other transfers of financial assets and collateral and
requires certain disclosures, but it carries over most of SFAS

125’s provisions without reconsideration. SFAS 140 is effective for
transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of
liabilities occurring after March 31, 2001. The adoption of SFAS 140
did not have a material impact on the Company's financial condi-
tion or results of operations.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Deri-
vative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133"),
as amended, which requires that all derivative instruments be
reported on the balance sheet at fair value and that changes in a
derivative's fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless
specific hedge criteria are met. If the derivative is designated as a
fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in
earnings. If the derivative is desighated as a cash flow hedge, the
effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recorded in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the
income statement when the hedged item affects earnings.
Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges
are recoghized in earnings.

In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS No. 133, the
Company recorded the previously unrecognized fair market value
of an interest rate swap designated as a fair value hedge and
the associated adjustment to the carrying amount of the debt
instrument designated as the hedged item as cumulative-effect
adjustments to net income. As this pre-existing hedging relation-
ship would have met the requirements for the shortcut method at
inception, the Company chose to calculate the transition adjust-
ment upon initial adoption as though the shortcut method had
been applied since the inception of the hedging relationship. The
effect of the adjustment to the carrying value of the debt was offset
entirely by the impact of recording the fair value of the interest
rate swap. Accordingly, the net cumulative-effect adjustment to net
income was zero.

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 “Business
Combinations” (“SFAS 141”) and Statement No. 142 “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142"). SFAS 141 is effective as fol-
lows: a) use of the pooling-of-interest method is prohibited for
business combinations initiated after June 30, 2007; and b) the pro-
visions of SFAS 141 also apply to all business combinations
accounted for by the purchase method that are completed after
June 30, 2001. There are also transition provisions that apply to
business combinations completed before july 1, 2001, that were
accounted for by the purchase method. SFAS 142 is effective for fis-
cal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and applies to all
goodwill and other intangible assets recoghized in an entity's state-
ment of financial position at that date, regardless of when those
assets were initially recognized.

The Company completed two acquisitions in the third quarter of
2001 and has not recorded any amortization on amounts prelimi-
harily allocated to goodwill in accordance with SFAS 141.

The Company will apply the new rules on accounting for goodwill
and other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter of 2002.
Application of the nonamortization provisions of the Statement
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is expected to result in an increase in income from continuing
operations before income taxes and trust distributions of approx-
imately $2g9 million per year. As provided for in the transition
provisions of SFAS 142, the Company will perform the first of the
required impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite lived intangi-
ble assets during the first six months of 2002. The Company has
not yet determined what the effect of these tests will-be on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

{n June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143 “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143"). SFAS 143 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with
the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. It applies to legal obligations associated
with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acqui-
sition, construction, development and/or the normal operation of a
long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS 143
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2002. The Company has not yet determined what the
effect of SFAS 143 will be on its consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144 “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS
144"). SFAS 144 supersedes FASB Statement No. 121 “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of” (“SFAS 121"); however it retains the funda-
mental provisions of that statement related to the recognition and
measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be “held
and used.” In addition, SFAS 144 provides more guidance on esti-
mating cash flows when performing a recoverability test, requires
that a long-lived asset (group) to be disposed of other than by sale
(e.g. abandoned) be classified as “held and used” until it is dis-
posed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria to classify an
asset (group) as “held for sale.” SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company has not yet deter-
mined what the effect of SFAS 144 will be on its consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company's discussion and analysis of its financial condition
and results of operations are based upon the Company’s consoli-
dated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the
Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to
customer programs and incentives, product returns, bad debts,
inventories, investments, intangible assets, income taxes, financing
operations, warranty obligations, excess component order cancella-
tion costs, restructuring, long-term service contracts, pensions and
other post-retirement benefits, and contingencies and litigation. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on vari-
ous other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judg-
ments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies
affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

For revenues not recognized under the contract method of account-
ing, the Company recognizes revenues from the sale of products at
the point of passage of title, which is at the time of shipment.
Revenues earned from providing maintenance service are recog-
nized when the service is complete.

Contract Accounting - Percentage of Completion

Revenue Recognition The Company also has sales under long-term,
fixed-priced contracts, many of which contain escalation clauses,
requiring delivery of products over several years and frequently
providing the buyer with option pricing on follow-on orders. Sales
and profits on each contract are recognized in accordance with
the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, using the
units-of-delivery method. The Company follows the guidelines
of Statement of Position 81-1 (“SOP 81-v"), “Accounting for
Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts” (the contract method of accounting) except that the
Company's contract accounting policies differ from the recom-
mendations of SOP 811 in that revisions of estimated profits on
contracts are included in earnings under the reallocation method
rather than the cumulative catch-up method. Under the realloca-
tion method, the impact of revisions in estimates related to units
shipped to date is recognized ratably over the remaining life of the
contract while under the cumulative catch-up method such impact
would be recognized immediately. To the extent the Company were
to make a significant acquisition that used the cumulative catch-up
method to record revisions in estimated profits on contracts, it
would be required to change its current method of accounting. Such
a change would be recorded as a change in accounting principle and
would most likely result in the restatement of prior periods in accor-
dance with APB 20.

Profit is estimated based on the difference between total estimated
revenue and total estimated cost of a contract, excluding that
reported in prior periods, and is recognized evenly in the current
and future periods as a uniform percentage of sales value on all
remaining units to be delivered. Current revenue does not antici-
pate higher or lower future prices but includes units delivered at
actual sales prices. Cost includes the estimated cost of the prepro-
duction effort {primarily tooling and design), plus the estimated
cost of manufacturing a specified number of production units. The
specified number of production units used to establish the profit
margin is predicated upon contractual terms adjusted for market
forecasts and does not exceed the lesser of those quantities
assumed in original contract pricing or those quantities which the
Company now expects to deliver in the timeframe/periods
assumed in the original contract pricing. The Company’s policies
only allow the estimated number of production units to be deliv-
ered to exceed the quantity assumed within the original contract
pricing when the Company receives firm orders for additional units.
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The timeframe/period assumed in the original contract pricing is
generally equal to the period specified in the contract. If the con-
tract is a “life of program” contract, then such period is equal to the
time period used in the original pricing model which generally
equals the time period required to recover the Company's pre-
production costs. Option quantities are combined with prior orders
when follow-on orders are released.

The contract method of accounting involves the use of various esti-
mating techniques to project costs at completion and includes
estimates of recoveries asserted against the customer for changes
in specifications. These estimates involve various assumptions and
projections relative to the outcome of future events, including
the quantity and timing of product deliveries. Also included are
assumptions relative to future labor performance and rates,
and projections relative to material and overhead costs. These
assumptions involve various levels of expected performance
improvements. The Company reevaluates its contract estimates
periodically and reflects changes in estimates in the current and
future periods under the reallocation method.

Included in sales are amounts arising from contract terms that
provide for invoicing a portion of the contract price at a date after
delivery. Also included are negotiated values for units delivered and
anticipated price adjustments for contract changes, claims, esca-
lation and estimated earnings in excess of billing provisions,
resulting from the percentage-of-completion method of account-
ing. Certain contract costs are estimated based on the learning
curve concept discussed below.

Inventory Inventoried costs on long-term contracts include certain
pre-production costs, consisting primarily of tooling and design
costs and production costs, including applicable overhead. The
costs attributed to units delivered under long-term commercial con-
tracts are based on the estimated average cost of all units expected
to be produced and are determined under the learning curve con-
cept, which anticipates a predictable decrease in unit costs as tasks
and production techniques become more efficient through repeti-
tion. This usually results in an increase in inventory (referred to as
“excess-over average”) during the early years of a contract.

If in-process inventory plus estimated costs to complete a specific
contract exceeds the anticipated remaining sales value of such con-
tract, such excess is charged to current earnings, thus reducing
inventory to estimated realizable value.

Sales Incentives

The Company offers sales incentives to certain commercial cus-
tomers in connection with sales contracts. These incentives may
consist of upfront cash payments, merchandise credits and/or free
products. The cost of these incentives is recognized in the period
incurred unless it is specifically guaranteed of recovery within the
contract by the customer. If the contract contains such a guarantee,
then the cost of the sales incentive is capitalized and amortized
over the contract period.

Asbestos

The Company records an accrual for asbestos-related matters that
are deemed probable and can be reasonably estimated, which con-
sist of settled claims and actions in advanced stages of processing.
The Company also records an asset equal to the amount of those
liabilities that is expected to be recovered by insurance.

In accordance with internal procedures for the processing of
asbestos product liability actions and due to the proximity to trial
or settlement, certain outstanding actions progress to a stage
where the cost to dispose of these actions can reasonably be esti-
mated. These actions are classified as actions in advanced stages.
With respect to outstanding actions that are in preliminary proce-
dural stages, as well as any actions that may be filed in the future,
insufficient information exists upon which judgments can be made
as to the validity or ultimate disposition of such actions, thereby
making it difficult to reasonably estimate what, if any, potential lia-
bility or costs may be incurred. Accordingly, no estimate of future
liability has been included for such claims. See Note S of the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
discussion of asbestos matters.

Forward-Looking Information is Subject to Risk and Uncertainty
Certain statements made in this document are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 regarding the company’s future plans, objec-
tives, and expected performance. Specifically, statements that are
not historical facts, including statements accompanied by words
such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate”
or “plan,” are intended to identify forward-looking statements
and convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. The Com-
pany cautions readers that any such forward-looking statements
are based on assumptions that the Company believes are reason-
able, but are subject to a wide range of risks, and actual results may
differ materially.

»oou

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ include,
but are not limited to:

- global demand for aircraft spare parts and aftermarket services;-

- the impact of the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001 and
their aftermath;

o the timing related to restoring consumer confidence in air travel;

» the health of the commercial aerospace industry, including the
impact of bankruptcies in the airline industry;

+ the extent to which the Company is able to achieve savings from
its restructuring plans;

- the timing and successful completion of the spin-off of the
Company's EIP business;

« the successful completion of Coltec’s dividend of its aerospace
business to the Company;

o the solvency of Coltec at the time of and subsequent to the
EIP spin-off;




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- demand for and market acceptance of new and existing
products, including potential cancellation of orders by com-
mercial customers;

« successful development of advanced technologies;
« competitive product and pricing pressures;

- domestic and foreign government spending, budgetary and
trade policies;

« economic and political changes in international markets where
the Company competes, such as changes in currency exchange
rates, inflation rates, recession and other external factors over
which the Company has no control; and

« the outcome of contingencies (including completion of acqui-
sitions, divestitures, litigation and environmental remediation
efforts).

The Company cautions you not to place undue reliance on the
forward-looking statements contained in this document, which
speak only as of the date on which such statements were made. The
Company undertakes no obligation to release publicly any revisions
to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circum-
stances after the date on which such statements were made or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Expected Maturity Dates

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to certain market risks as part of its ongo-
ing business operations, including risks from changes in interest
rates and foreign currency exchange rates, that could impact its
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. The Com-
pany manages its exposure to these and other market risks through
regular operating and financing activities, and on a limited basis,
through the use of derivative financial instruments. The Company
intends to use such derivative financial instruments as risk man-
agement tools and not for speculative investment purposes.

Interest Rate Exposure The Company is exposed to interest rate risk
as a result of its outstanding debt obligations. The table below
provides information about the Company's derivative financial
instruments and other financial instruments that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates, including interest rate swaps and debt
obligations. For debt obligations, the table represents principal
cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by expected
(contractual) maturity dates. For interest rate swaps, the table
presents notional amounts and weighted-average interest rates by
contractual maturity dates. Notional values are used to calculate
the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contract.
Weighted-average variable (receive) rates are based on implied for-
ward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2001.

Fair
(dollars in millions) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Value
Debt
Fixed Rate $ 4.3 $ 2.2 3 1.3 3 1.3 3 1.3 $ 12814 $ 12917 $ 1,190.4
Average Interest Rate 5.1% 3.8% 3.1% 3.0% 3.3% 7.0% 6.9%
Variable Rate $ 133 $ — $ — — — $ 165 $ 1298 $ 1298
Average Interest Rate 2.4% — — — - 4.9% 2.7%
Capital Lease Obligations $ 2.1 $ 1.9 $ 1.4 5 03 $ — $ — $ 5.7 $ 4.8
Interest Rate Swaps
Fixed to Variable $ 2000 $ 200.0 3 (7.3)
Average Pay Rate 4.8% 4.8%
Average Receive Rate 6.0% 6.0%

Foreign Currency Exposure The Company is exposed to foreign cur-
rency risks that arise from normal business operations. These risks
include the translation of local currency balances of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries, intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries
and transactions denominated in foreign currencies. The Com-
pany’s objective is to minimize its exposure to these risks through
its normal operating activities and, where appropriate, through for-
eign currency forward exchange contracts.

The Company's international operations expose it to translation
risk when the local currency financial statements are translated to
U.S. dollars. As currency exchange rates fluctuate, translation of the
statements of income of international businesses into U.S. dollars
will affect comparability of revenues and expenses between years.
The Company hedges a significant portion of its net investments in
international subsidiaries by financing the purchase and cash flow
requirements through local currency borrowings.

See Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discus-
sion of the Company's exposure to foreign currency transaction
risk. At December 31, 2001, a hypothetical 10 percent movement in
foreign exchange would not have a material effect on earnings.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of Goodrich Corporation
and subsidiaries have been prepared by management. These statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and, accordingly, include amounts based upon informed judgments and
estimates. Management is responsible for the selection of appropriate accounting principles and the fairness and
integrity of such statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that accounting
records are reliable for the preparation of financial statements and for safeguarding assets. The Company’s system
of internal controls includes: written policies, guidelines and procedures; organizational structures, staffed through
the careful selection of people that provide an appropriate division of responsibility and accountability; and an inter-
nal audit program. Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, were engaged to audit and to render an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Goodrich Corporation and subsidiaries. Their opinion is based on procedures
believed by them to be sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements are not
materially misstated. The report of Ernst & Young LLP follows.

The Board of Directors pursues its oversight responsibility for the financial statements through its Audit Review
Committee, composed of Directors who are not employees of the Company. The Audit Review Committee meets reg-
ularly to review with management and Ernst & Young LLP the Company’s accounting policies, internal and external
audit plans and results of audits. To ensure complete independence, Ernst & Young LLP and the internal auditors
have full access to the Audit Review Committee and meet with the Committee without the presence of management.

WM&

D.L. Burner
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

ot

Ulrich Schmidt
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

R.D. Koney, Jr.
Vice President and Controller




REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Goodrich Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Goodrich Corporation and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and -

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan-
cial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of Goodrich Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

é/vmt 1 LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 4, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Sales $ 4,184.5 $3,700.5 $3,646.2
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 3,127.6 2,676.2 2,651.7

Selling and administrative costs 565.0 490.4 492.1

Merger-related and consolidation costs 107.3 44.2 228.3

3,799-9 3,210.8 33724

Operating Income 384.6 489.7 2741
Interest expense (107.8) (107.3) (87.5)
Interest income 24.1 5.2 3.2
Other income (expense) — net (19.2) (20.6) (4.8)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and

Trust distributions 281.7 367.0 185.0
Income tax expense (94.3} (121.3) (88.6)
Distributions on Trust preferred securities (1o.5) (10.5) (10.5)
income from Continuing Operations 176.9 235.2 85.9
Income from discontinued operations — net of taxes 112.3 90.7 83.7
Net income $ 289.2 $ 3259 $ 1696
Basic Earnings per Share:

Continuing operations $ 172 $ 224 3 o078

Discontinued operations 1.08 0.87 0.76

Net income $§ 280 $ 3n $ 154
Diluted Earnings per Share:

Continuing operations $ 165 $ 206 $ o076

Discontinued operations m 0.88 0.79

Net [ncome $ 276 $ 304 $ 155

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31

(dollars in millions, except share amounts) 2001 2000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 858 $ 775
Accounts and notes receivable 570.4 633.3
Inventories 841.5 809.6
Deferred income taxes 12.9 88.4
Prepaid expenses and other assets 26.2 75.
Net assets of discontinued operations 284.5 1,049.7

Total Current Assets 1,921.3 2,733.6
Property 955.5 897.0
Prepaid pension 238.7 235.0
Deferred income taxes — 4.2
Goodwill 7473 681.7
Identifiable intangible assets 138.8 102.1
Payment-in-kind notes receivable, less discount {$22.2 at December 31, 2001) 168.4 —
Other assets 4681 404.4
Net assets of discontinued operations — 80.9

Total Assets $ 4,638.1 $ 5,138.9
Current Liabilities
Short-term bank debt $ 33 $ 7556
Accounts payable 196.6 366.3
Accrued expenses 523.6 515.4
Income taxes payable 119.2 59.3
"Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligation 5.9 179.2

Total Current Liabilities 1,158.6 1,875.8
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 1,307.2 1,301.4
Pension obligations 155.5 61.4
Postretirement benefits other than pensions 3201 334.4
Deferred income taxes 13.9 —
Other non-current liabilities 196.4 212.9
Commitments and contingent liabilities —_ —
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of trust 125.0 124.5
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock - $5 par value
Authorized, 200,000,000 shares; issued, 115,144,771 shares

in 2001 and 113,295,049 shares in 2000 (excluding 14,000,000

shares held by a wholly-owned subsidiary) 575.7 566.5
Additional paid-in capital 973.5 922.8
Income retained in the business 333.7 1581
Accumulated other comprehensive income {110.1) (57.7)
Unearned compensation (0.6) (1.2)
Common stock held in treasury, at cost (13,446,808 shares

in 2001 and 10,964,761 shares in 2000) (410.8) (360.0)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,361.4 1,228.5

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 4,638 $ 5,389

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

{dollars in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Operating Activities
Income from continuing operations $ 1769 $ 2352 $ 859
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Merger-related and consolidation:
Expenses 107.3 44.2 2283
Payments (303) (57.5) (175.8)
Unusual inventory adjustments 94.5 — —
Depreciation and amortization 173.8 165.4 137.6
Deferred income taxes 18.5 (33.2) 81.4
Net gains on sale of businesses (7.8) (2.0) (1.7)
Payment-in-kind interest income (17.6) — —
Gain on sale of investment — — (3.2)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and dispositions of businesses:
Receivables 21.6 (72.7) 3.2
Change in receivables sold, net 463 39.2 —
Inventories (120.1) (36.0) (32.8)
Other current assets (8.8) (31.2) (10.7)
Accounts payable 13.1 81.6 (12.5)
Accrued expenses 423 5.1 16.0
Income taxes payable (52.3) 12.2 36.9
Tax benefit on non-qualified options (7.7) (8.3) —
Other non-current assets and liabilities (67.1) (173-8) (142.1)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 382.6 168.2 2105
Investing Activities
Purchases of property (190.5) (133.8) (144.7)
Proceeds from sale of property 2.0 26.4 13.6
Proceeds from sale of businesses 18.9 4.8 17.6
Sale of short-term investments — — 3.5
Payments made in connection with acquisitions,
net of cash acquired {(119.2) (246.8) (56.5)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (288.8) (349.4) (166.5)
Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt, net (626.4) 501.3 85.4
Proceeds from issuance of fong-term debt 4.9 5.0 203.9
Increase (decrease) in revolving credit facility, net — — (239.5)
Repayment of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (187.0) (14.7) (18.6)
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 51.4 25.4 6.9
Purchases of treasury stock (47.) (300.4) {(0.3)
Dividends (113.7) (117.6) (91.6)
Distributions on Trust preferred securities (18.4) (18.4) (18.4)
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Financing Activities (936.3) 80.6 (72.2)
Discontinued Operations
Net cash provided (used) by discontinued operations 850.7 114.6 42.8
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 0. (2.9) (1.7)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.3 1.1 12.9
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 77.5 66.4 53.5
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 858 $ 775 $ 664

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Unearned
Accumulated Portion of
Additional Income Other Restricted
Common Stock Paid-In Retained in  Comprehensive Stock Treasury
(in millions) Shares Amount Capital the Business Income Awards Stock Total
Balance December 31, 1998 111.528 $ 5577 $ 8835 $ (1204) $ (13.6) $ (2.7) $ (656) $1,238.9
Net income 169.6 169.6
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized translation
adjustments net of
reclassification adjustments
for loss included in net
income of $0.6 (26.6) (26.6)
Minimum pension
liability adjustment (1.6) (16)
Total comprehensive income 141.4
Employee award programs 0.540 2.6 123 15 0.7 174
Purchases of stock for treasury (0.3) (0.3)
Dividends (per share — $1.10) (101.5) (101.5)
Baiance December 31, 1999 112.065 560.3 895.8 (52.3) (41.8) (1.2) (65.2) 1,295.6
Net income 325.9 325.9
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized translation adjustments (16.4) (16.4)
Minimum pension
liability adjustment 0.5 0.5
Total comprehensive income 310.0
Employee award programs 1.230 6.2 27.0 5.6 38.8
Purchases of stock for treasury (300.4) (300.4)
Dividends (per share - $1.10) (115.5) (115.5)
Balance December 31, 2000 113.295 566.5 922.8 158.1 (57.7) (1.2) (360.0) 1,228.5
Net income 289.2 289.2
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized translation
adjustments net of
reclassification adjustments
for loss included in net
income of $1.0 (3.5) (3.5)
Minimum pension
liability adjustment (48.9) {48.9)
Total comprehensive income 236.8
Employee award programs 1.850 9.2 50.7 0.6 (0.7) 59.8
Purchases of stock for treasury (50.1) (50.1)
Dividends (per share — $1.10) (113.6) {113.6)
Balance December 31, 2001 115.145 $ 5757 $ 9735 $ 3337 $ (o) $ (06) % (4108 $1,361.4

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect
the accounts of Goodrich Corporation and its majority-owned sub-
sidiaries (“the Company” or “Goodrich”). Investments in 20- to
so-percent-owned affiliates and majority-owned companies in
which investment is considered temporary are accounted for using
the equity method. Equity in earnings (losses) from these busi-
nesses is included in Other income (expense) — net. Intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated.

As discussed in Note S, the Company's Performance Materials
(“PM") and Engineered Industrial Products (“E{P") businesses
have been accounted for as discontinued operations. Unless
otherwise noted, disclosures herein pertain to the Company's
continuing operations.

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments
with a-maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Sale of Accounts Receivable The Company adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities,” on April 1, 2001. Prior to that, the
Company accounted for the sale of receivables in accordance with
SFAS No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” Trade accounts receiv-
able sold are removed from the balance sheet at the time of transfer.

Inventories Inventories, other than inventoried costs relating to
long-term contracts, are stated at the lower of cost or market.
Certain domestic inventories are valued by the last-in, first-out
(“LIFO”) cost method. Inventories not valued by the LIFO method
are valued principally by the average cost method.

Inventoried costs on long-term contracts include certain prepro-
duction costs, consisting primarily of tooling and design costs and
production costs, including applicable overhead. The costs attrib-
uted to units delivered under long-term commercial contracts are
based on the estimated average cost of all units expected to be pro-
duced and are determined under the learning curve concept, which
anticipates a predictable decrease in unit costs as tasks and pro-
duction techniques become more efficient through repetition.
This usually results in an increase in inventory (referred to as
“excess-over average”) during the early years of a contract.

If in-process inventory plus estimated costs to complete a specific
contract exceeds the anticipated remaining sales value of such con-
tract, such excess is charged to current earnings, thus reducing
inventory to estimated realizable value.

In accordance with industry practice, costs in inventory include
amounts relating to contracts with long production cycles, some of
* which are not expected to be realized within one year.

Long-Lived Assets Property, plant and equipment, including amounts
recorded under capital leases, are recorded at cost. Depreciation
and amortization is computed principally using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives: buildings and
improvements, 15 to 40 years; machinery and equipment, 5 to 15
years. In the case of capitalized lease assets, amortization is com-
puted over the lease term if shorter. Repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of the net assets of acquired businesses and is being amor-
tized by the straight-line method, in most cases over 20 to 40 years
for all acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001. Goodwill
amortization is recorded in cost of sales.

Identifiable intangible assets are recorded at cost, or when acquired
as a part of a business combination, at estimated fair value.
These assets include patents and other technology agreements,
trademarks, licenses, customer relationships and non-compete
agreements. They are generally amortized using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives of 5 to 25 years for all acquisi-
tions completed prior to june 30, 2001.

Impairment of long-lived assets and related goodwill is recognized
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset, or related groups of assets, may not be recov-
erable and the Company’s estimate of undiscounted cash flows
over the asset’s remaining estimated useful life are less than the
asset’s carrying value. Measurement of the amount of impairment
may be based on appraisal, market values of similar assets or esti-
mated discounted future cash flows resulting from the use and
ultimate disposition of the asset.

Revenue and Income Recognition For revenues not recognized under
the contract method of accounting, the Company recognizes rev-
enues from the sale of products at the point of passage of title,
which is at the time of shipment. Revenues earned from providing
maintenance service are recognized when the service is complete.

A significant portion of the Company's sales in the Aerostructures
and Aviation Technical Services Segment are under long-term,
fixed-priced contracts, many of which contain escalation clauses,
requiring delivery of products over several years and frequently pro-
viding the buyer with option pricing on follow-on orders. Sales and
profits on each contract are recognized in accordance with the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting, using the units-
of-delivery method. The Company follows the guidelines of
Statement of Position 81-1 (“SOP 81-1"), “Accounting for Per-
formance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts” (the contract method of accounting) except that the
Company’s contract accounting policies differ from the recommen-
dations of SOP 81-1 in that revisions of estimated profits on
contracts are included in earnings under the reallocation method
rather than the cumulative catch-up method.
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Profit is estimated based on the difference between total estimated
revenue and total estimated cost of a contract, excluding that
reported in prior periods, and is recognized evenly in the current
and future periods as a uniform percentage of sales value on all
remaining units to be delivered. Current revenue does not antici-
pate higher or lower future prices but includes units delivered at
actual sales prices. Cost includes the estimated cost of the prepro-
duction effort (primarily tooling and design), plus the estimated
cost of manufacturing a specified number of production units. The
specified number of production units used to establish the profit
margin is predicated upon contractual terms adjusted for market
forecasts and does not exceed the lesser of those quantities
assumed in original contract pricing or those guantities that the
Company now expects to deliver in the periods assumed in the orig-
inal contract pricing. Option quantities are combined with prior
orders when follow-on orders are released.

The contract method of accounting involves the use of various esti-
mating techniques to project costs at completion and includes
estimates of recoveries asserted against the customer for changes
in specifications. These estimates involve various assumptions
and projections relative to the outcome of future events, including
the quantity and timing of product deliveries. Also included
are assumptions relative to future labor performance and rates,
and projections relative to material and overhead costs. These
assumptions involve various levels of expected performance
improvements. The Company reevaluates its contract estimates
periodically and reflects changes in estimates in the current and
future periods under the reallocation method.

Included in sales are amounts arising from contract terms that
provide for invoicing a portion of the contract price at a date after
delivery. Also included are negotiated values for units delivered and
anticipated price adjustments for contract changes, claims, esca-
lation and estimated earnings in excess of billing provisions,
resulting from the percentage-of-completion method of account-
ing. Certain contract costs are estimated based on the learning
curve concept discussed under Inventories above. Included in
accounts receivable at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were recover-
able amounts under contracts in progress of $107.2 million and
$60.1 million, respectively, that represent amounts earned but
not billable at the respective balance sheet dates. These amounts
become billable according to their contract terms, which usually
consider the passage of time, achievement of milestones or com-
pletion of the project.

Financial Instruments The Company's financial instruments recorded
on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, accounts
and notes receivable, accounts payable and debt. Because of their
short maturity, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and short-term
bank debt approximates fair value. Fair value of long-term debt
is based on quoted market prices or on rates available to the
Company for debt with similar terms and maturities.

Off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments at December 31,
2001, consist of one interest rate swap agreement. This derivative
is entered into with a major commercial bank that has a high credit
rating. Interest rate swap agreements are used by the Company,
from time to time, to manage interest rate risk on its floating and
fixed rate debt portfolio. The cost of interest rate swaps is recorded
as part of interest expense and accrued expenses. Fair value of
these instruments is based on estimated current settlement cost.

From time to time, the Company utilizes forward exchange
contracts (principally against the Canadian dollar, British pound,
euro and U.S. dollar) to hedge U.S. dollar-denominated sales of
certain Canadian subsidiaries and the net receivable/payable posi-
tion arising from trade sales and purchases. Foreign currency
forward contracts reduce the Company’s exposure to the risk that
the eventual net cash inflows and outflows resulting from the
sale of products and purchases from suppliers denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the respective busi-
nesses will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates.
Foreign currency gains and losses under the above arrangements
are not deferred and are reported as part of cost of sales and
accrued expenses, unless the forward contracts qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS 133.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is based on
quoted market prices.

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for stock-based
employee compensation in accordance with the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations.

Earnings per Share Earnings per share is computed in accordance
with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.”

Research and Development Expense The Company performs research
and development under Company-funded programs for com-
mercial products, and under contracts with others. Research and
development under contracts with others is performed on both
military and commercial products. Total research and development
expenditures from continuing operations in 2001, 2000 and 1999
were $198.2 million, $186.0 million and $180.0 million, respec-
tively. Of these amounts, $49.0 million, $50.6 million and $43.7
million, respectively, were funded by customers.

Reclassifications Certain amounts in prior year financial statements
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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New Accounting Standards Effective January 1, 2001, the Company
adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended, which requires that all derivative
instruments be reported on the balance sheet at fair value and that
changes in a derivative's fair value be recognized currently in
earnings unless specific hedge criteria are met. If the derivative is
designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the
derivative and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow
hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the
derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income and are rec-
oghized in the income statement when the hedged item affects
earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash
flow hedges are recognized in earnings.

In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS No. 133, the
Company recorded the previously unrecognized fair market value of
an interest rate swap designated as a fair value hedge and the asso-
ciated adjustment to the carrying amount of the debt instrument
designated as the hedged item as cumulative-effect adjustments to
net income. As this pre-existing hedging relationship would have
met the requirements for the shortcut method at inception, the
Company chose to calculate the transition adjustment upon initial
adoption as though the shortcut method had been applied since
the inception of the hedging relationship. The effect of the adjust-
ment to the carrying value of the debt was offset entirely by the
impact of recording the fair value of the interest rate swap.
Accordingly, the net cumulative-effect adjustment to net income
was zero. Changes in fair value of the interest rate swap agreement
since adoption have been offset by changes in the fair value of the
hedged item (i.e., debt).

In July 2001, the Federal Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Staterment No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141"),
and Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”

(“SFAS 142"). SFAS 141 is effective as follows: a) use of the pooling- -

of-interest method is prohibited for business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001; and b) the provisions of SFAS 141 also
apply to all business combinations accounted for by the purchase
method that are completed after June 30, 2001. There are also
transition provisions that apply to business combinations com-
pleted before July 1, 2001, that were accounted for by the purchase
method. SFAS 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and applies to all goodwill and other intangible
assets recognized in an entity's statement of financial position at
that date, regardless of when those assets were initially recognized.

The Company will apply the new rules on accounting for goodwili
and other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter of 2c02.
Application of the non-amortization provisions of the Statement is
expected to result in an increase in income from continuing opera-
tions before income taxes and Trust distributions of approximately
$29 million per year. As provided for in the transition provisions of
SFAS No. 142, the Company will perform the first of the required
impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets
during the first six months of 2002. The Company has not yet deter-
mined what the effect of these tests will be on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

[n June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143"). SFAS 143 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with
the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. It applies to legal obligations associated
with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acqui-
sition, construction, development and/or the normal operation of a
long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS 143
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2002. The Company has not yet determined what the
effect of SFAS 143 will be on its consolidated financial condition or
results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS
144"). SFAS 144 supersedes FASB Statement No. 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of” (“SFAS 121”); however it retains the funda-
mental provisions of that statement related to the recognition and
measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be “held
and used.” In addition, SFAS 144 provides more guidance on esti-
mating cash flows when performing a recoverability test, requires
that a long-lived asset (group) to be disposed of other than by sale
(e.g., abandoned) be classified as “held and used” until it is dis-
posed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria to classify an
asset (group) as “held for sale.” SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company has not yet
determined what the effect of SFAS 144 will be on its consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

Note B. Acquisitions and Dispositions

Acquisitions

Pooling-of-interests On July 12, 1999, the Company completed a
merger with Coltec Industries Inc (“Coltec”) by exchanging 35.5 mil-
lion shares of Goodrich common stock for all of the common stock
of Coltec. Each share of Coltec common stock was exchanged for
0.56 of one share of Goodrich common stock. The merger was
accounted for as a pooling-of-interests, and all prior period finan-
cial statements were restated to include the financial information of
Coltec as though Coltec had always been a part of Goodrich.

Purchases The following acquisitions were recorded using the pur-
chase method of accounting. Their results of operations have been
included in the Company's results since their respective dates of
acquisition. Acquisitions made by businesses included within the
PM and EIP segments are not discussed below.

During 2001, the Company acquired a manufacturer of aerospace
lighting systems and related electronics, as well as the assets of a
designer and manufacturer of inertial sensors used for guidance
and contro! of unmanned vehicles and precision-guided systems.
Total consideration aggregated $114.4 million, of which $101.6
million represented goodwill and other intangible assets. The
purchase price allocation for these acquisitions has been based on
preliminary estimates.
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During 2000, the Company acquired a manufacturer of earth and
sun sensors for attitude determination and control ejection seat
technology; a manufacturer of fuel nozzles; a developer of avionics
and displays; the assets of a developer of precision electro-optical
instrumentation serving the space and military markets; an equity
interest in a joint venture focused on developing and operating a
comprehensive open electronic marketplace for aerospace after-
market products and services; a manufacturer of precision and
large optical systems, laser encoding systems, and visual surveil-
lance systems for day and night use and a supplier of pyrotechnic
devices for space, missile and aircraft systems. Total consideration
aggregated $242.6 million, of which $105.4 million represented
goodwill and other intangible assets.

During 1999, the Company acquired a manufacturer of spacecraft
attitude determination and control systems and sensor and imag-
ing instruments; the remaining 50 percent interest in a joint
venture, located in Singapore, that overhauls and repairs thrust
reversers, nacelles and nacelle components; an ejection seat
business; and a manufacturer and developer of micro-electro-
mechanical systems, which integrate efectrical and mechanical
components to form “sman” sensing and control devices. Total
consideration aggregated $56.5 million, of which $55.0 million rep-
resented goodwill.

The purchase agreements for the manufacturer and developer
of micro-electromechanical systems provide for additional consid-
eration to be paid over the next six years based on a percentage of
net sales. The additional consideration for the first five years,
however, is guaranteed not to be less than $3.5 million. As the $3.5
million of additional consideration is not contingent on future
events, it has been included in the purchase price and allocated to
the net assets acquired. All additional contingent amounts payable
under the purchase agreement will be recorded as additional pur-
chase price when earned and amortized over the remaining useful
life of the goodwill.

The impact of these acquisitions was not material in relation to the
Company’s results of operations. Consequently, pro forma infor-
mation is not presented.

Dispositions

During 2001, the Company sold a minority interest in one of its
businesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $7.2 million, which has
been reported in other income (expense), net.

During 2000, the Company sold a product line of one of its busi-
nesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $2.0 million, which has been
reported in other income (expense), net.

During 1999, the Company sold all or a portion of its interest in two
businesses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $6.8 million, which has
been reported in other income (expense), net.

For dispositions accounted for as discontinued operations refer to
Note S to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note C. Merger-Related and Consclidation Costs

The Company incurred $107.3 million ($71.3 million after-tax) and
$44.2 million ($28.6 million after-tax) of merger-related and con-
solidation costs in 2001 and 2000, respectively. These charges
related to the following segments:

(in millions) 2001 2000

Aerostructures and Aviation
Technical Services 3 351 1% 3.7
Landing Systems 44.7 253
Engine and Safety Systems 17.7 1.7
Electronic Systems 7.3 0.4
~ Total Segment Charges 104.8 31
Corporate 2.5 13.1
$ 1073 % 442

Merger-related and consolidation reserves at December 31, 2001,
as well as activity during the year, consisted of:

Performance
Balance Materials Balance
December 31, Restructuring December 31,
(in millions) 2000 Provision Activity Reserve 2001
Personnel-related costs $ 12.9 $ 35.0 $  (17.6) $ (3.7} $ 266
Transaction costs 1.9 — (r.9) — —_
Consolidation costs 43-4 72.3 (59.4) (37.7) 18.6
$ 58.2 $ 1073 $  (78.9) $  (4.4) l S 45.2
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Merger-Related and Consolidation Costs — Provision
The following is a description of key components of the $107.3 mil-
lion provision for.merger-related and consolidation costs in 2001

Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services The segment recorded
$35.1 million in merger-related and consolidation costs, consisting
of $16.6 million in personnel-related costs, $18.1 million in asset
impairments and $0.4 million in facility consolidation and closure
costs. Of the charge, $20.7 million represents non-cash items,
including $2.6 million of pension curtailment charges and $18.1 in
asset impairments.

The personnel-related charges are for employee severance and
benefits for 1,658 employees, 488 of which were terminated in
2001 leaving 1,170 employees remaining to be terminated as of
December 31, 2001. Asset impairment charges include $7.8 million
to write down assets held for sale or disposal based on their
estimated fair value and $10.3 million to write off of long-term col-
lateralized receivables as a result of a deterioration in the value of
the collateral. Facility closure costs related to equipment relocation
and a lease termination fee.

The charge recorded during 2001 is expected to generate approxi-
mately $90 million to $100 million in annual savings.

Landing Systems The segment recorded $44.7 million in merger-
related and consolidation costs, consisting of $4.0 million in
personnel-related costs (net of $0.3 million revision of prior esti-
mate), $26.4 million in asset impairments (net of $1.3 million
revision of prior estimate) and $14.3 million in facility consolidation
and closure costs. Of the charge, $26.7 million represents non-cash
items, including $0.6 million of pension curtailment charges and
$27.7 million in asset impairments, offset by a $1.6 million revision
of prior estimates.

The personnel-related charges are for employee severance and
benefits for 145 employees, 49 of which were terminated in 2001,
leaving 96 employees remaining to be terminated as of December
31, 2001. Asset impairment charges relate to the write-down of
assets held for sale or disposal based on their estimated fair value,
comprised primarily of $25 million, representing the difference
between the carrying value and fair value for rotable assets identi-
fied for sale. Facility closure costs related to lease termination costs
($2.1 million), equipment relocation ($6.3 million), environmental
cleanup ($1.5 million) and facility cleanup and preparation for sale
($4-4 million).

Of the 2001 facility consolidation and closure costs, $7.2 million were
related to the Landing Gear restructuring that began in 1999. The
remaining $37.5 million charge recorded during 2001 is expected to
generate approximately $7 million to $9 million in annual savings.

Engine and Safety Systems The segment recorded $17.7 million
in merger-related and consolidation costs, consisting of $6.8 mil-
lion in personnel-related costs, $7.7 million in asset impairments
and $3.2 million in facility consolidation and closure costs. Of
the charge, $8.6 million represents non-cash items, including
$0.9 million of pension curtailment charges and $7.7 million in
asset impairments.

The personnel-related charges are for employee severance and
benefits for 801 employees, 235 of which were terminated in 2001,
leaving 566 employees remaining to be terminated as of December
31, 2001, Asset impairment charges relate to the write-down of
assets held for sale or disposal based on their estimated fair value.
Facility closure costs related to lease and contract termination costs
and facility cleanup costs to prepare the facility for sale.

The charge recorded during 2001 is expected to generate approxi-
mately $11 million to $15 million in annual savings.

Electronic Systemns The segment recorded $7.3 million in merger-
related and consolidation costs, consisting of $4.8 million in
personnel-related costs and $2.5 million in facility closure and
consolidation costs. Of the charge, $0.3 million represents a non-
cash pension curtailment charge.

The personnel-related charges are for employee severance and
benefits for 183 employees, 51 of which were terminated in 2001,
leaving 132 employees remaining to be terminated as of December
31, 2001. Facility closure and consolidation costs related to lease
termination costs and equipment relocation.

The charge recorded during 2001 is expected to generate approxi-
mately $g million to $11 million in annual savings.

Corporate Merger-related and consolidation costs were $2.5 mil-
lion, consisting of employee severance and benefits for 15
employees terminate during the period and employee relocation
costs and change-in-control benefits associated with the Coltec
merger. There were no employees remaining to be terminated as of
December 31, 2001.

Merger-Related and Consolidation Costs — Activity

Of the $78.9 million in activity, $30.3 million represented cash
payments and $56.8 million represented asset write-offs. These
amounts were offset by a net increase to the reserve of $8.2 million,
principally acquisition-related reserves that were established
through the opening balance sheet.

Approximately $35 million of the $41.4 million of reserves recorded
in 2000 for restructuring costs associated with the sale of PM
($35.6 million in asset impairment costs, $2.1 million in consolida-
tion costs and $3.7 million in severance costs) were written off in
2001. The remaining portion of the reserve (approximately $6 mil-
lion) was assumed by the buyer and accordingly written off against
the gain on sale during 2001.
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Merger-related and consolidation reserves at December 31, 2000,
as well as activity during the year, consisted of:

Performance
Balance Materials Balance
December 31, Restructuring December 31,
(in millions) 1999 Provision Activity Reserve 2000
Persannel-related costs $ 35.4 $ 16.7 $  (42.9) $ 3.7 $ 12.9
Transaction costs 2.0 — (R} — 1.9
Consolidation costs 6.5 27.5 (28.3) 37.7 43.4
$ 439 $ 442 $  (na) $ 414 $ 58.2

During 2000, the Company recorded net merger-related and con-
solidation costs of $44.2 million consisting of:

+ $18.8 million in personnel-related costs (offset by a credit of $2.1
million representing a revision of prior estimates) consisting of:

- $9.5 million in settlement charges related to lump sum
payments made under a non-qualified pension plan that were
triggered by the Coltec merger.

- $3.3 million in employee relocation costs associated with the
Coltec merger.

- $6.0 million for work force reductions.
+ $27.5 million in consolidation costs consisting of:

- $11.7 million of accelerated depreciation related to assets at
the Company's Euless, Texas, facility whose useful lives had
been reduced as a result of the decision to consolidate the
facility with the Company’s other landing gear facilities.

- $2.5 million of asset impairment charges representing the
excess of the assets carrying value over the fair value less
costs to sell.

- $13.3 million for realignment activities, of which $6.5 million
represented equipment relocation costs and $3.8 million repre-
sented facility closure costs associated with the consolidation
of the Company’s landing gear businesses. The remaining
$3 million related 1o similar costs at various other facilities.

The $71.3 million in activity during the year includes $57.5 million
related to cash payments and $13.8 million related to the write-off
of assets and accelerated depreciation.

During negotiations with the buyer of PM, the buyer requested that
the Company absorb the cost of closing and/or selling certain
of the segment’s textile businesses as a condition of the sale
(the “Textile Consolidation”). These actions included the closure
and/or sale of certain facilities, the sale of certain assets and the
consolidation of certain management functions. The estimated

costs of these restructuring activities included $35.6 million for
asset impairments, $2.1 million for consolidation costs and $3.7
million for severance costs.

Since the decision to perform the actions contemplated by the
Textile Consolidation was a direct result of the decision to dis-
pose of the PM segment, the costs associated with the Textile
Consolidation were reflected as an obligation/reserve in the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2000. The income
statement effect was deferred and recognized as part of the gain on
sale in February 2001.

Merger-related and consolidation reserves at December 37, 1999,
as well as activity during the year, consisted of:

Balance Balance

December 31, December 31,

(in millions) 1998 Provision Activity 1999
Personnel-related

costs $ — $ 1278 $ (924) $ 35.4

Transaction costs — 79.2 (77-2) 2.0

Consolidation costs — 21.3 {14.8) 6.5

$ — § 2283 $ (1844) $ 439

During 1999, the Company recorded merger-related and consoli-
dation costs of $228.3 million, of which $9.3 million represents
non-cash asset impairment charges. Merger-related and consolida-
tion costs consist of:

+ $127.8 million of personnel-related costs, which include sever-
ance, change in control and relocation costs:

— Personnel-related costs associated with the Coltec merger
were $120.8 million, consisting of $61.8 million incurred under
change in control provisions in employment agreements,
$53.4 million in employee severance costs and $5.6 million of
relocation costs.

— Personnel-related costs also include employee severance costs
of $7.0 million (approximately 400 positions).
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o $21.3 million of consolidation costs, which include facility
consolidation costs and asset impairment charges:

- Consolidation costs associated with the Coltec merger were
$15.6 million, consisting primarily of a $6.6 million non-cash
impairment charge for the former Goodrich and Aerospace
headquarters buildings in Ohio, a $2.5 million adjustment to
accounts receivable to conform revenue recognition policies of
Goodrich and Coltec, a $3.7 million charge for realignment
activities at Landing Gear facilities (environmental and asset
disposal/exit costs) and $2.2 million of duplicate office
expense. The remaining $0.6 million represented miscella-
neous consolidation costs associated with the Coltec merger.

— Realignment activities at the Company’s Lewis Engineering
operating unit in connection with the closure of the facility
($1.4 million), equipment relocation costs and costs of
employees associated with the closing of the Company’s Tolo
facility ($2.5 million) and costs to prepare a facility for closure
at the Company’s Aircraft Integrated Systems operating unit
($1.8 million).

Transaction costs were associated with the Coltec merger and
include investment-banking fees, accounting fees, legal fees,
litigation settlement costs, registration and listing fees and other
transaction costs.

The merger-related and consolidation reserves were reduced by
$184.4 million during the year, of which $175.8 million represented
cash payments.

Note D. Earnings Per Share
The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
income from continuing operations is as follows:

{in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1099
Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted
earnings per share — income
from continuing operations $ 169 1% 2352 $ 8.9
Denominator:
Denominator for basic
earnings per share -
weighted-average share 1031 104.8 110.0
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options, warrants and
restricted stock issue 0.6 1.0 0.7
Contingent shares 03 0.4 —
Convertible preferred securities 2.9 2.9 2.9
Dilutive potential common shares 3.8 43 3.6
Denominator for diluted
earnings per share — adjusted
weighted-average shares and
assumed conversion 106.9 109.1 13.6
Per share income from
continuing operations:
Basic 3 172 |$ 224 $ o078
Diluted $ 165 |$ 206 $ 076

Note E. Sale of Receivables

The Company has an agreement to sell certain trade accounts
receivable, up to a maximum of $110.0 million and $95.0 million at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. At December 31, 20071,
and December 31, 2000, $97.3 million and $51.0 million, respec-
tively, of the Company's receivables were sold under this agreement
and the sale was reflected as a reduction of accounts receivable.
The receivables were sold without recourse and at a discount,
which is included in interest expense. This agreement includes a
provision pursuant to which the agreement may be terminated
upon a rating downgrade of the Company to a certain level. If such
an event were to occur, the Company expects that it would have
sufficient capital resources through its existing revolving credit
facilities to meet its needs.

During 2000, the Company entered into an agreement to sell cer-
tain long-term receivables. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, $20.3
million and $47.7 million, respectively, of the Company’s long-term
receivables were sold under this agreement and the sale was
reflected as a reduction of long-term receivables (included in other
assets). This agreement contains various recourse provisions
under which the Company may be required to repurchase receiv-
ables. In the fourth guarter of 2001, the Company was required to
repurchase approximately $20 million of receivables pursuant to
the agreement.
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Note F. Payment-in-Kind Notes Receivable

The proceeds from the sale of the Company’s PM segment included
$172 million in debt securities issued by the buyer in the form of
unsecured notes with interest payable in cash or payment-in-kind,
at the option of the issuer. Payment-in-kind refers to the issuer's
ability to issue additional debt securities with identical terms and
maturities as the original debt securities as opposed to making
interest payments in cash. The notes have a term of 10.5 years and
bear interest at a rate of 13 percent, which increases to 15 percent if
cash interest payments do not commence after the fifth year.

The Company initially recorded a discount of $21.2 million based
on a 14 percent discount rate. The notes have a prepayment clause
that allows the issuer to reduce the principal amount by $75 million
in the third year by making a $60 million cash payment. In deter-
mining the discount on the notes, the Company has assumed that
the prepayment will be made and that cash interest payments on
the notes will commence after the fifth year.

Interest income on the notes is recognized using the effective inter-
est method and is recorded in Interest Income in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. The notes are classified as held-to-maturity in
accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities.”

(in millions, except
quantities which are

number of aircraft) Aircraft Order Status”

The Company does not currently believe a valuation allowance is
necessary. The Company will record a valuation allowance if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the notes may not be recoverable. The fair market value of the notes
at December 31, 2001, approximated $167 million.

Note G. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:

(in millions) 2001 2000
FIFO or average cost (which approximates
current costs):
Finished products $ 1720 | $ 17037
In process 538.9 563.9
Raw materials and supplies 2174 162.8
928.0 897.4
Reserve to reduce certain inventories to
LIFO basis (42.2) (39.0)
Progress payments and advances (44.3) (48.3)
Total $ 8415 |$ 80g.6

Approximately 13 percent of inventory was valued by the LIFO
method in 2001 and 2000.

In-process inventories as of December 31, 2001, which include sig-
nificant deferred costs for long-term contracts accounted for under
contract accounting, are summarized by contract as follows:

Company Order Status in-Process tnventory

Firm Excess
Delivered Unfilled Unfilled Contract Unfilled Year Pre- Over-
Contract to Airlines Orders Options Quantity®  Delivered Orders® Complete® Production | production average Total
717-200 88 49 94 200 102 48 2007 $ 124! $ 352 $ — $ 476
Embraer Tailcone — 12 202 600 4 — 2014 — 13.5 — 13.5
Trent goo — 23 33 267 — — 2019 — 28.4 — 28.4
7Q7 — — — 18 — —_ 2004 0.5 18.6 — 19.1
Others 132.5 1.0 7.2 150.7
In-process inventory
related to long-
term contracts $ 1454| $ 1067 § 72 259.3
In-process inventory
not related to long-
term contracts 276.6
Balance at
December 31, 2001 J $ s538.9

—_——
=)
)

2) Represents the number of aircraft used to obtain average unit cost.
)

N~
=

continue in effect beyond this date.

Represents the aircraft order status as reported by independent sources for the related aircraft and engine option.

Represents the number of aircraft for which the Company has firm unfilled orders.
The year presented represents the year in which the final production units included in the contract quantity are expected to be delivered. The contract may
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Based on revisions to the production schedule announced by
Boeing at the end of 2001, the Company reevaluated its estimated
costs to complete Boeing 717-200 contract, its learning curve
assumptions as well as the number of aircraft expected to be deliv-
ered. As a result of this analysis, the Company recorded a charge of
$76.5 million during the fourth quarter of 2001. This charge elimi-
nated the remaining balance of excess-over-average inventory costs
yet to be recognized and reduced preproduction inventory bal-
ances down to $35.2 million as of December 31, 2001. The Company
will continue to record no margin on this contract based on its
revised assumptions.

Note M. Financing Arrangements

Shont-Term Bank Debt At December 31, 2001, the Company had
$750 million in committed global syndicated revolving credit
agreements. These credit agreements replaced the $600 million of
committed domestic revolving credit agreements (reduced upon
the sale of the PM segment from $900 million at December 31,
2000) and the $80 million committed multi-currency revolving
credit facility (reduced upon the sale of the PM segment from $125
million at December 31, 2000). The new credit facilities consist of
a $425 million three-year agreement expiring in December 2004
and a $325 million 364-day agreement expiring in December 2002.
Borrowings under these agreements bear interest, at the Com-
pany’s option, at rates tied to the agent bank’s prime rate or for
U.S. doflar or Great Britain pound borrowings, the London inter-
bank offered rate, and for eurodollar borrowings, the EURIBO rate.
Under the agreements expiring in 2004, the Company is required to
pay a facility fee of 12.5 basis points per annum on the total $425
million committed line. According to the 364-day agreement
that will expire in December 2002, the Company is required to
pay a facility fee of 10 basis points per annum on the total $325 mil-
lion committed line. On these two agreements, if the amount
outstanding on the line of credit exceeds 33 percent of the total
commitment, a usage fee of 12.5 basis points per annum on
the loan outstanding is payable by the Company. These fees and
the interest rate margin on outstanding revolver borrowings are
subject to change as the Company's credit ratings change. At
December 31, 2001, $80 million was outstanding pursuant to the
three-year agreement.

In addition, the Company had available formal foreign lines of
credit and overdraft facilities of $20 million at December 31, 2001,
all of which was available.

The Company also maintains uncommitted domestic money
market facilities with various banks aggregating $111 million, of
which $75 million was unused and available at December 31, 2001.
Weighted-average interest rates on short-term borrowings were
5.8 percent, 6.6 percent and 5.2 percent during 2001, 2000 and
3999, respectively.

Long-Term Debt At December 31, 2001 and 2000, long-term debt
and capital lease obligations consisted of:

(in millions) 2001 2000
MTN notes payable $ 695.0 |$ 699.0
IDRBs, maturing in 2023, 6.0% 60.0 60.0
7.5% senior notes, maturing in 2008 300.0 300.0
6.6% senior notes, maturing in 2009 207.3 200.0
Other debt, maturing to 2020
(interest rates from 4.0% to 6.5%) 37.7 37.4
1,304.0 1,296.4
Capital lease obligation (Note I} 3.2 5.0
Total $ 1,307.2 | $ 13014

Senior Notes In 1999, the Company issued $200.0 million of 6.6
percent senior notes due in 2009. The Company entered into a
fixed-to-floating interest rate swap to manage the Company’s
interest rate exposure. The settlement and maturity dates on the
swap are the same as those on the notes. The Company may
redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time prior to maturity. In
connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 133 in 20071, the carrying
value of the notes has been adjusted to reflect the fair value of the
interest rate swap.

The $300.0 million of 7.5 percent senior notes due in 2008 are obli-
gations of Coltec Industries Inc. The Company expects to offer to
exchange all $300.0 million principal amount of these notes for
similar Goodrich securities during 2002 in connection with the
spin-off of EIP.

MTN Notes Payable The Company has periodically issued long-term
debt securities in the public markets through a medium-term note
program (referred to as the MTN program), which commenced
in 1995. MTNs outstanding at December 31, 2001, consist entirely
of fixed-rate non-callable debt securities. All MTNs outstanding
were issued between 1995 and 1998, with interest rates ranging
from 6.5 percent to 8.7 percent and maturity dates ranging from
2008 to 2046.
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IDRBs The industrial development revenue bonds maturing in 2023
were issued to finance the construction of a hangar facility in 1993.
Property acquired through the issuance of these bonds secures the
repayment of the bonds.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt, exclusive of capital lease
obligations, during the five years subsequent to December 31, 2001,
are as follows (in millions): 2002 - $4.3; 2003 — $2.2; 2004 — $1.3;
2005 — $1.3 and 2006 - $1.3.

The Company's debt agreements contain various restrictive
covenants that, among other things, place limitations on the
payment of cash dividends and the repurchase of the Company's
capital stock. Under the most restrictive of these agreements,
$736.4 million of income retained in the business and additional
capital was free from such limitations at December 31, 2001.

Note [. Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain of its office and manufacturing facilities
as well as machinery and equipment under various leasing arrange-
ments. The future minimum lease payments from continuing
operations, by year and in the aggregate, under capital leases and
under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year, consisted of the
following at December 31, 2001:

Non-

cancelable

Capital Operating

(in millions) Leases Leases

2002 $ 21§ 248

2003 1.9 22.4

2004 1.4 18.8

200§ 0.3 14.6

2006 — 15.6

Thereafter — 64.2

Total minimum payments 57 $ 1604
Amounts representing interest (0.9)

Present value of net minimum

lease payments 4.8

Current portion of capital lease
obligations (1.6)

Total $ 3.2

Net rent expense from continuing operations consisted of the
following:

(in millions} 2001 2000 1999
Minimum rentals $313 |$ 285 $ 33

Contingent rentals 1.6 1.7 —
Sublease rentals (0.1) (0.1) (0:2)
Total $328 1$ 300 § 329

Note |. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits

The Company has several noncontributory defined benefit pension
plans covering eligible employees. Plans covering salaried employ-
ees generally provide benefit payments using a formula that is
based on an employee’s compensation and length of service. Plans
covering hourly employees generally provide benefit payments of
stated amounts for each year of service. The Company also spon-
sors several unfunded defined benefit postretirement plans that
provide certain health-care and life insurance benefits to eligible
employees. The health-care plans are contributory, with retiree con-
tributions adjusted periodically, and contain other cost-sharing
features, such as deductibles and coinsurance. The life insurance
plans are generally non-contributory.

The Company's general funding policy for qualified pension plans
is to contribute amounts at least sufficient to satisfy regulatory
funding standards. The Company’s qualified pension plans were
fully funded on an accumulated benefit obligation basis at
December 31, 2001 and 2000. Assets for these plans consist prin-
cipally of corporate and government obligations and commingled
funds invested in equities, debt and real estate. At December 31,
2001, the pension plans held 2.6 million shares of the Company’s
common stock with a fair value of $68.9 million.

During 2000, the Company commenced a program to fund certain
non-qualified benefit plans with the goal of being fully funded by the
time an eligible employee reaches the age of 62.

Amortization of unrecognized transition assets and liabilities, prior
service cost and gains and losses (if applicable) are recorded using
the straight-line method over the average remaining service period
of active employees, or approximately 12 years.
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The following table sets forth the status of the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans and defined benefit postretirement plans as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the amounts recorded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at these dates. The pension and
postretirement benefits related to discontinued operations retained

by the Company are included in the amounts below.

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

{in millions) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Change in Projected Benefit Obligations
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 11,9875 $ 1,875.7 350.3 $ 3379
Service cost 28.5 28.8 2.2 2.3
Interest cost 144.4 1471 27.2 26.
Amendments 4.2 (27 — —
Actuarial {gains) losses (33.1) 120.5 14.4 19.3
Participant contributions 0.8 — — —
Acquisitions 2.3 2.6 2.3 —
Plan settlements — (18.9) — —
Curtailment — — (8.4) —
Foreign currency translation (r1) — — —
Benefits paid (173.0) (165.6) (38.5) (35.3)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 19605 $ 1,987.5 349.5 $ 3503
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2,109 $ 2,147.6 — $ —
Actual return on plan assets (105.4) 117.2 — —
Acquisitions — 2.8 — —
Participant contributions 0.8 — — —
Company contributions 10.5 34.7 385 35.3
Plan settlements — (25.8) — —
Foreign currency translation (1.2) — — —
Benefits paid (173.0) (165.6) (38.5) {35.3)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,842.6 $ 2,109 — $ —
Funded Status (Underfunded) )
Funded status 3 (n79) $ 1234 (349.5) $ (3503)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 255.1 (26.8) {5.1) (18.2)
Unrecognized prior service cost 42.4 55.7 (0.8) (11)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 1.4 27.8 — —
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $ 180 $ 180 (355.4) $ (369.6)
Amounts Recognized in the Statement of
Financia! Position Consist of:
Prepaid benefit cost $ 2422 $ 2380 — $ -
Intangible asset 22.8 2.7 — —
Accumnulated other comprehensive income 79.5 5.7 — —
Accrued benefit fiability (163.5) (66.3) (355.4) (369.6)
Net amount recognized $ 1810 $ 1801 (355-4) $ (369.6)
Weighted-Average Assumptions as of December 31
Discount rate 7.50% 7.75% 7.50% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets 9.25% 9.25% — —
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% — —
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For measurement purposes, an 8.5 percent annual rate of increase
in the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed
for 2002, The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0 per-
cent for 2006 and remain at that level thereafter.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $87.9 million,
$74.9 million, and $8.4 million, respectively, as of December 31,
2001. The projected benefit obligation and accumulated ben-
efit obligation for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were $75.2 million, $59.6

Pension Benefits

million, respectively, as of December 31, 2000. These amounts are
included in the above table.

In 2001, global capital market developments resulted in negative
returns on the Company's pension plan assets and a decline in the
discount rate used to estimate the pension liability. As a result, the
Company was required to adjust the minimum pension liability
recorded in its consolidated balance sheet. The effect of this adjust-
ment was to increase pension liabilities by $93.9 million, increase
intangible assets by $20.1 million, increase deferred income tax
assets by $24.9 million, and increase accumulated other compre-
hensive loss by $48.9 million ($73.8 million on a pre-tax basis).

Other Benefits

(in millions) 2001

2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Components of Net Periodic Benefit
Cost {Income):
Service cost 285 $ 28.8 $ 33.2 $ 2.2 $ 2.3 $ 3.4
Interest cost 144.4 1471 137.8 27.2 26.4 23.1
Expected return on plan assets (188.7) (190.3) (185.6) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost 8.1 12.0 1.0 (o) (1.9) (2.2)
Amortization of transition obligation 3.1 1 (1.4) — — —
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss (3.5) (8.6) (4.1) 03 03 (0.6)
Benefit cost (income). (8.) (9-9) (9.1} 29.6 274 23.7
Settlements and curtailments (gain)/loss 15.6 9.5 0.1 (8.5) — —
7.5 3 (0.4) $ (9.0) $ 21.1 $ 27.1 $ 23.7

The table below quantifies the impact of a one percentage point
change in the assumed health care cost trend rate.

1 Percentage 1 Percentage

Point Point
(in millions) Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost
components in 2001 : $ 17§ 1.5
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation as
of December 31, 2001 $ 189 $ 165

The Company also maintains voluntary retirement savings plans for
_salaried and wage employees. Under provisions of these plans, eli-
gible employees can receive Company matching contributions on
up to the first 6 percent of their eligible earnings. For 2001, 2000
and 1999, Company contributions amounted to $36.9 million, $37.5
million, and $36.0 million, respectively. Company contributions
include amounts related to employees of discontinued operations.

Note K. Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and Trust
distributions as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Income
consists of the following:

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Domestic $ 2257 1% 3146 $ 1393
Foreign 56.0 52.4 45.7

Total $ 2817 |$ 3670 § 1850

A summary of income tax (expense) benefit from continuing oper-
ations in the Consoclidated Statement of Income is as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Current:

Federal $ {433):% (287 $ 156
Foreign (203) | (96 (5.8
State (3-2) (6.2) (7.0)
(75-8) (154.5) (7.2)

Deferred:
Federal (24.8) 46 (70.5)
Foreign 6.3 (12.9) (10.9)
(18:5) 33.2 (81.4)
Total $ (943} 1% (1213) $ (88.6)
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Significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2000
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrual for postretirement benefits other
than pensions $ 1441 |[$ 1580
Inventories 57.0 42.2
Other nondeductible accruals 4.4 43.3
Tax credit and net operating loss carryovers 37 48.6
Employee benefits plans 4.6 88
Other 92.0 24.5
Total deferred income tax assets 376.2 325.4
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Tax over book depreciation (73.5) (55.3)
Tax over book intangible amortization {65.6) (46.5)
Pensions 1.8 (33.3)
Other (139.9) (97.7)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (277.2) (232.8)
Net deferred income taxes $ 990 (% 926

Management has determined, based on the Company’s history of
prior earnings and its expectations for the future, that taxable
income of the Company will more likely than not be sufficient to
recognize fully these net deferred tax assets. In addition, manage-
ment’s analysis indicates that the turnaround periods for certain of
these assets are for long periods of time or are indefinite. In partic-
ular, the turnaround of the largest deferred tax asset related to
accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions will
occur over an extended period of time and, as a result, will be real-
ized for tax purposes over those future periods. The tax credit and
net operating loss carryovers, principally relating to Rohr, are pri-
marily comprised of federal net operating loss carryovers of $62.8
million, which expire in the years 2005 through 2013, and invest-
ment tax credit and other credits of $15.1 million, which expire in
the years 2003 through 2014. The remaining deferred tax assets
and liabilities approximately match each other in terms of timing
and amounts and should be realizable in the future, given the
Company's operating history.

The effective income tax rate from continuing operations varied
from the statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Percent of Pre-tax Income 2001 2000 1999
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Amortization of non-deductible

goodwill 1.4 0.7 0.8
Credits (0.5) (0.4)
State and local taxes 0.7 1. 2.5
Tax exempt income from

foreign sales corporation 6.7) (3.8) (3-5)
Trust distributions (1.3) (1.0) (2.0)
Merger-related costs .7
Repatriation of

non-U.S. earnings 0.9 (0.4) 2.0
Other items 4.0 1.9 1.4
Effective income tax rate 33.5% 331% 47.9%

The Company has not provided for U.S. federal and foreign
withholding taxes on $146.8 million of foreign subsidiaries’
undistributed earnings as of December 31, 2001, because such
earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely. It is not
practical to determine the amount of income tax liability that
would result had such earnings actually been repatriated. On
repatriation, certain foreign countries impose withholding taxes.
The amount of withholding tax that would be payable on remittance
of the entire amount of undistributed earnings would approxi-
mate $10.9 million.

Note L. Business Segment Information

Due to the sale of the Company's PM segment, as well as the
intended spin-off of the Company’s EIP segment early in 2002, the
Company has redefined its segments in accordance with SFAS No.
131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” The Company’s operations are now classified into
four reportable business segments: Aerostructures and Aviation
Technical Services, Landing Systems, Engine and Safety Systems,
and Electronic Systems. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified
all periods based on its revised segment reporting.

Aerostructures and Aviation Technical Services Aerostructures is a
leading supplier of nacelles, pylons, thrust reversers and related air-
craft engine housing components. The aviation technical services
division performs comprehensive total aircraft maintenance, repair,
overhaul and modification for many commercial airlines, independ-
ent operations, aircraft leasing companies and airfreight carriers.

Landing Systems Landing Systems provides systems and compo-
nents pertaining to aircraft taxi, takeoff, landing and braking.
Several divisions within the group are linked by their ability to con-
tribute to the integration, design, manufacture and service of entire
aircraft undercarriage systems, including sensors, landing gear, cer-
tain brake controls, and wheels and brakes.

Engine and Safety Systems Engine and Safety Systems produces
engine and fuel controls, pumps, fuel delivery systems, as well as
structural and rotating components such as disks, blisks, shafts
and airfoils. This group also produces aircraft evacuation, de-icing
and passenger restraint systems, as well as ejection seats and crew
and attendant seating.

Electronic Systems Electronic Systems produces a wide array of
products that provide flight performance measurements, flight
management, and control and safety data. Included are a variety
of sensors systems that measure and manage aircraft fuel and
monitor oil debris; engine, transmission and structural health; and
aircraft motion control systems. The segment's products also
include instruments and avionics, warning and detection systems,
ice detection systems, test equipment, aircraft interior and exterior
lighting systems, landing gear cables and harnesses, satellite con-
trol, data management and payload systems, launch and missile
telemetry systems, airborne surveillance and reconnaissance sys-
tems and laser warning systems.
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Segment operating income is total segment revenue reduced by
operating expenses identifiable with that business segment, except
that merger-related and consolidation costs and unusual inventory
adjustments are presented separately. Unusual inventory adjust-
ments are classified within cost of sales and relate primarily to
inventory adjustments associated with reducing the Company’s
investment in the Boeing 717 program and in its Super 27 re-engin-
ing program due to reduced expectations for these programs. The
reduced expectations for the Boeing 717 program relate directly
to Boeing's announced production schedule reductions for this
program during the fourth quarter of 2001, while the Super 27
reduction in expectations was primarily due to deteriorating eco-
nomic conditions and the September 11 terrorist attacks.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as those for the consolidated Company. There are no significant
intersegment sales.

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999

Sales
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 15144 | % 1,4555 3 1,476.9
Landing Systems 1,149 1,057.7 1,060.6
Engine and Safety Systems 762.6 644.4 594.4
Electronic Systems 758.4 542.9 514.3

Total Sales $ 41845 | $3,7005 $ 3,646.2
Operating Income
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 2237 {3 2090 $ 2168
Landing Systems 153.1 149.0 147.1
Engine and Safety Systems 131.9 117.5 102.2
Electronic Systems 135.4 118.1 95.6

644.1 593.6 561.7

Corporate General and
Administrative Expenses (57.7) (59.7) (59.3)

Merger-related and

Consolidation Costs (107.3) (44.2) (228.3)
Unusual Inventory Adjustments (94.5) — —
Total Operating Income $ 3846 | % 4837 3 2742

Unusual items
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 1296 | % 37 % 6.2
Landing Systems 44.7 253 17.0
Engine and Safety Systems 17.7 1.7 —
Electronic Systems 7.3 c.4 9.0

Total Segment Unusual ltems $ 1993 |$ 311 $ 32.2

Assets
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 12210 | $ 1,2381  $ 71,1493
Landing Systems 949.0 935.8 903.3
Engine and Safety Systems 529.7 516.6 385.0
Electronic Systems 996.6 821.9 608.1
Net Assets of

Discontinued Operations 284.5 1,130.6 1,152.0
Corporate 6573 495-9 424.9

Total Assets $ 46381 |$ 51389 $ 46226

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999

Capital Expenditures
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 649 (% 350 $ 497
Landing Systems 62.3 42.5 62.1
Engine and Safety Systems 30.4 26.9 22.5
Electronic Systems 23.4 1.5 7.0
Corporate. 9.5 13.9 3.4

Total Capital Expenditures $ 1905 |$ 133.8 § 1447
Depreciation and Amortization

Expense
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services $ 468 |$ 447 $ 399
Landing Systems 53.9 64.8 46.7
Engine and Safety Systems 29.2 24.5 20.9
Electronic Systems 41.7 30.7 27.2
Corporate 2.2 0.7 2.9

Total Depreciation and
Amortization $ 1738 |$ 1654 $ 1376

Geographic Areas Net Sales

United States $ 26935 |$ 11,8727 $ 2,4955
Canada 177.4 166.5 112.6
Europe® 938.5 1,043.9 761.2
Other Foreign 3751 617.4 276.9
Total $ 41845 | $ 37005 $ 3,646.2
Property
United States $ 8395 |$ 8184 $ 7462
Canada 65.9 53.0 49.7
Europe 42.6 203 31.9
Other Foreign 7.5 5.3 8.6
Total $ 9555 |$ 8g7.0 $ 8364

(1) European sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999 included $383.8 million, $336.3
mitlion and $328.8 million, respectively, of sales to customers in France.
Sales were allocated to geographic areas based on the country to which
the product was shipped.

In 2001, 2000 and 1999, direct and indirect sales to Boeing totaled
23 percent, 23 percent and 26 percent, respectively, of consolidated
sales. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, direct and indirect sales to Airbus
totaled 13 percent of consolidated sales.
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Note M. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Balance Charged to Balance

Beginning Costs and at End

(in millions) of Year Expense Other® Deductions® of Year
Receivable Allowance

Year ended December 31, 2001 S 28.6 $ 23.6 $ 8.4 $ (4.0) $ 56.6

Year ended December 31, 2000 20.1 15.6 — (7.1) 28.6

Year ended December 31, 1999 19.6 1.9 — (1.4) 20.1

(1) Allowance related to acquisitions and PM working capital adjustment dispute (see Note S)

(2) Write-off of doubtful accounts, net of recoveries

(in millions) 2001 2000
Property
Land $ 440 |$ 403
Buildings and improvements 585.0 566.0
Machinery and equipment 1,142.5 1,167.6
Construction in progress 151.6 84.3
1,923.2 1,858.2
Less allowances for depreciation (967.7) (961.2)
Total $ 9555 |$ 8970

Property includes assets acquired under capital leases, principally
buildings and machinery and equipment, of $17.4 million and $19.6
million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Related
allowances for depreciation and amortization are $6.5 million and
$7.5 million, respectively. Interest costs capitalized from continuing
operations were $1.4 million in 2001, $1.0 million in 2000 and $3.4
million in 1999.

(in millions) 2001 2000
Accrued Expenses
Wages, vacations, pensions

and other employment costs $ 1886 |§ 166.0
Postretirement benefits

other than pensions 35.0 35.2
Taxes, other than federal

and foreign taxes on income 23.3 21.9
Accrued environmental liabilities 9.5 22.9
Accrued interest 31.8 43.4
Merger costs 45.2 58.2
Other 190.2 167.8

Total $ 5236 |$ 5154
(in millions) 2001 2000
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized foreign currency translation $ (57.4)|3$ (53.9)
Minimum pension liability (52.7) (3.8)

Total $ (Mo | %  (57.7)

The minimum pension liability amounts above are net of deferred
taxes of $26.8 and $1.9 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The Company’s accounting poli-
cies with respect to financial instruments are described in Note A.

The carrying amounts of the Company's significant on balance
sheet financial instruments approximate their respective fair val-
ues at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and are presented below.

2001 2000
Carrying Fair | Carrying Fair
(in millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt $ 13130 $ 1,217 | $ 14806 $ 14024
QUIPS (see Note Q) $ 1250 § 1283 |$ 1245 $ 1227
PIK Note $ 1684 $ 1670 — —

Derivative financial instruments at December 31, 20071 and 2000
were as follows:

2001 2000
Contract/ Contract/
MNotionai Fair | Notional Fair
(in millions) Amount Value | Amount Value
Interest rate swaps $ 2000 § 73 |$ 2205 $ (1.2)
Foreign currency
forward contracts — — | $ 10.7 —

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had an interest rate
swap agreement to manage the Company’s fixed interest rate expo-
sure on its $200.0 million senior notes, wherein the Company pays
a London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) based floating rate of
interest and receives a fixed rate. The counterparty to the swap
agreement is a major commercial bank. Management believes that
losses related to credit risk are remote.

The Company has an outstanding contingent liability for guaranteed
debt and lease payments of $5.5 million, and for letters of credit of
$37.8 million. It was not practical to obtain independent estimates
of the fair values for the contingent liability for guaranteed debt and
lease payments and for letters of credit without incurring excessive
costs. In the opinion of management, non-performance by the other
parties to the contingent liabilities will not have a material effect on
the Company's results of operations or financial condition.
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Note N. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following table sets forth non-cash financing and investing
activities and other cash flow information. Acquisitions accounted
for under the purchase method are summarized as follows:

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999

Estimated fair value of

tangible assets acquired $ 55 |[$§ 2000 § 2049
Goodwill and identifiable

intangible assets acquired 1421 109.0 58.3
Cash paid (119.2) (246.8) (56.5)
Liabilities assumed or created $§ 284 |% 623 $ 227

Interest paid
(net of amount capitalized) $ 1389 [$ 1651 $ 1269

1224 |$ 2048 $ 663

L2

Income taxes paid

Interest and income taxes paid include amounts related to
discontinued operations.

Note O. Preferred Stock

There are 10,000,000 authorized shares of Series Preferred Stock —
$1 par value. Shares of Series Preferred Stock that have been
redeemed are deemed retired and extinguished and may not be
reissued. As of December 31, 2001, 2,401,673 shares of Series
Preferred Stock have been redeemed, and no shares of Series
Preferred Stock were outstanding. The Board of Directors estab-
lishes and designates the series and fixes the number of shares and
the relative rights, preferences and limitations of the respective
series of the Series Preferred Stock.

Cumulative Participating Preferred Stock — Series F The Company
has 200,000 shares of junior Participating Preferred Stock — Series
F — $1 par value authorized at December 31, 2001. Series F shares
have preferential voting, dividend and liquidation rights over
the Company's common stock. At December 31, 2001, no Series F
shares were issued or outstanding, and 119,319 shares were
reserved for issuance.

On August 2, 1997, the Company made a dividend distribution
of one Preferred Share Purchase Right (“Right”) on each share
of the Company’s common stock. These Rights replace previous
shareholder rights that expired on August 2, 1997. Each Right,
when exercisable, entitles the registered holder thereof to purchase
from the Company one one-thousandth of a share of Series F Stock
at a price of $200 per one one-thousandth of a share (subject
to adjustment). The one one-thousandth of a share is intended
to be the functional equivalent of one share of the Company’s
common stock.

The Rights are not exercisable or transferable apart from the com-
mon stock until an Acquiring Person, as defined in the Rights
Agreement, without the prior consent of the Company’s Board of
Directors, acquires 20 percent or more of the voting power of the
Company’s common stock or announces a tender offer that would
result in 20 percent ownership. The Company is entitled to redeem
the Rights at 1 cent per Right any time before a 20 percent position

has been acquired or in connection with certain transactions
thereafter announced. Under certain circumstances, including the
acquisition of 20 percent of the Company’s common stock, each
Right not owned by a potential Acquiring Person will entitle its
holder to purchase, at the Right's then-current exercise price,
shares of Series F Stock having a market value of twice the Right’s
exercise price.

Holders of the Right are entitled to buy stock of an Acquiring
Person at a similar discount if, after the acquisition of 20 percent or
more of the Company’s voting power, the Company is involved in a
merger or other business combination transaction with another
person in which its common shares are changed or converted, or
the Company sells 50 percent or more of its assets or earnings
power to another person. The Rights expire on August 2, 2007.

Note P. Common Stock

During 20071, 2000 and 199g, 1.839 million; 1.230 million and o.540
million shares, respectively, of authorized but unissued shares of
common stock were issued under the Stock Option Plan and other
employee stock-based compensation plans.

On July 12, 1999, 35.472 million shares of common stock were
issued in connection with the merger with Coltec (see Note B).

The Company acquired 2.482 million, 9.330 million and 0.085 mil-
lion shares of treasury stock in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
and reissued 0.198 and 0.099 million in 2000 and 1999, res-
pectively, in connection with the Stock Option Plan and other
employee stock-based compensation plans.

As of December 31, 2007, there were 14.766 million shares of com-
mon stock reserved for future issuance under the Stock Option
Plan and other employee stock-based compensation plans and
2.866 million shares of common stock reserved for conversion of
the 5/ percent Trust Convertible Preferred Securities.

Note Q. Preferred Securities of Trust

On Jjuly 6, 1995, BFGoodrich Capital, a wholly owned Delaware
statutory business trust (“Trust”) that is consolidated by the
Company, received $122.5 million, net of the underwriting commis-
sion, from the issuance of 8.3 percent Cumulative Quarterly
Income Preferred Securities, Series A (“QUIPS”). The Trust invest-
ed the proceeds in 8.3 percent Junior Subordinated Debentures,
Series A, due 2025 {“Junior Subordinated Debentures”) issued by
the Company, which represent approximately 97 percent of the total
assets of the Trust. The Company used the proceeds from the
Junior Subordinated Debentures primarily to redeem all of the out-
standing shares of the $3.50 Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock, Series D.

The QUIPS have a liquidation value of $25 per Preferred Security,
mature in 2025 and are subject to mandatory redemption upon
repayment of the Junior Subordinated Debentures. The Company
has the option at any time on or after July 6, 2000, to redeem, in
whole or in part, the Junior Subordinated Debentures with the pro-
ceeds from the issuance and sale of the Company’s commaon stock
within two years preceding the date fixed for redemption.
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In April 1998, Coltec privately placed with institutional investors
$150.0 million (3,000,000 shares at liquidation value of $50 per
Convertible Preferred Security) of 54 percent Trust Convertible
Preferred Securities (“Convertible Preferred Securities”). The place-
ment of the Convertible Preferred Securities was made through
Coltec’s wholly owned subsidiary, Coltec Capital Trust (“Coltec
Trust”), a newly formed Delaware business trust. The Convertible
Preferred Securities represent undivided beneficial ownership
interests in the Coltec Trust. Substantially all the assets of the
Coltec Trust are the 5% percent Convertible Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures due April 15, 2028, which were
acquired with the proceeds from the private placement of the
Convertible Preferred Securities. Coltec’s obligations under the
Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures, the Indenture pur-
suant to which they were issued, the Amended and Restated
Declaration of Trust of the Coltec Trust, the Guarantee of Coltec and
the Guarantee of the Company, taken together, constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by the Company of amounts due on
the Convertible Preferred Securities. The Convertible Preferred
Securities are convertible at the option of the holders at any
time into the common stock of the Company at an effective con-
version price of $52)4 per share and are redeemable at the
Company's option after April 20, 2001, at 102.63 percent of the lig-
uidation amount declining ratably to 100 percent after April 20,
2004. The conversion ratio will be adjusted under the terms of the
indenture to reflect the spin-off of the EIP businesses when that
transaction is completed.

The Company has unconditionally guaranteed all distributions
required to be made by the Trust and the Coltec Trust (collectively,
the “Trusts”), but only to the extent the Trusts have funds legally
available for such distributions. The only source of funds for the
Trusts to make distributions to preferred security holders is the pay-
ment by the Company of interest on the Junior Subordinated
Debentures. The Company has the right to defer such interest
payments for up to five years. If the Company defers any interest
payments, the Company may not, among other things, pay any
dividends on its capital stock until all interest in arrears is paid
to the Trusts.

Note R. Stock Cption Plan

The 2001 Stock Option Plan, which will expire on April 17, 2011,
unless renewed, provides for the awarding of or the granting of
options to purchase 6,500,000 shares of common stock of the
Company. Generally, options granted are exercisable at the rate of
35 percent after one year, 70 percent after two years and 100 percent
after three years. Certain options are fully exercisable immediately
after grant. The term of each option cannot exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. All options granted under the Plan have been
granted at not less than 100 percent of fair market value (as
defined) on the date of grant.

The Company also has outstanding stock options under other
employee stock-based compensation plans, including the pre-
merger plans of Coltec and Rohr. These stock options are included
in the disclosures below.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per
share is required by FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123"), and has been deter-
mined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock
options under the fair value method of that statement. The fair
value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using
a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions:

2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate (%) 5.0 5.0 6.7

Dividend yield (%) 3.5 3.4 3.5

Volatility factor (%) 44.2 37.5 36.0
Weighted average expected life

of the options (years) 7.0 7.0 7.0

The option valuation model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, primarily stock price volatility, changes in which can
materially affect the fair value estimate. The weighted-average fair
values of stock options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were
$13.78, $8.65 and $12.13, respectively.

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures required by SFAS 123,
the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options vesting period. In addition, the grant-date fair value of
performance shares (discussed below) is amortized to expense
over the three-year plan cycle without adjustments for subsequent
changes in the market price of the Company’s common stock. The
Company’s pro forma information is as follows:

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Net income:
As reported $ 2802 {$ 3250 % 169.6
Pro forma $ 2746 |$ 3206 $ 1573
Earnings per share:
Basic:
As reported $§ 280 (% 3 § 154
Pro forma $§ 266 (%5 306 $ 143
Diluted:
As reported $ 276 |$ 304 % 155
Pro forma $ 262 |% 300 $ 144

The effects of applying SFAS 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not
likely to be representative of effects on reported net income for
future years. The pro forma effect in 1999 includes $2.6 million
after-tax expense related to acceleration of vesting in connection with
the Coltec merger. Additional awards in future years are anticipated.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related
information follows: '

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
(options in thousands) Options Price
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Outstanding at beginning of year 8519.6 $§ 3y
Granted 2,045.6 $ 37.87
Exercised (1,834.9) $ 28.25
Forfeited (584.4) $ 32.55
Outstanding at end of year 81459 $§ 33.60
Year Ended December 31, 2000
Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted 7810 § 3000
Exercised 2,483.7 $ 26.66
Forfeited (1.401.6) $ 2210
Expired (373.6) $§ 3262
Outstanding at end of year 8519.6 $ 314
Year Ended December 31, 1999
Outstanding at beginning of year 7,093.4 $ 3018
Granted 1,4800  $ 3585
Exercised (477.7) $ 2567
Forfeited (193.5) $ 36.92
Expired (91.2) $ 4222
Outstanding at end of year 7,811 $ 3010

The following table summarizes information about the Company's
stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted-

Number Average Average Number Weighted-
Range of Outstanding Remaining Exercise Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices (in thousands)  Contractual Life Price (in thousands) Exercise Price
$11.96 — $24.44 1,366.6 3.3 years $ 1976 1,355.0 $ 19.73
$25.53 — $29.11 1,799.6 7.8 years $ 2668 868.3 $ 26.78
$30.18 - $38.03 1,712.0 7.1 years $ 3547 1,072.9 $ 35.26
$38.62 — $39.88 1,917.9 8.2 years $ 38385 772.2 $ 39.19
$40.13 — $49.06 1,349.8 5.7 years $ 427 1,340.9 $ 41.26

Total 8,145.9 5,409.3

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, restricted stock awards for 8,150,
12,300 and 89,810 shares, respectively, were made including those
made to employees of discontinued operations. Restricted stock
awards may be subject to conditions established by the Board of
Directors. Under the terms of the restricted stock awards, the
granted stock vests two years and 10 months after the award date,
The cost of these awards, determined as the market value of the
shares at the date of grant, is being amortized over the vesting
period. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $3.2
million, respectively, was charged to expense of continuing opera-
tions for restricted stock awards. Of the $3.2 million of expense
recognized in 1999, $2.8 million related to acceleration of vesting
in connection with the Coltec merger,
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The Stock Option Plan also provides that shares of common stock
may be awarded as performance shares to certain key executives
having a critical impact on the long-term performance of the
Company. The plan is a phantom performance share plan.
Dividends accrue on phantom shares and are reinvested in addi-
tional phantom shares. Under this plan, compensation expense is
recorded based on the extent performance objectives are expected
to be met. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company issued
318,800, 856,800 and 304,780 phantom performance shares
including those made to employees of discontinued operations,
respectively. During 2001, 2000 and 1995, 221,200; 50,500 and
34,263 performance shares, respectively, were forfeited. In 2007,
2000 and 1999, $5.1 million, $8.9 million and $3.1 million, res-
pectively, was charged to expense of continuing operations for
performance shares. If the provisions of SFAS 123 had been used
to account for awards of performance shares, the weighted-
average grant-date fair value of performance shares granted in
2001, 2000 and 1999 would have been $38.62, $23.12 and $35.66
per share, respectively.

In 2000, a final pro rata payout (approximately 127,000 shares) of
the 1998 and 1999 awards was made in connection with the
Company’s adoption of new performance measures (approximately
10,000 of these shares were not issued as they were deferred by
recipients). In 1999, a partial payout (approximately 83,000 shares)
of the 1998 awards was made under change in control provisions
as a result of the Coltec merger.

Note S. Discontinued Operations

The disposition of the PM and EIP segments represents the
disposal of segments under APB Opinion No. 30 (“APB 30").
Accordingly, the revenues, costs and expenses, assets and lia-
bilities, and cash flows of Performance Materials and Engineered
Industrial Products have been segregated in the Consoli-
dated Statement of Income, Consolidated Balance Sheet and
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

The following summarizes the results of discontinued operations:

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Sales:
PM $ 1870 |$ 11677 $ 12177
EIP 641.9 663.3 673.6
$ 8289 (% 1,835.0 $ 1,8913
Pre-tax income (loss)
from operations:
PM $ (36)| $§ 690 F 523
EIP 46 94.4 97.2
425 163.4 149.5
Income tax expense (15.8) (64.8) (57.9)
Distributions on trust
preferred securities (7.9) (7.9) (7.9)
Gain on sale of Performance
Materials (net of income tax
expense of $54.9 million) 93.5 — —
Income from discontinued
operations $ mMm23 |$ go7 $ 837

Performance Materials

On February 28, 2001, the Company completed the sale of its
PM segment to an investor group led by AEA Investors, Inc.
for approximately $1.4 billion. Total net proceeds, after anticipated
tax payments and transaction costs, included approximately $1 bil-
lion in cash and $172 million in debt securities issued by the buyer.
The transaction resulted in an after-tax gain of $93.5 million and
is subject to certain post-closing adjustments (e.g., working
capital adjustments).

The Company has calculated a $25 million working capital adjust-
ment in its favor, which has been considered in the after-tax
gain noted above. The Buyer is disputing the Company’s working
capital adjustment and has asserted that the Company owes the
Buyer approximately $10 million under the purchase and sale
agreement. Should the parties not be able to settle their differ-
ences, the disputed matters will be forwarded to an independent
third party for resolution. Such resolution will be final and binding
on all parties. The Company expects to finalize the working capital
adjustment in 2002.

Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, the Company retained
certain assets and liabilities (primarily pension, postretirement and
environmental liabilities) of the PM segment. The Company has
also agreed to indemnify the buyer for liabilities arising from certain
events as defined in the agreement. Such indemnification is not
expected to be material to the Company's financial condition, but
could be material to the Company’s results of operations in a given
period. During 20071, the Company also completed the sale of the
segment’s Electronic Materials business which had been included
in the retained assets noted above.

Engineered Industrial Products

In September 2001, the Company announced that its Board of
Directors had approved in principle the tax-free spin-off of its EIP
segment to shareholders. The spin-off will be effected through a
tax-free distribution to the Company's shareholders of all of the
capital stock of EnPro Industries, Inc. (“EnPro”), a newly formed
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The EIP segment is currently owned by Coltec, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Goodrich. Prior to the Distribution, Coltec’s aero-
space business will assume all intercompany balances outstanding
between Coltec and Goodrich, and Coltec will then transfer to
Goodrich by way of a dividend all of the assets, liabilities and oper-
ations of Coltec’s aerospace business, including these assumed
balances. Following the spin-off, Coltec will be a wholly owned
subsidiary of EnPro, and Coltec’s aerospace businesses will be
owned by Goodrich.

It is anticipated that the $150 million of outstanding Coltec Capital
Trust convertible trust preferred securities will remain outstanding
as a part of the EnPro capital structure. Certain payments with
respect to these securities are guaranteed by Coltec and the
Company and are expected to be guaranteed by EnPro. Following
the spin-off, these securities will be convertible into a combination
of Goodrich and EnPro common stock. Separately, the Company
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expects that it will offer to exchange the $300 million of Coltec’s 7.5
percent Senior Notes due 2008 for similar Company debt securities
prior to the spin-off. Assuming this exchange offer is fully sub-
scribed, EnPro, will have total debt and convertible trust preferred
securities of approximately $165 million at the time of the spin-off.
The Company also contemplates that a new EnPro senior secured
revolving credit facility will be in place after the spin-off.

Although the spin-off is subject to certain conditions, no consents
are required from the Company’s security holders or the holders of
Coltec’s outstanding debt or convertible trust preferred securities
to complete the spin-off. The Company expects to complete the
spin-off in the second quarter of 2002.

Engineered Industrial Products - Contingencies

Asbestos .

Garlock and Anchor Two subsidiaries of Coltec, Garlock Sealing
Technologies, LLC (“Garlock”) and The Anchor Packing Company
(“Anchor”), have been among a number of defendants (typically
15 to 40) in actions filed in various states by plaintiffs alleging
injury or death as a result of exposure to asbestos fibers. Among the
products at issue in those actions are industrial sealing products,
predominantly gaskets, manufactured and/or sold by Garlock or
Anchor. The damages claimed vary from action to action and in
some cases plaintiffs seek both compensatory and punitive dam-
ages. To date, neither Garlock nor Anchor has been required to pay
any punitive damage awards, although there can be no assurance
that they will not be required to do so in the future. Liability for
compensatory damages has historically been allocated among all
responsible defendants, thus limiting the potential monetary impact
of a particular judgment or settlement on any individual defendant.

The Company believes that Garlock and Anchor are in a favorable
position compared to many other asbestos defendants because,
among other things, the asbestos-containing products sold by
Carlock and Anchor are encapsulated, which means the asbestos
fibers are incorporated into the product during the manufacturing
process and sealed in a binder. They are also nonfriable, which
means they cannot be crumbled by hand pressure. The Occu-
pational Safety and Health Administration, which began generally
requiring warnings on asbestos-containing products in 1972, has
never required that a warning be placed on products such as
Garlock’s gaskets. Notwithstanding that no warning label has been
required, Garlock included one on all of its asbestos-containing
products beginning in 1978. Further, gaskets such as those
previously manufactured and sold by Garlock are one of the
few asbestos-containing products permitted to be manufactured
under regulations of the EPA. Since the mid-1980s, U.S. sales of
asbestos-containing industrial sealing products have not been a
material part of Garlock's sales, and those sales have been
predominantly to sophisticated purchasers such as the U.S. Navy
and large petrochemical facilities. These purchasers generally have
extensive health and safety procedures and are familiar with the
risks associated with the use and handling of industrial sealing
products that contain asbestos. Garlock discontinued distributing
asbestos-containing products in the U.S. during 2000 and world-
wide in mid-2001.

Garlock settles and disposes of actions on a regular basis. In
addition, some actions are disposed of at trial. Garlock’s historical
settlement strategy has been to try to match the timing of pay-
ments with recoveries received from insurance. However, in 1999
and 2000, Garlock implemented a short-term aggressive settle-
ment strategy. The purpose of this short-term strategy was to
achieve a permanent reduction in the number of overall asbestos
claims through the settlement of a larger-than-normal number of
claims, including some claims not yet filed as lawsuits. Garlock
believes that these settlements were at a lower overall cost to
Garlock than would eventually have been paid even though the tim-
ing of payment was accelerated. Mainly due to this short-term
aggressive settlement strategy and because settlements are made
over a period of time, the settlement amounts paid in 2001, 2000
and 1999 increased over prior periods.

Settlements are generally made on a group basis with payments
made to individual claimants over a period of one to four years and
are made without any admission of liability. Settlement amounts
vary depending upon a number of factors, including the jurisdiction
where the action was brought; the nature of the disease alleged; the
occupation of the plaintiff; the presence or absence of other possi-
ble causes of the plaintiff’s alleged illness; the availability of legal
defenses, such as the statute of limitations, and whether the action
is an individual one or part of a group. Garlock's allocable portion
of the total settlement amount for an action typically ranges from 1
percent to 2 percent of the total amount.

Before any payment on a settled claim is made, the claimant is
required to submit a medical report acceptable to Garlock substan-
tiating the asbestos-related illness and meeting specific criteria of
disability. In addition, sworn testimony that the claimant worked
with or around Garlock asbestos-containing products is required.
Generally, the claimant is also required to sign a full and uncondi-
tional release of Garlock, its subsidiaries, parent, officers, directors,
affiliates and related parties from any liability for asbestos-related
injuries or claims.

When a settlement demand is not reasonable, given the totality of
the circumstances, Garlock generally will try the case. Garlock has
been successful in winning a substantial majority of the cases it has
tried to verdict. Garlock’s share of adverse verdicts in these cases
in 2001, 2000 and 19949 totaled less than $7 million in the aggre-
gate, and some of those verdicts are on appeal.

Anchor is an inactive and insolvent subsidiary of Coltec. The insur-
ance coverage available to it is fully committed. Anchor continues
to pay settlement amounts covered by its insurance but has not
committed to settle any further actions since 1998. As cases reach
the trial stage, Anchor is typically dismissed without payment.

The insurance coverage available to Garlock is substantial. At
December 31, 2001, Garlock had available $1.011 billion of insur-
ance coverage from carriers that it believes to be solvent. Of
that amount, $119 million is allocated to claims that have been
paid by Garlock and submitted to its insurance companies for
reimbursement and $161 million has been committed to claim set-
tlements not yet paid by Garlock. Thus, at December 31, 2001, $731

.
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million remained available for coverage of future claims. Insurance
coverage for asbestos claims is not available to cover exposures
initially occurring on and after July 1, 1984. Garlock and Anchor con-
tinue to be named as defendants in new actions, a few of which
allege initial exposure after July 1, 1984. To date, no payments with
respect to these claims, pursuant to a settlement or otherwise, have
been made. In addition, Garlock and Anchor believe that they have
substantial defenses to these claims and therefore automatically
reject them for settlement. However, there can be no assurance
that any or all of these defenses will be successful in the future.

Arrangements with Garlock’s insurance carriers limit the amount
that can be received by it in any one year. The amount of insurance
available to cover claims paid by Garlock was limited to $80 million
per year in 2001 and 2000 ($60 million in 1999), covering both
settlements and reimbursements of legal fees. This limit auto-
matically increases by 8 percent every three years. Amounts paid
by Garlock in excess of this annual limit that would otherwise be
recoverable from insurance may be collected from the insurance
companies in subsequent years so long as insurance is available
but subject to the annual limit in each subsequent year. As a result,
Garlock is required to pay out of its own cash any amounts paid to
settle or dispose of asbestos-related claims in excess of the annual
limit and collect these amounts from its insurance carriers in sub-
sequent years, Various options, such as raising the annual limit, are
being pursued to ensure as close a match as possible between
payments by Garlock and recoveries received from insurance. There
can be no assurance that Garlock will be successful as to any or all
of these options.

In accordance with internal procedures for the processing of
asbestos product liability actions and due to the proximity to trial
or settlement, certain outstanding actions against Garlock and
Anchor have progressed to a stage where the cost to dispose of
these actions can reasonably be estimated. These actions are clas-
sified as actions in advanced stages and are included in the table as
such below. With respect to outstanding actions against Garlock
and Anchor that are in preliminary procedural stages, as well as any
actions that may be filed in the future, insufficient information
exists upon which judgments can be made as to the validity or ulti-
mate disposition of such actions, thereby making it difficult to
reasonably estimate what, if any, potential liability or costs may be
incurred. Accordingly, no estimate of future liability has been
included in the table below for such claims.

The Company records an accrual for liabilities related to Garlock
and Anchor asbestos-related matters that are deemed probable and
can be reasonably estimated, which consist of settled claims and
actions in advanced stages of processing. The Company also
records an asset equal to the amount of those liabilities that
is expected to be recovered by insurance. These amounts are
reflected within discontinued operations in the Company’s con-
solidated balance sheet and statement of cash flows. A table is
provided below depicting quantitatively the items discussed above.

2001 2000 1999

(number of cases)
New Actions Filed During the Year® 37,600 36,200 30,200
Actions in Advanced Stages

at Year-End 2,500 5,800 8,300
Open Actions at Year-End 95,400 96,300 96,000
(dollars in millions at year-end)
Estimated Liability for Settled

Claims and Actions in Advanced

Stages of Processing® $§ 1709 (% 2312 3 163
Estimated Amounts Recoverable

From Insurance®® $ 2937 |$ 287 3 1882
(dollars in millions)
Payments® $ 1627 1% n97 % 845
Insurance Recoveries® 87.9 83.3 65.2
Net Cash Flow® $ (748)|% (364) % (153)

(1) Consists only of actions actually filed with a court of competent juris-
diction. To the extent that a particular action names both Garlock and
Anchor as defendants, for purposes of this table the action is treated
as a single action.

(2) Includes amounts with respect to all claims settled, whether or not an
action has actually been filed with a court of competent jurisdiction,
claims which have been dismissed or tried and claims otherwise closed
during the period.

(3) Payments made during the period for which Garlock does not receive a
corresponding insurance recovery due to the annual limit imposed under
Garlock’s insurance policies will be recovered in future periods to the
extent insurance is available. When estimating the amounts recoverable,
Garlock only includes insurance coverage available from carriers believed
to be solvent.

As shown in the table above, the number of new actions filed dur-
ing 2001 increased slightly over 2000, while the number of new
actions filed during 2000 increased significantly over 1999. The
Company believes this increase represents the acceleration of
claims from future periods mostly attributable to bankruptcies of
other asbestos defendants. The acceleration of claims may have the
impact of accelerating the associated settlement payments. The
Company believes the number of new actions will decrease in
future years due, in part, to the previously described acceleration of
future claims and because the largest asbestos exposures occurred
prior to the mid-1970s. However, there can be no assurance that
the number of new claims filed will not remain at current levels or
increase in future years.

Garlock and Anchor recorded charges to operations amounting
to approximately $8 million in each of 2001, 2000 and 1999, repre-
senting payments and related expenditures made during the
periods which are not recoverable at all under insurance, whether
in the present period or in future periods.
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Garlock and Anchor paid $74.8, $36.4 million and $19.3 million for
the defense and disposition of asbestos-related actions, net of
amounts received from insurance carriers, during 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. The amount of payments in 2001 was consistent
with their expectation that payments during 2001 would be higher
than in 2000 and in 1999.

Considering the foregoing, as well as the experience of the
Company’s subsidiaries and other defendants in asbestos litiga-
tion, the likely sharing of judgments among multiple responsible
defendants, recent bankruptcies of other defendants, legislative
efforts and given the substantial amount of insurance coverage
that Garlock expects to be available from its solvent carriers,
the Company believes that pending actions against Garlock and
Anchor are not likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial condition, but could be material
to the Company's consolidated results of operations or cash flows
in a given period. However, because of the uncertainty as to the
number and timing of potential future actions, as well as the
amount that will have to be paid to settle or satisfy any such actions
in the future, there can be no assurance that those future actions
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Coltec and some of its subsidiaries (other than Garlock and
Anchor) have also been named as defendants in various actions by
plaintiffs alleging injury or death as a result of exposure to asbestos
fibers. The number of claims to date has not been significant, and
insurance coverage is available to Coltec. Based on the above, the
Company believes that these pending and reasonably anticipated
future actions are not likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows and are therefore not discussed above.

Coltec, Garlock, Anchor and some of Coltec's other subsidiaries
are also defendants in other asbestos-related lawsuits or claims
involving maritime workers, medical monitoring claimants and co-
defendants. Based on past experience, the Company believes that
these categories of claims are not likely to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows and are therefore not discussed above.

Other Matters

Coltec has contingent liabilities related to discontinued operations
of its predecessors for which it has retained liabilities or is obli-
gated under indemnity agreements. These contingent liabilities
include potential product liability and associated claims related to
Coltec’s former Colt Firearms subsidiary for firearms manufactured
prior to 1950 and related to Coltec’s former Central Maloney sub-
sidiary for electrical transformers manufactured prior to 1994.
There are currently no claims pending against Coltec related to
these former subsidiaries. However, such claims could arise in the
future. Coltec also has ongoing obligations with regard to workers
compensation and medical benefit matters associated with
Crucible Materials Corporation and Colt Firearms that relate to
Coltec’s periods of ownership of these companies.

Note T. Contingencies

General

There are pending or threatened against Goodrich or its subsid-
jaries various claims, lawsuits and administrative proceedings, all
arising from the ordinary course of business with respect to com-
mercial, product liability, asbestos and environmental matters,
which seek remedies or damages. Goodrich believes that any liabil-
ity that may finally be determined with respect to such claims,
lawsuits and proceedings should not have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.
From time to time, the Company is also involved in legal pro-
ceedings as a plaintiff involving contract, patent protection,
environmental and other matters. Gain contingencies, if any, are
recognized when they are realized.

Environmental

Environmental liabilities are recorded when the Company’s liability
is probable and the costs are reasonably estimable, which generally
is not later than at completion of a feasibility study or when the
Company has recommended a remedy or has committed to an
appropriate plan of action. The accruals are reviewed periodically
and, as investigations and remediations proceed, adjustments are
made as necessary. Accruals for losses from environmental reme-
diation obligations do not consider the effects of inflation, and
anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their present value.
The accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries from insurance
carriers or other third parties, but do reflect anticipated allocations
among potentially responsible parties at federal Superfund sites or
similar state-managed sites and an assessment of the likelihood
that such parties will fulfill their obligations at such sites. The meas-
urement of environmental liabilities by the Company is based on
currently available facts, present laws and regulations, and current
technology. Such estimates take into consideration the Company’s
prior experience in site investigation and remediation, the data
concerning cleanup costs available from other companies and
regulatory authorities, and the professional judgment of the
Company's environmental experts in consultation with outside
environmental specialists, when necessary.

The Company is subject to various domestic and international
environmental laws and regulations which may require that it
investigate and remediate the effects of the release or disposal of
materials at sites associated with past and present operations,
including sites at which the Company has been identified as a
potentially responsible party under the federal Superfund laws and
comparable state laws. The Company is currently involved in the
investigation and remediation of a number of sites under these
laws. Estimates of the Company’s liability are further subject to
uncertainties regarding the nature and extent of site contamination,
the range of remediation alternatives available, evolving remedia-
tion standards, imprecise engineering evaluations and estimates of
appropriate cleanup technology, methodology and cost, the extent
of corrective actions that may be required, and the number and
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financial condition of other potentially responsible parties, as well
as the extent of their responsibility for the remediation. Accordingly,
as investigation and remediation of these sites proceeds, it is likely
that adjustments in the Company’s accruals will be necessary to
reflect new information. The amounts of any such adjustments
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations in a given period, but the amounts, and the possible
range of loss in excess of the amounts accrued, are not reasonably
estimable. Based on currently available information, however,
management does not believe that future environmental costs in
excess of those accrued with respect to sites with which the
Company has been identified are likely to have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition. There can be no assur-
ance, however, that additional future developments, administrative
actions or liabilities relating to environmental matters will not have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations in
a given period.

At December 31, 2001, the Company’s reserves for environmental
remediation obligations totaled $84.9 million, of which $11.0 mil-
lion was included in accrued liabilities ($1.5 million of which is
classified within merger-related and consolidation costs). Of the
$84.9 million, $12.8 million is associated with ongoing operations
and $72.1 million is associated with businesses previously disposed
of or discontinued.

The timing of expenditures depends on a number of factors that
vary by site, including the nature and extent of contamination, the
number of potentially responsible parties, the timing of regulatory
approvals, the complexity of the investigation and remediation, and
the standards for remediation. The Company expects that it will
expend present accruals over many years, and will complete reme-
diation of all sites with which it has been identified in up to thirty
years. This period includes operation and monitoring costs which
are generally incurred over 15 years.

Tolo Litigation

In May 2000, the Company and its subsidiary Rohr, Inc. (“Rohr"),
were served with complaints in a lawsuit filed in the Superior Court
of Orange County, California, by former shareholders and certain
former employees of Tolo, Inc. Tolo, Inc. is a subsidiary of Rohr that
was acquired in 1997. The former shareholders alleged that the
Company and Rohr breached the stock purchase agreement by
failing to pay $2.4 million under the terms of the agreement. In
September 2001, a jury found that the Company was liable to the
shareholders for the $2.4 million retained by Rohr under the stock
purchase agreement and was also assessed punitive damages of
348 million. The court subsequently reduced the punitive damage
award to $24 million.

At the time of the purchase the Company established a reserve of
$2.4 million relating to the amount withheld by Rohr pursuant to
the stock purchase agreement. The Company has not established
an accrual for the punitive damages award of $24 million, which
was based on the plaintiff's fraudulent concealment claim, for the
reasons set forth below.

The Company and its legal counsel believe that there were numerous
points of reversible error in the trial that make it more likely than
not that the judgment will be reversed or vacated on appeal. First,
the Company believes the plaintiffs’ fraud claim is legally deficient
under California law and should be reversed. If the fraud claim is
not reversed, defendants should, at a minimum, be granted a new
trial on the fraudulent concealment claim because the trial court
permitted plaintiffs to add this claim late in the trial but did not
allow the Company to introduce evidence to defend against it. The
Company also believes that the trial court made numerous prej-
udicial errors regarding the admission and exclusion of evidence
relating to the fraud claims, which further supports the grant of
a new trial. And finally, the Company believes that the trial court’s
directed verdict on plaintiffs’ breach of contract claim should be
set aside and a new trial granted because, among other things,
there was sufficient evidence for the jury to find for the defendants
on this claim.

Discontinued Operations

Contingencies associated with Coltec and its subsidiaries, includ-
ing asbestos-related liabilities, are discussed in Note S to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. After the spin-off is completed,
itis possible that asbestos-related claims might be asserted against
the Company on the theory that it has some responsibility for the
asbestos-related liabilities of Coltec or its subsidiaries, even though
the activities that led to those claims occurred prior to the
Company's ownership of Coltec. Also, it is possible that a claim
could be asserted against the Company that Coltec’s dividend of its
aerospace business to the Company prior to the spin-off was made
at a time when Coltec was insolvent or caused Coltec to become
insolvent. Such a claim could seek recovery from the Company on
behalf of Coltec of the fair market value of the dividend.

No such claims have been asserted against the Company to
date. The Company believes that it would have substantial legal
defenses against any such claims. Any such claims would require,
as a practical matter, that Coltec’s subsidiaries were unable to
satisfy their asbestos-related liabilities and that Coltec was found to
be responsible for these liabilities and is unable to meet its finan-
cial obligations. The Company believes any such claims would be
without merit and that Coltec will be solvent both before and after
the dividend. If the Company is ultimately found to be responsible
for the asbestos-related liabilities of Coltec’s subsidiaries, the
Company believes it would not have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition, but could have a material adverse effect on its
results of operations and cash flows in a particular period.
However, because of the uncertainty as to the number, timing and
payments related to future asbestos-related claims, there can be no
assurance that any such claims would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows. If a claim related to the dividend of Coltec’s aero-
space business were successful, it could have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.




QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)®

2001 Quarters

2000 Quarters

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Business Segment Sales:
Aerostructures and Aviation ]

Technical Services 359.8 $ 4055 $ 3740 375.1 $  357.6 $ 3484 $ 3754 374.1
Landing Systems 289.6 280 293.1 286.3 260.1 259.0 265.9 272.7
Engine and Safety Systems 183.9 202.3 190.0 186.4 154.9 160.0 158.7 170.8
Electronic Systems 174.4 184.2 194.8 205.0 127.5 139.3 132.4 143.7

Total Sales 1,007.7 $ 1,0721 $ 1,051.9 1,052.8 $ goo0a $ 906.7 $ 9324 961.3

Gross Profit® 292.6 $ 3035 $ 299.0 161.8 $ 2446 $ 2529 $ 259.0 267.8
Operating Income (Loss):
Aerostructures and Aviation

Technical Services 26 $ 633 $ 607 471 $§ 489 $ 490 § 57.3 53.8
Landing Systems 408 33.5 40.9 37.9 373 35.1 35.7 40.9
Engine and Safety Systems 29.9 39.1 35.4 27.5 28.0 30.8 283 30.4
Electronic Systems 31.4 33.0 29.9 41 25.2 27.6 33.1 32.2
Corporate (13.6) (15.3) (12.3) (16.5) (13.9) (13.7) (14.2) (17.9)
Merger-Related and

Consolidation Costs (5.8) (7.6) (1.5) (92.4) (5-4) (15.4) (8.3) (15.1)
Unusual Inventory Adjustments - (94.5) - -

Total Operating Income (Loss) 135.3 $ 1460 $ 1530 (49.8) | $ 12041 $ 34 $ 1319 124.3
income (Loss) from:
Continuing Operations 70.2 $ 759 % 81.9 5y | % 58.7 $ 54.2 3 61.1 61.2
Discontinued Operations 1021 7.4 6.1 (3-3) 27.4 27.5 18.8 17.0
Net Income (Loss) 172.3 $ 833 $ 8o (s4.4) | $  86. $ 81.7 $ 799 78.2
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Continuing Operations 0.68 $ o7 $ o079 (050) | $§ o054 $ om $ o060 0.60
Discontinued Operation 1.00 0.07 0.06 (0.03) 0.25 0.26 0.19 0.7
Net income 1.68 $ 08 § 08 (0.53) $ 079 $ o077 $ o079 0.77
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Contihuing Operations 0.66 $ o0 $ o076 (o50) 1 $§ o052 $ o049 $ o357 0.57
Discontinued Operations 0.96 0.08 0.07 (0.03) 0.26 0.26 ©.20 0.8
Net income 1.62 $ o078 $ 083 (0.53) $ o8 $ o $ o077 0.75

(1) The historical amounts presented above have been restated to present the Company's PM and EIP businesses as discontinued operations.

(2) Gross profit represents sales less cost of sales.

The first quarter of 2001 includes a $5.8 million pre-tax charge for
merger-related and consolidation costs. The first quarter also
includes a $7.2 million pre-tax gain in other income (expense) from
the sale of a portion of the Company’s interest in a business.

The second quarter of 2001 includes a $7.6 million pre-tax charge
for merger-related and consolidation costs.

The third quarter of 2001 includes a $1.5 million pre-tax charge for
merger-related and consolidation costs.

The fourth quarter of 2001 includes a $92.4 million pre-tax charge
for merger-related and consolidation costs and a $94.5 million pre-
tax charge recorded in cost of sales for inventory adjustments.

The first quarter of 2000 includes a $5.4 million pre-tax charge for
merger-related and consolidation costs.

The second quarter of 2000 includes a $15.4 million pre-tax charge
for merger-related and consolidation costs.

The third quarter of 2000 includes a $8.3 million pre-tax charge for
merger-related and consolidation costs.

The fourth quarter of 2000 includes a $15.1 million pre-tax charge
for merger-related and consolidation costs. The fourth quarter
also includes a $2.5 million pre-tax charge in other income
(expense) related to a write-down of a business held for sale to its
net realizable value.
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(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Statement of Income Data:

Sales $ 41845 $ 3,700.5 $ 3,646.2 $ 35103 $ 3,060.3
Operating income 384.6 489.7 2741 440.6

Income from continuing operations 176.9 235.2 85.9 213.3 67.8
Net income 289.2 325.9 169.6 353.7

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets $ 4,638 $ 51389 $ 4,622.6 $ 4,415.8 $ 3,906.7
Total debt 1,426.4 2,236.2 1,741.9 1,704.2 1,487.5
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of trust 125.0 124.5 124.0 123.6

Total shareholders’ equity 1,361.4 1,228.5 1,295.6 1,238.9

Other Financial Data:

Segment operating income® $ 64449 $  593.6 $ 3617 $ 5055

EBITDARG 734.7 668.7 631.6 557.7

Operating cash flow 382.6 168.2 210.5 341.7

Investing cash flow (288.8) (349.4) (166.5) (208.8)

Financing cash flow (936.3) 80.6 (72.2) 199.1

Capital expenditures 190.5 133.8 144.7 163.0

Depreciation 108.5 1.9 96.3 90.2

Dividends 13.7 17.6 9.6 75.7

Distributions on trust preferred securities 10.5 10.5 10.5 10.5

Per Share of Common Stock:

Income from continuing operations, diluted $ 1.65 $ 2.6 $ o076 $ 1.87 $ o6
Diluted EPSY 2.87 2.43 2.23 1.93

Dividends declared 1.10 110 1.10 110

Book value 13.39 12.00 1.74 11.28

Ratios:

Segment operating income as a percent of sales® (%) 15.4 16.0 15.4 14.4
Debt-to-capitalization ratio (%) 47.2 61.4 54.0 54.7

Effective income tax rate {%) 33.5 33.1 47.9 35.1

Other Data:

Common shares outstanding at end of year (millions) 101.7 102.3 10.2 109.7

Number of employees at end of year® 24,000 26,300 27,000 27,200

(1) Except as otherwise indicated, the historical amounts presented above have been restated to present the Company’s PM and EIP businesses as
discontinued operations.
“EBITDA” as used herein means income from continuing operations before distributions on trust preferred securities, income tax expense, net interest
expense, depreciation and amortization and special items. The Company believes EBITDA provides meaningful additional information on our operating results
and on our ability to service our long-term debt and other fixed obligations and to fund our continued growth. EDITDA should not be construed as an alterna-
tive to operating income (loss) as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”), as an alternative to
cash flow from operating activities (as determined in accordance with GAAP), or as a measure of liquidity. Because EBITDA is not calculated in the same man-
ner by all companies, our presentation may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

(3) Excludes special items, which for 2001 and 2000 are described on pages 2 and 8 herein. Special items for the year ended December 31, 1999 included a $170.4
million after-tax charge for merger-related and consolidation costs, a $2.4 million after-tax gain on the sale of a business and $83.7 million representing the
after-tax effect of income from discontinued operations. Special items for the year ended December 31, 1998 included a $6.5 million after-tax charge for merger-
related and consolidation costs, a $4.3 million after-tax extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment and $144.7 million representing the after-tax effect of income
from discontinued operations.

(4) Includes employees of the Company’s PM and EIP segments, rounded to the nearest hundred.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Company Headgquarters

Goodrich Corporation

Four Coliseum Centre

2730 West Tyvola Road

Charlotte, North Carolina 28217-4578
704/423-7000

www.goodrich.com

Stock Exchange Listing

Goodrich common stock and BFGoodrich Capital cumulative quarterly
income preferred securities (QUIPS) are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Symbols: GR and GRPRA, respectively. Options to acquire
the company’s common stock are traded on the Chicago Board
Options Exchange.

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of Goodrich Corporation will be
held at the Goodrich Corporate Headquarters, Four Coliseum Centre,
2730 West Tyvola Road, Charlotte, North Carolina on April 16, 2002 at
10:00 A.M. The meeting notice and proxy materials were mailed to
shareholders with this report.

Shareholder Services

If you have questions concerning your account as a shareholder, divi-
dend payments, lost certificates and other related items, please contact
our transfer agent:

The Bank of New York

Shareholder Relations Dept. 11E

P.O. Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, N.Y. 10286-1258
1-800-524-4458

E-mail: shareowner-svcs@bankofny.com

The Bank of New York’s Shareholder Services website can be located at
http:/ fwww.stockbny.com. Registered shareholders can access their
account online and review account holdings, transaction history and
check history. In addition, the site offers an extensive Q&A, instructions
on the direct purchase, sale and transfer of plan shares and information
about dividend reinvestment plans. Shareholders also can download
frequently used forms.

Stock Transfer and Address Changes
Please send certificates for transfer and address changes to:

The Bank of New York
Receive and Deliver Dept. 1W
P.O. Box 11002

Church Street Station

New York, N.Y. 10286-1002

Designed and produced by see see eye/Atlanta

Dividend Reinvestment

Goodrich offers a Dividend Reinvestment Plan to holders of its com-
mon stock. For enrollment information, please contact The Bank of
New York, Investor Relations Department, at 1-800-524-4458.

investor Relations
Securities analysts and others seeking financial information should
contact:

Paul S. Gifford

Vice President of Investor Relations
Goodrich Corporation

Four Coliseum Centre

2730 West Tyvola Road

Charlotte, North Carolina 28217-4578
704/423-5517

e-mail: investor@goodrich.com

To request an Annual Report, Proxy Statement, 10-K, 10-Q or quarterly
earnings release, visit our website at www.goodrich.com or call
704/423-7103. All other press releases are available on our website.

The Goodrich Foundation

The company makes charitable contributions to nonprofit arts & cul-
tural, civic & community, educational, and health & human services
organizations through The Goodrich Foundation and our operations,
distributing $2.5 million in 2001. Foundation guidelines are available on
our website, www.goodrich.com.

For more information contact:

The Goodrich Foundation

Four Coliseum Centre

2730 West Tyvola Road

Charlotte, North Carolina 28217-4578

Affirmative Action

Goodrich hires, trains, promotes, compensates and makes all
other employment decisions without regard to race, sex, age, religion,
national origin, disability, veteran or disabled veteran status or other
protected classifications. It has affirmative action programs in place in
accordance with Executive Order 11246 and other federal laws and reg-
ulations to ensure equal employment opportunity for its employees.

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties, and actual resuits could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements. These risks and
uncertainties are detailed in the section of the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis entitled “Forward-Looking Information is
Subject to Risk and Uncertainty” and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
and other filings with the SEC.




With 2001 aerospace sales of $4.2 billion, Goodrich Corporation (NYSE: GR) is a leading
worldwide supplier of aerospace components, systems and services. Headquartered in
Charlotte, North Carolina, Goodrich is ranked by Fortune magazine as one of the “Most
Admired” aerospace companies and is included on Forbes magazine’s “Platinum List” of

America’s best big companies. For more information visit www.goodrich.com.

rd

GOODRICH

Four Coliseum Centre
2730 West Tyvola Road
Charlotte, NC 28217-4578

704.423.7000
www.goodrich.com




